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OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold 
a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 


FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, May 26, 2020, 6:00 p.m.  


 **PLEASE NOTE** This is a teleconference meeting via GoToMeeting 
Access with a computer, tablet or smartphone via GoToMeeting -
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/664301397 
You may also join by phone using dial-in number 1 877 309 2073 
Access code 664-301-397 
Please sign-in to the meeting at least ten minutes prior to the scheduled start time if 
possible 
 
Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice Chair), Greg Jenson, Ozzie Doom, and 
Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 
 
   


Item # AGENDA 
1  Call to Order 
2  Communications 
3  Reports 


• Contingency Report 
• April 2020 Treasurer’s Report 
• CIP Budget to Actual Report 
• April 2020 Financial Reports 


 
NEW BUSINESS 
4 Approval of the May 12, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 
 
5 Acknowledge receipt of the 2019 City of Stoughton Audit and Management 


Letter 
 
6 Discussion and possible action authorizing the City of Stoughton Director of 


Finance to accept the 2020 Section 5310 Grant for the purchase of an 
accessible van for City of Stoughton shared-ride program 


 
7 Resolution suspending interest and penalties for late real property tax 


payments so long as the City receives full property tax payment by October 1, 
2020. 


 
8 Discussion and possible action regarding treatment of existing and future special 


assessments 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/664301397





 
 
9 Discussion and possible action regarding the potential delay of certain 2020 CIP 


projects 
 
10 Discussion and possible action regarding options available for funding the 


Revolving Loan Fund with TIF No. 4 tax increment  
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
- Senior Center Annex Lease Agreements 
- TIF Policy Revisions 
- Absentee Ballots 
 
 
   ADJOURNMENT  
 
Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In addition, any person 
wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the internet should 
also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at least 24 hours before the scheduled 
meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 








100-59200-50930


2020 BUDGET 80,000$                         


AMENDMENT REASON
1/28/2020 Liquor License Revocation Legal Fees (19,347)$                        Original estimate was $10,000
10/22/2019 Viking Lanes Appeal (2,006)$                          Original estimate was $10,000


5/20/2020 58,646$                         


CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EARMARKED


AMENDMENT REASON


AVAILABLE BALANCE @ 5/20/20 58,646$                         





		2020






BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/4Page
:


05/20/2020 07:47 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020
Reconciliation Record ID: 162


328,503.09 Add: Journal Entries/Other
(532,663.75)Less: Payroll Disbursements
(820,229.95)Less: Cash Disbursements


1,549,918.83 Add: Cash Receipts
821,857.02 Beginning GL Balance:


65,045.82 05/01/2020 *Deposit ID: 2644
156.00 05/01/2020 *Deposit ID: 2645


0.00 CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS RCD
0.00 PAYROLL REMITTANCE IN TRANSIT
0.00 EBC DISCREPENCY - CORRECT NEXT MONTH
0.00 DMV IN TRANSIT
0.00 DELTA DENTAL PAYMENTS IN TRANSIT


75,038.73 CREDIT CARD PAYMENT
0.00 STRIPE IN TRANSIT


(12,970.33)WEB PAYMENTS IN TRANSIT
0.00 MCFARLAND STATE BANK RENT IN TRANSIT
0.00 COURT TRIP IN TRANSIT
0.00 GREAT WEST PAYROLL DEDUCTION IN TRANSIT


26,606.02 OPERA HOUSE CREDIT CARD IN TRANSIT
0.00 POINT & PAY IN TRANSIT


153,876.24 


1,347,385.24 Ending GL Balance:


1,326,073.44 Ending Bank Balance:


Add: Deposits in Transit


Less:  Outstanding Checks


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


18.99 LAURIE ROBERTSON65413   06/27/2019
50.00 LAINEE CANNADY65968   09/12/2019


100.00 CHORUS PUBLIC HOUSE66035   09/19/2019
500.00 STOUGHTON YOUTH SOFTBALL66118   09/26/2019
25.00 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK66530   11/14/2019
6.26 PICK-N-SAVE66774   12/12/2019


359.66 TOWN OF MADISON EMS66792   12/12/2019
59.00 LAURIE PORTER67020   01/09/2020
76.37 SHRED-IT67096   01/16/2020


42,972.80 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB67270   02/06/2020
3,032.75 DANE COUNTY TREASURER67333   02/13/2020
2,951.25 DANE COUNTY TREASURER67390   02/20/2020


10.00 BRYCE WINTERS67440   02/20/2020
70.00 MARJORIE KITTLESON67493   02/27/2020


705.00 THE SUBDUDES67539   02/27/2020
3,740.00 THE SUBDUDES67540   02/27/2020


125.00 HELENE ANDROSKI67557   03/05/2020
4,000.00 ALBERT CUMMINGS67565   03/05/2020


5.00 DANE COUNTY LIBRARY SERVICE67567   03/05/2020
400.00 FOUR SEASONS THEATRE67575   03/05/2020


2,800.00 RUTH MOODY67597   03/05/2020
90.00 STOUGHTON YOGA67612   03/05/2020


310.00 YERAM YOON67623   03/05/2020
1,381.25 DANE COUNTY TREASURER67642   03/12/2020


31.84 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK67658   03/12/2020
50.00 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE67670   03/12/2020


1,192.00 AYRES ASSOCIATES INC67722   03/26/2020
50.00 R & S INSURANCE67756   03/26/2020
60.00 ELIZA GUTIERREZ67787   04/02/2020
31.65 IRENE KILCOYNE67792   04/02/2020


117.12 RUTH PUNDT67798   04/02/2020







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/4Page
:


05/20/2020 07:47 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020
Reconciliation Record ID: 162


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


1,722.00 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON67805   04/02/2020
100.00 WILLIAM BERRY67814   04/09/2020


9.00 BRADLEY BRAZIL67817   04/09/2020
200.00 DANE COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES67823   04/09/2020
235.00 DEPT OF REVENUE67826   04/09/2020
80.00 CRYSTAL HANSON67839   04/09/2020
40.00 ALLISON HEGGELUND67840   04/09/2020
40.00 MALLORY JOHNSON67843   04/09/2020
50.00 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK67847   04/09/2020
40.00 DANIEL MOWRY67858   04/09/2020
80.00 EMILY MOYER67860   04/09/2020


134.00 CERINA PARTRIDGE67867   04/09/2020
40.00 AMY PREVOST67874   04/09/2020
48.00 LYNN  REINDERS67875   04/09/2020
4.26 CARA RINTAMAKI67879   04/09/2020


40.00 AMANDA SINCLAIR67889   04/09/2020
40.00 BEN THOMPSON67897   04/09/2020
24.00 LINDSAY VILLAVICENCIO67902   04/09/2020


3,079.69 3 RIVERS BILLING INC67916   04/16/2020
55.00 B&H LAWNCARE67922   04/16/2020


360.50 CONNEY SAFETY PRODUCTS67928   04/16/2020
5,212.00 DANE COUNTY TREASURER -MAMSWAP67932   04/16/2020


26.38 DAVID GOEDEN67944   04/16/2020
78.08 KATHLEEN HOWARD67946   04/16/2020
52.76 CRAIG JOHNSON67950   04/16/2020
52.76 ROBERT KLUGE67951   04/16/2020


100.00 LEAGUE OF WISC MUNICIPALITIES67954   04/16/2020
117.12 RUTH PUNDT67965   04/16/2020
150.00 WPRA67986   04/16/2020


1,543.90 ALDI INC67988   04/23/2020
223.00 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSN67990   04/23/2020


1,729.41 KAYSER AUTOMOTIVE GROUP68005   04/23/2020
52.61 KING ELECTRIC68006   04/23/2020
20.00 KAYLA LIBBY68009   04/23/2020


21,347.00 MOYER'S INC68015   04/23/2020
4,157.00 NIESLON COMMUNICATIONS INC68016   04/23/2020


8.95 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC68025   04/23/2020
539.07 AIRGAS USA LLC68032   04/30/2020
58.92 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC68033   04/30/2020
17.27 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L68034   04/30/2020
80.00 LUANN ALME68035   04/30/2020
19.99 ASLESON'S HARDWARE68036   04/30/2020


2,384.00 AYRES ASSOCIATES INC68037   04/30/2020
80.00 JENNY BAESEMAN68038   04/30/2020
70.00 MARY BARNETT68039   04/30/2020


195.00 ROBERT BARNETT68040   04/30/2020
80.00 JEFF BRIKOWSKI68041   04/30/2020
70.00 LAURA CARPENTER68042   04/30/2020
42.00 NAJWA CHADLI68043   04/30/2020


441.25 CHEM-DRY OF MADISON68044   04/30/2020
199.60 CHOICE1 HEALTH CARE SERVICES LLC68045   04/30/2020
480.00 CITY OF MADISON TREASURER68046   04/30/2020
70.00 JEFF CUNNINGHAM68047   04/30/2020


344.82 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC68048   04/30/2020
838.35 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C68049   04/30/2020
58.20 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC68050   04/30/2020
70.00 HENRI DUTILLY68051   04/30/2020
70.00 KATHY DUTILLY68052   04/30/2020


375.00 EMPATHIA INC68053   04/30/2020







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 3/4Page
:


05/20/2020 07:47 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020
Reconciliation Record ID: 162


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


508.50 EWALD'S HARTFORD FORD LINCOLN68054   04/30/2020
375.29 FITCH RONA EMS DISTRICT68055   04/30/2020
80.00 SHARON FOLBRECHT68056   04/30/2020


801.90 FOREVER SANDFILL & LIMESTONE68057   04/30/2020
335.61 GALL'S INC68058   04/30/2020


1,271.00 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.68059   04/30/2020
70.00 JASON GERMAIN68060   04/30/2020


2,017.71 GRABER MANUFACTURING INC68061   04/30/2020
70.00 MICHAEL GRIGGS68062   04/30/2020
70.00 PAM GRIGGS68063   04/30/2020


124.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 2 INC68064   04/30/2020
70.00 RUSS HORTON68065   04/30/2020
80.00 JOYCE KAPING68066   04/30/2020


180.00 AMY KETTERER68067   04/30/2020
240.00 TONY KETTERER68068   04/30/2020
80.00 STEPHEN KRCMA68069   04/30/2020


443.87 KROGER68070   04/30/2020
70.00 MARTIN LAMERS68071   04/30/2020


125.00 LINDA LANE68072   04/30/2020
115.00 DREW LATSCH68073   04/30/2020
136.55 LEGALSHIELD68074   04/30/2020
22.00 LOGO PROMOTIONS, LLC68075   04/30/2020
86.59 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT68076   04/30/2020
70.00 TIM MARKLE68077   04/30/2020
70.00 TRACY MARKLE68078   04/30/2020


129.00 BOB MCGEEVER68079   04/30/2020
80.00 CORINNE MC GEEVER68080   04/30/2020
80.00 NICK MCGLYNN68081   04/30/2020


208.00 METAL CULVERTS INC68082   04/30/2020
258.69 MICHELS MATERIALS68083   04/30/2020
206.00 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL68084   04/30/2020
400.61 MIDWEST EQUIPMENT SPECIALISTS INC.68085   04/30/2020
80.00 MORGAN NEUENFELD68086   04/30/2020
80.00 SCOTT NEUENFELD68087   04/30/2020
70.00 DONNA OLSON68088   04/30/2020


375.00 ORGANIC SEDIMENT REMOVAL SYSTEMS68089   04/30/2020
80.00 DEBORA PIPER68090   04/30/2020
17.37 RICOH USA INC68091   04/30/2020
80.00 CATHY RIGDON68092   04/30/2020


2,450.00 SPORTS ENHANCEMENT ACADEMY68093   04/30/2020
232.00 SEAN STAKE68094   04/30/2020
93.96 STOUGHTON UTILITIES68095   04/30/2020


163.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE68096   04/30/2020
125.00 KRISTY THALACKER68097   04/30/2020


2,970.00 TKK ELECTRONICS LLC68098   04/30/2020
70.00 TIM TOROSIAN68099   04/30/2020


2,255.00 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE68100   04/30/2020
70.00 DIANE WALL-DONELAN68101   04/30/2020


164.51 WINDSTREAM68102   04/30/2020
70.00 ERIC WOLF68103   04/30/2020
70.00 MARIAH WOOSTER LEHMAN68104   04/30/2020


AmountNameCheck Number   Check Date


Payroll Checks


976.45 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS67913   04/17/2020


132,564.44 Total - 142 Outstanding Checks:
1,347,385.24 Adjusted Bank Balance


0.00 Unreconciled Difference:







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 4/4Page
:


05/20/2020 07:47 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020
Reconciliation Record ID: 162


DATE:REVIEWED BY:







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 1/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


3 RIVERSLISA04/01/2020100046546   C
 2,515.86  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/01/2020100046547   C
 1,884.70  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


STATE OF WILISA04/01/2020100046548   C
 60.00  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


VIERCK, DAN & WENDYJUDI04/01/2020100046549   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


HOESLY, KELSEYJUDI04/01/2020100046550   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


GRADY, STEPHENJUDI04/01/2020100046551   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


ALHAMBRA, LEOJUDI04/01/2020100046552   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 75.00  REMODEL & REPAIR401


125.00 


HOESLY, KELSEYJUDI04/01/2020100046553   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


TRUE CONSTRUCTIONJUDI04/01/2020100046554   C
 106.00  REMODEL & REPAIR 401


PETE MANLEY REMODELING LLCJUDI04/01/2020100046555   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 75.00  REMODEL & REPAIR401


175.00 


WEEBLE WORLD CHILD CARE CENTERJUDI04/01/2020100046556   C
 344.00  STORMWATER AND EROSION406
 205.00  STORMWATER AND EROSION406


549.00 


TRUE CONSTRUCTIONJUDI04/01/2020100046557   C
 0.60  BUILDING PERMITS401


LUKSICH, BRIANNEKARLA04/01/2020100046558   C
 75.00  PARKING FINES 35366302


RUFFINS, ISAIAHALEX04/01/2020100046559   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES301


ALBRIGHT, CHLOETRACIE04/01/2020100046560   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES PM PLAN301


VICKIE ERDAHLVICKIE04/02/2020100046561   C
 25.00  ENC PER # 5-209 ASHBERRY LN1201


RHINO EXTERIORSVICKIE04/02/2020100046562   C
 50.00  SO # 15 - 1208 KINGS LYNN RD1201


DAIRYLAND EPOXY FLOORSKARLA04/02/2020100046563   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36807302


SEDLITZ, KARI JOLORI04/02/2020100046564   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES - 34262302







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 2/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 95.00  PARKING FINES - 34269302


190.00 


DAIRYLAND ELECTRIC DEBBIE04/02/2020100046565   C
 71.18  0000003568MR


DANE COUNTY HUMAN SERVICESDEBBIE04/02/2020100046566   C
 799.17  0000003582MR


CHAVEZ, VINCENTLORI04/02/2020100046567   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES301


EDWARDS, JAMESLORI04/02/2020100046568   C
 137.00  DMV FEES303


ACTIVE NETWORKDEBBIE04/02/2020100046569   C
 53.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 60.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 120.00  PARK RESERVATION1101
 340.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 47.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 239.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (65.38) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


793.62 


KEPPLINGER, ELIZABETHDEBBIE04/02/2020100046570   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


FENDRICK, TOMDEBBIE04/02/2020100046571   C
 400.00  SPONSORSHIP9901


STOUGHTON HOSPITAL DEBBIE04/02/2020100046572   C
 1,400.00  SPONSORSHIP9901


R&S INSURANCE DEBBIE04/02/2020100046573   C
 200.00  SPONSORSHIP9901


JOHNSON,  THOMAS DEBBIE04/02/2020100046574   C
 200.00  SPONSORSHIP9901


ROBERTSON, CHRISTINALORI04/02/2020100046576   C
 98.80  #BD5835303301
 10.00  #BD5835314301


108.80 


HARP, ROBERTLORI04/02/2020100046577   C
 136.60  BAILS/FINES301


DUERST, THEODOREALEX04/02/2020100046578   C
 235.46  501AN303


DANE COUNTY HUMAN SERVICESDEBBIE04/03/2020100046579   C
 799.17  0000003596MR


PERFORMANCE EXTERIORS AND CONTRACTINDESIRE04/03/2020100046580   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BICKLEYKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046581   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOMDROMKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046582   C
 193.80  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LAFLASHKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046583   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 3/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HEGGESTADKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046584   C
 80.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STAROSTOVICKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046585   C
 160.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOMDROMKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046586   C
 193.80  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KAROLUSKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046587   C
 48.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


OLSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046588   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BICKLEYKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046589   C
 16.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LUICKKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046590   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LAFLASHKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046591   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BICKLEYKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046592   C
 16.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KAROLUSKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046593   C
 48.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LAFLASHKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046594   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KINNINGKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046595   C
 144.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KIDDERKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046596   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LAFLASHKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046597   C
 12.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BICKLEYKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046598   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GASSENKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046599   C
 32.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MARSHKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046600   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LUICKKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046601   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


DYBEVIKKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046602   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BRIETZMANKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046603   C
 150.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ORMONDKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046604   C
 75.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LUICKKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046605   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 4/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


AHLGRIMKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046606   C
 60.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STOKSTADKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046607   C
 80.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KINNINGKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046608   C
 160.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STROSTOVICKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046609   C
 170.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


THORNTONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046610   C
 80.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STOKSTADKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046611   C
 44.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MARSHALLKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046612   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MARSHALLKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046613   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOLMKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046614   C
 5.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046615   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOLMKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046616   C
 10.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PEDERSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046617   C
 5.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


EGREKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046618   C
 44.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046619   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LEWISKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046620   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046621   C
 24.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LEWISKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046622   C
 16.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSONKIMBERLY04/03/2020100046623   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KIMBERLY04/03/2020100046624   C
 1,135.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


SIMON, JOHNBARBI04/03/2020100046625   C
 172.00  DMV FEES 744ZTU RENEWAL 303


HECKELSMILLER,DEBRABARBI04/03/2020100046626   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES 35619301


RICE,SUSANSUSAN04/03/2020100046627   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES302


SUSAN04/03/2020100046628   C
 50.00  COURT PAYMENT PLAN301







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 5/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


WALRATH,BRANDEN JONSUSAN04/03/2020100046629   C
 147.00  PJ1452303


TOPP, BRETT KENDALLSUSAN04/03/2020100046630   C
 162.00  PLATE RENEWAL 303


HANSEN,WILLIAMSUSAN04/03/2020100046631   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


GONZALES,JUANITASUSAN04/04/2020100046632   C
 368.50  PJ1499 - WI TRUCK - TITLE/PLT303


GUTIERREZ, ELIZALISA04/06/2020100046633   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES302


OLSON, STACEYLISA04/06/2020100046634   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES302


THORPE, DARLALISA04/06/2020100046635   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


THORPE, DARLALISA04/06/2020100046636   C
 35.00  BAILS/FINES301


LAPOINTE, EVELINELISA04/06/2020100046637   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES302


MITCHELL, MALIKALEX04/06/2020100046638   C
 122.00  952ZUV303


RIGDON, MIKEDESIRE04/06/2020100046639   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


VOYSEY, ANDREALEX04/06/2020100046640   C
 122.00  AAF8292303


DAIRYLAND ELECTRIC DEBBIE04/07/2020100046641   C
 47.45  0000003589MR


DANE COUNTY TITLE DEBBIE04/07/2020100046642   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/07/2020100046643   C
 70.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/07/2020100046644   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


TUITE, ALICIADEBBIE04/07/2020100046645   C
 170.00  0000003592MR


VERONA, CITY OF DEBBIE04/07/2020100046646   C
 401.00  REIMBURESMENT FOR MEALS 9901


MCFARLAND, VILLAGE OF DEBBIE04/07/2020100046647   C
 284.00  REIMBURSEMENT FOR MEALS 9901


MONONA, CITY OF DEBBIE04/07/2020100046648   C
 366.98  OWI TRAFFIC GRANT DE 20199901


MCBORROUGH, SHEILALORI04/07/2020100046649   C
 25.00  #C780LM7RBQ301


HUBING, NANCYJUDI04/07/2020100046650   C
 17.00  15291DOG


GANDER, PETERJUDI04/07/2020100046651   C
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 17.00  15292DOG


LANDERUD, BRIAN/ALAINAJUDI04/07/2020100046652   C
 17.00  15293DOG


LANDERUD, BRIAN/ALAINAJUDI04/07/2020100046653   C
 17.00  15294DOG
 17.00  15295DOG


34.00 


JUDY, TED/DEBORAHJUDI04/07/2020100046654   C
 17.00  15296DOG


SCHNEEBERGER, SCOTTJUDI04/07/2020100046655   C
 17.00  15297DOG


LINDBLAD, TODDJUDI04/07/2020100046656   C
 17.00  15298DOG


HANSEN, JOELJUDI04/07/2020100046657   C
 17.00  15299DOG
 17.00  15300DOG


34.00 


PETE MANLEY REMODELING LLCJUDI04/07/2020100046658   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 80.00  REMODEL & REPAIR401


180.00 


MANLEY, PETEJUDI04/07/2020100046659   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


230.00 


MANLEY, PETEJUDI04/07/2020100046660   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


SWENSON, STEVEN HLORI04/07/2020100046661   C
 95.00  #35537302
 60.00  #36034302
 60.00  #36848302


215.00 


MANLEY, PETEJUDI04/07/2020100046662   C
 30.00  DRIVEWAY405
 117.00  RESIDENTIAL INCL.  DECK REVIE405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


222.00 


HECK, BRANDONJUDI04/07/2020100046663   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


105.00 


ROBERTSON, LYNNJUDI04/07/2020100046664   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
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FRIEDE & ASSOCIATES-SCOTT TRUEHLJUDI04/07/2020100046665   C
 305.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


THE GARDNER COMPANYJUDI04/07/2020100046666   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


SHERIDAN, DUSTINJUDI04/08/2020100046668   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


GROSSO FLEX BUILDINGSJUDI04/08/2020100046669   C
 415.00  STORMWATER AND EROSION406
 2,271.36  STORMWATER AND EROSION406


2,686.36 


GROSSO FLEX BUILDINGSJUDI04/08/2020100046670   C
 1,448.00  STORMWATER AND EROSION406
 205.00  STORMWATER AND EROSION406


1,653.00 


PIONEER ROOFINGJUDI04/08/2020100046671   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


CLARK, MADALYNKARLA04/08/2020100046672   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES BF105711-4301


SCHIGUR, TIM & JOELLJUDI04/08/2020100046673   C
 22.00  15301DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 69879914


57.00 


GONZALEZ, CECILIAJUDI04/08/2020100046674   C
 17.00  15302DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 69889914


52.00 


JOHNSON, SCOTT/PAMELAJUDI04/08/2020100046675   C
 17.00  15303DOG


THOMPSONCINDY04/08/2020100046676   C
 20.00  LOAN CLOSET806


HARRISONCINDY04/08/2020100046677   C
 100.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


CONSTANTINECINDY04/08/2020100046678   C
 52.80  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


ALMECINDY04/08/2020100046679   C
 25.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


AHN TRUSTCINDY04/08/2020100046680   C
 2,280.09  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


CELLULAR RECYCLERCINDY04/08/2020100046681   C
 49.50  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


LEHMAN, MARIAH & ASAPHJUDI04/08/2020100046682   C
 17.00  15304DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 69899914
 17.00  15305DOG
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 69909914
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86.00 


SCOFIELD, VERONICAJUDI04/08/2020100046683   C
 17.00  15306DOG


HEFTY, KASSIEJUDI04/08/2020100046684   C
 17.00  15307DOG


DIELS, RONALDJUDI04/08/2020100046685   C
 17.00  15308DOG


VILLAVICENCIO, JOHN & LINDSAYJUDI04/08/2020100046686   C
 17.00  15309DOG


PREFERRED TITLTE DEBBIE04/08/2020100046687   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


LIBRARY DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/08/2020100046688   C
 35.74  FINES702
 56.32  FINES702
 16.24  FINES702


108.30 


WALECKA, ANNAKARLA04/09/2020100046689   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 36304302


ARC CONTRACTING OF WISCONSIN INCDESIRE04/09/2020100046690   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


FOX WATERDESIRE04/09/2020100046691   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/10/2020100046692   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


PREFERRED TITLE LLC DEBBIE04/10/2020100046693   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ERDAHL, VICKIEDESIRE04/10/2020100046694   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


90.00 


MILLER, BLAKEALEX04/10/2020100046695   C
 40.00  36055302


KOFFEE KUPHOLLY04/13/2020100046696   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


WHATEVER BARHOLLY04/13/2020100046697   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB 901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL (2)906
 175.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT906
 100.00  CABARET906


1,075.00 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 9/29Page:05/20/2020 07:50 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


BRAUN, SARAHLISA04/13/2020100046698   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES  36065302


MUZZEY, KRISTIANLISA04/13/2020100046699   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES  36315302


MUZZEY, KRISTIANLISA04/13/2020100046700   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES  36921302


NELSON, ERICLISA04/13/2020100046701   C
 735.00  BAILS/FINES  BB058140-5301


JONES, ALIZALISA04/13/2020100046702   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES301


ROSTER, DARRYLLISA04/13/2020100046703   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES  C7801713DN301


ALDI, INCHOLLY04/13/2020100046704   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


ALDI, INC.HOLLY04/13/2020100046705   C
 10.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901


WALMARTHOLLY04/13/2020100046706   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQU901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT906


790.00 


BRICKSON, HOLLYLISA04/13/2020100046707   C
 35.00  PARKING FINES  33741302


MATHENY, EVERETTLISA04/13/2020100046708   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES  36855302


AMERICAN LEGIONHOLLY04/13/2020100046709   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKE906
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL906
 210.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT906
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906


975.00 


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046710   C
 790.87  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046711   C
 328.72  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


KWIK TRIP, INCHOLLY04/13/2020100046712   C
 400.00  CIGARETTE903
 400.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 80.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
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880.00 


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046713   C
 328.70  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046714   C
 5,959.33  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


PIZZA HUTHOLLY04/13/2020100046715   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-WINE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


220.00 


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046716   C
 516.80  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046717   C
 4,052.41  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/13/2020100046718   C
 4,454.03  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2020100046719   C
 43.92  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2020100046720   C
 8,092.19  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2020100046721   C
 218,561.14  GENERAL TRANSPORTATION AID9901


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2020100046722   C
 12,932.64  CONNECTING HIGHWAY AIDS9901


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2020100046723   C
 912.43  TO RECORD EMS SDC PAYMENTEMSTRIP


LYNN HALLHOLLY04/13/2020100046724   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 40.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL 906
 210.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT906


995.00 


CONNOR, MICHAELDESIRE04/13/2020100046725   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


KEGONSA PLUMBINGDESIRE04/13/2020100046726   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ROW405


KEGONSA PLUMBINGDESIRE04/13/2020100046727   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


CARNIVAL REAL ESTATEDESIRE04/13/2020100046728   C
 305.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 205.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


510.00 


MOLNAR, KATIEALEX04/13/2020100046729   C
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 60.00  36899302


THORNTON, CORYALEX04/13/2020100046730   C
 10.00  BF1057103301


THORNTON, CORYALEX04/13/2020100046731   C
 15.00  MISC REVENUES304


LEAGUE OF WI MUNICIPALITIESLISA04/14/2020100046732   C
 50.00  REFUND MAY TRAINING-AJ9901


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/14/2020100046733   C
 18,510.42  MARCH RETIREMENT9901


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/14/2020100046734   C
 46,750.63  0000003599MR


STATE OF WI - DNRLISA04/14/2020100046735   C
 84,489.50  DNR GRANT9901


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/14/2020100046736   C
 90,525.00  HULTS ROAD DEBT SERVICE9901


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/14/2020100046737   C
 883,974.00  2019 PILOT 9901


NELSON, JOAN & THOMASHOLLY04/14/2020100046738   C
 10.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JOHNSON, RICHARD & KATHYHOLLY04/14/2020100046739   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BERSING, RANDI & STEVENHOLLY04/14/2020100046740   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KLUEVER, KENNETHHOLLY04/14/2020100046741   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HOLSINGER, ROBERT & LINDAHOLLY04/14/2020100046742   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


AMVETS POST 151HOLLY04/14/2020100046743   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MYLREA, JOYCE & BROOKEHOLLY04/14/2020100046744   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JUDERJAHN, CHARLES & KATHRYNHOLLY04/14/2020100046745   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MCFADDEN, LOISHOLLY04/14/2020100046746   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSHOLLY04/14/2020100046747   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WEBER, BOYDHOLLY04/14/2020100046748   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STAATS, ALANHOLLY04/14/2020100046749   C
 230.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HEDSROM, KURT & CYNTHIAHOLLY04/14/2020100046750   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


EVERSOLL, MARY & MICHAELHOLLY04/14/2020100046751   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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WILKER, SCOTT & BRANDEEHOLLY04/14/2020100046752   C
 75.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DERR, PATRICIA AND DAVIDHOLLY04/14/2020100046753   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FIDELITY DEBBIE04/14/2020100046754   C
 0.08  DIVIDEND9901


FIDELITY DEBBIE04/14/2020100046755   C
 161.93  DIVIDEND9901


PLEASANT SPRINGS, TOWN OF DEBBIE04/14/2020100046756   C
 7,000.00  DONATIONS 9901


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/14/2020100046757   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


CHICAGO TITLE DEBBIE04/14/2020100046758   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


HANDELAND, EVELYNMASON04/14/2020100046759   C
 10.00  MISC. DONATION9901


TARPINIAN, SUEMASON04/14/2020100046760   C
 15.00  MISC. DONATION9901


DUETSCHER, IRENEMASON04/14/2020100046761   C
 20.00  MISC. DONATION9901


GAMOKE, JAMES & KATHLEENHOLLY04/14/2020100046762   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


OREGON, VILLAGE OF DEBBIE04/14/2020100046763   C
 275.00  PD INSERVICE MEALS 9901


LIGGETT, JOSEPH & SARAHHOLLY04/14/2020100046764   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MONONA, CITY OF DEBBIE04/14/2020100046765   C
 374.00  INSERVICE MEALS 9901


HOPPE, RICHARD & KATHLEENHOLLY04/14/2020100046766   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HOLLOWAY, NANCYHOLLY04/14/2020100046767   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


THOMPSON, INGRIDHOLLY04/14/2020100046768   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HALL, RICHARD & DOLORESHOLLY04/14/2020100046769   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HASBURGH, LAURAHOLLY04/14/2020100046770   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BENSON, MARGOHOLLY04/14/2020100046771   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FLOWER, INGAHOLLY04/14/2020100046772   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MCFARLAND STATE BANKHOLLY04/14/2020100046773   C
 117.36  FOOD PANTRY501


MULLEN, THOMAS & CHARLOTTEHOLLY04/14/2020100046774   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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EDGEWOOD COLLEGE STUDENT NURSES ASSOHOLLY04/14/2020100046775   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PETERSON, JAMES & CHRISTINEHOLLY04/14/2020100046776   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KIRLEY, PATTYHOLLY04/14/2020100046777   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAGEN, RICHARDHOLLY04/14/2020100046778   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HUBING, NANCY & TODDHOLLY04/14/2020100046779   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


COOK, CHRISTOPHER & SUSANHOLLY04/14/2020100046780   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ELVEKROG, NANCY & JOHNHOLLY04/14/2020100046781   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LAPIDAKIS, JERRYHOLLY04/14/2020100046782   C
 40.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GAMOKE, JAMES & KATHLEENHOLLY04/14/2020100046783   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CHRISTENSEN, NORMANHOLLY04/14/2020100046784   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MADDEN, PAUL & KATHRYNHOLLY04/14/2020100046785   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WIESE, ELIZABETH & DANIELHOLLY04/14/2020100046786   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KLINGENBER, TERRIEHOLLY04/14/2020100046787   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SHELLEY M MOFFATT LIVING TRUSTHOLLY04/14/2020100046788   C
 2,500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KNUTSON, DIANEHOLLY04/14/2020100046789   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MURPHY, BERNICEHOLLY04/14/2020100046790   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MCLELLAN, JODIEHOLLY04/14/2020100046791   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HOLLOWAY, GARYHOLLY04/14/2020100046792   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ASLESON, RICHARD & JEANHOLLY04/14/2020100046793   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STOUGHTON ROTARYHOLLY04/14/2020100046794   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FONS, MARYHOLLY04/14/2020100046795   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STOUGHTON SPIRITSHOLLY04/14/2020100046796   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
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 100.00  CIGARETTE903


720.00 


MANDT COMMUNITY CENTERHOLLY04/14/2020100046797   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


ERIK NORINVICKIE04/15/2020100046798   C
 25.00  ENC PER #6 -DUMPSTER1201


ELECTRONIC RECYCLINGVICKIE04/15/2020100046799   C
 330.00  ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEE1205


LAYNE SCHNEIDERVICKIE04/15/2020100046800   C
 15.00  RIVERSIDE 2-133-16-11203


3 RIVERSLISA04/15/2020100046801   C
 2,405.09  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/15/2020100046802   C
 328.70  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


JAGAT PETROLEUMHOLLY04/15/2020100046803   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


220.00 


QUADE, MARYHOLLY04/15/2020100046804   C
 150.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WILLETT, ROBERT & MARYHOLLY04/15/2020100046805   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LAZ BISTROHOLLY04/15/2020100046806   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


OLSEN, ERICLORI04/15/2020100046807   C
 200.00  BAILS/FINES301


HUSEMAN, LUCASBARBI04/15/2020100046808   C
 661.00  BAILS/FINES BC595195-6301


SCHOECHERT, BRITTANYLISA04/16/2020100046809   C
 75.00  BAILS/FINES301


PETERSON, KYLELISA04/16/2020100046810   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES301


LONG, JERIDLISA04/16/2020100046811   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES301


MOSCATO, DOMENICOLISA04/16/2020100046813   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


SALTZ, PAIGELISA04/16/2020100046814   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


URBAN, LISALISA04/16/2020100046815   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES302


KITTLESON, AMYLISA04/16/2020100046816   C
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 20.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


SWADLEY, TIMDESIRE04/16/2020100046817   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


LANDERS, JOHNDESIRE04/16/2020100046818   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


JANKIEWICZ, VINCENTDESIRE04/16/2020100046819   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


LAKE LAND BUILDERSDESIRE04/16/2020100046820   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


BAWULSKI, JOSEPHDESIRE04/16/2020100046821   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCHHOLLY04/16/2020100046822   C
 693.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KOSS, FRANKHOLLY04/16/2020100046823   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KIM WALTERHOLLY04/16/2020100046824   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901


JENKS, DAN DEBBIE04/17/2020100046825   C
 1,186.96  0000003607MR


ALVIN, ELIZABETH DEBBIE04/17/2020100046851   C
 55.00  GARDEN PLOT 9901


ACTIVE NETWORK DEBBIE04/17/2020100046853   C
 (53.00) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (25.00) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 80.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 100.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (14.47) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


87.53 


WOODWARD COMMUNICATIONS DEBBIE04/17/2020100046854   C
 250.00  REC GUIDE 9901


HELSTAD, RICKDEBBIE04/17/2020100046855   C
 1,186.96  0000003605MR


VERONA, CITY OF DEBBIE04/17/2020100046856   C
 356.00  MEALS FOR MARCH INSERVICE 9901


3 RIVERSLISA04/20/2020100046826   C
 6,987.74  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


BYFIELD, ANNHOLLY04/20/2020100046827   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KIRLEY, PATTYHOLLY04/20/2020100046828   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HALVERSON, LINDAHOLLY04/20/2020100046829   C
 130.00  FOOD PANTRY501


REKOWSKI, JERRY & DIANA HOLLY04/20/2020100046830   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SUNDBY, SCOTTHOLLY04/20/2020100046831   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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BOSKY, TERRENCEHOLLY04/20/2020100046832   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DEAKS PUB AND GRILLHOLLY04/20/2020100046833   C
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL TABLE906
 350.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT (10)906


1,015.00 


GIMPY & GAPPY LLCHOLLY04/20/2020100046834   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


CHEESERSHOLLY04/20/2020100046835   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-20901


DOLLAR GENERALHOLLY04/20/2020100046836   C
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


DIAMOND JUBILEEHOLLY04/20/2020100046837   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


120.00 


CONDON, GEORGEHOLLY04/20/2020100046838   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MYREN, DAVID & DEBHOLLY04/20/2020100046839   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


COMPEER FINANCIALHOLLY04/20/2020100046840   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STOUGHTON FFA ALUMNIHOLLY04/20/2020100046841   C
 2,500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


OLSTAD, JAMES & SONJIAHOLLY04/20/2020100046842   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


NATIONAL GUARDIAN LIFE INSURANCEHOLLY04/20/2020100046843   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JAEHNIG-OLSON, LISAHOLLY04/20/2020100046844   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HALLINAN, JOHN & JOYCE TIKALSKYHOLLY04/20/2020100046845   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WESTON, RODNEYHOLLY04/20/2020100046846   C
 600.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LAMBOLEY, BARBARAHOLLY04/20/2020100046847   C
 125.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BENSON, ELISABETH & JONATHANHOLLY04/20/2020100046848   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WOPAT, JONATHAN & MARIAHOLLY04/20/2020100046849   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


OLSON, DONNAHOLLY04/20/2020100046850   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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LLOYD, ROBERTHOLLY04/20/2020100046852   C
 150.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


PETERS, DERRICKDESIRE04/20/2020100046857   C
 100.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


TIM MILLERVICKIE04/20/2020100046858   C
 20.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


DAVE JONES, INCDESIRE04/20/2020100046859   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


ESPASANDIN, MARCELODESIRE04/20/2020100046860   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-FENCING405


H.J. PERTZBORNDESIRE04/20/2020100046861   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


TUNDRALAND HOME IMPROVEMENTDESIRE04/20/2020100046862   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


LIBBY, CHRISTIANDESIRE04/20/2020100046863   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


TOTAL WATER TREATMENTDESIRE04/20/2020100046864   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


CHICAGO TITLE DEBBIE04/20/2020100046865   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


GUTSMIEDL, JEANADESIRE04/20/2020100046866   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


CHARLIE'S PAINTLESS DENT REPAIRDESIRE04/20/2020100046867   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


LAKESTONE PROPERTIESDESIRE04/20/2020100046868   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


125.00 


LANDMARK BUILDERS INCDESIRE04/20/2020100046869   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 512.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


682.00 


FRIEDE & ASSOCIATES LLCDESIRE04/20/2020100046870   C
 1,112.56  STORMWATER AND EROSION406


TRAINOR, AIDANSUSAN04/20/2020100046871   C
 714.60  BE673507-2301


PUGH, VADIMSUSAN04/20/2020100046872   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES301


MEMBERS TITLE GROUP DEBBIE04/21/2020100046873   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


REE, CHARLESBARBI04/21/2020100046874   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36830 302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 366832302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36833302
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180.00 


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/21/2020100046875   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


LACROSSE SIGN GROUPDESIRE04/21/2020100046876   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


FELDCO FACTORY DIRECTDESIRE04/21/2020100046877   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/21/2020100046879   C
 70.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


NISSLER, KARLHOLLY04/21/2020100046880   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/21/2020100046881   C
 105.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


SCHMIDT, SAVANALISA04/21/2020100046882   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES302


ANNEN, TYLISA04/21/2020100046883   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


ANNEN, TYLISA04/21/2020100046884   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES301


ANNEN, TYLISA04/21/2020100046885   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


ANNEN, TYLISA04/21/2020100046886   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


ANNEN, TYLISA04/21/2020100046887   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


BERNAL-VALLE, LINDALISA04/21/2020100046888   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


3 RIVERSLISA04/22/2020100046889   C
 365.23  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/22/2020100046890   C
 3,784.99  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


STOUGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICTLISA04/22/2020100046891   C
 1,000.00  RENT9901


STOUGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICTLISA04/22/2020100046892   C
 892.19  2018 P.P. CHARGEBACK9907


MANSON, BARBARAHOLLY04/22/2020100046893   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CRUZ, KIARALORI04/22/2020100046894   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


FLOWER, INGAHOLLY04/22/2020100046895   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JORDAN, SYLVIAHOLLY04/22/2020100046896   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FURSETH, WILMAHOLLY04/22/2020100046897   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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PIETRUSZYNSKI, CYNTHIA & BRANDONHOLLY04/22/2020100046898   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DEXTER, DANIELLE & DAVIDHOLLY04/22/2020100046899   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


RAYMOND, VICTORIAHOLLY04/22/2020100046900   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PEURA, REBECCAHOLLY04/22/2020100046901   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


REUSCHLEIN, MARYHOLLY04/22/2020100046902   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


GRIGGS, MICHAELHOLLY04/22/2020100046903   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


BECCO INCHOLLY04/22/2020100046904   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901


620.00 


KROGERHOLLY04/22/2020100046905   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903
 35.00  MISC LICENSES906


755.00 


HAMMIS, JAMESDEBBIE04/22/2020100046906   C
 2,634.98  0000003537MR


MCFARLAND STATE BANK LISA04/23/2020100046907   C
 2,186.63  0000003608MR


LIBRARY DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/23/2020100046908   C
 10.00  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704
 5.80  FINES702
 9.15  FINES702
 2.64  FINES702


27.59 


POWERS, TIMOTHY DEBBIE04/23/2020100046909   C
 35.00  COMUNNITY GARDEN 9901


FRAGER, MITCHELL DEBBIE04/23/2020100046910   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


REHM, TERRY DEBBIE04/23/2020100046911   C
 35.00  GARDEN 9901


MARTINIEZ, TRACIDEBBIE04/23/2020100046912   C
 35.00  GARDEN 9901


ESSELMAN, BRENDA DEBBIE04/23/2020100046913   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


RIGDON, CATHY DEBBIE04/23/2020100046914   C
 35.00  GARDEN 9901
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MCCREDIE, CHRISTINE DEBBIE04/23/2020100046915   C
 55.00  GARDEN 9901


MCFARLAND. VILLAGE OF DEBBIE04/23/2020100046916   C
 302.00  MEALS FOR MARCH INSERVICE 9901


PERFORMANCE EXTERIORS AND CONTRACTINDESIRE04/23/2020100046917   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


CRUZ, KIARAKARLA04/23/2020100046918   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 35987302


GREENLER, LELANDHOLLY04/23/2020100046919   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501


AVALARA LISA04/23/2020100046920   C
 419.02  ROOM TAX9903


NO SHORTS ELECTRICDESIRE04/23/2020100046921   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


KWIK TRIP, INCDESIRE04/23/2020100046922   C
 117.60  BUILDING PERMITS401
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 85.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


442.60 


HETA, NAIMDESIRE04/23/2020100046923   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


150.00 


SMITH, BEAUDESIRE04/23/2020100046924   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


DAVIS STEEL BUILDINGS INCDESIRE04/23/2020100046925   C
 170.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EARLY START401


GAMOKECINDY04/24/2020100046926   C
 100.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


SMITHCINDY04/24/2020100046927   C
 100.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


TOFTECINDY04/24/2020100046928   C
 50.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


FFA ALUMNICINDY04/24/2020100046929   C
 500.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


DANE COUNTYL TITLEDEBBIE04/24/2020100046930   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


YLVISAKER, NORAHOLLY04/24/2020100046931   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MEINHOLZ, MICHAELHOLLY04/24/2020100046932   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LIGGETT, JOSEPH & SARAHHOLLY04/24/2020100046933   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FISHER, LEEHOLLY04/24/2020100046934   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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CALLENDER, CASSIUSDESIRE04/24/2020100046935   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


PIONEER ROOFINGDESIRE04/24/2020100046936   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


HOMESTEAD TITLE DEBBIE04/24/2020100046937   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ROLLINS, QUINTEZLORI04/25/2020100046938   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES301


MARTINSON, MARTINLISA04/27/2020100046939   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


3 RIVERSLISA04/27/2020100046940   C
 826.27  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/27/2020100046941   C
 9,190.61  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


MATSON CUSTOM HOMESDESIRE04/27/2020100046942   C
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


JANISCH, BRIANDESIRE04/27/2020100046943   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


RANDALL, JOHN & NANCY DEBBIE04/27/2020100046944   C
 500.00  0511-064-4553-5/7043-10SPEC


HANSEN, RODGER & LINDAHOLLY04/27/2020100046945   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SILBAUGH ENGINEERING, INCHOLLY04/27/2020100046946   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DANE, COUNTY OF DEBBIE04/27/2020100046947   C
 165.39  FUNDING 9901


WIESE, LANCE & NOREENHOLLY04/27/2020100046948   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSHOLLY04/27/2020100046949   C
 5,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LYNCH, DIANEHOLLY04/27/2020100046950   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSHOLLY04/27/2020100046951   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


REYNOLDS, STEPHANIEHOLLY04/27/2020100046952   C
 1,200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LIBRARY DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/27/2020100046953   C
 9.57  FINES702
 15.07  FINES702
 4.35  FINES702


28.99 


LINEHAM, DAN & JESSHOLLY04/27/2020100046954   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


THAIN, GERLAD DEBBIE04/27/2020100046955   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901
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ERDAHL, SHIRLEYHOLLY04/27/2020100046956   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PUNDT, ARTHUR DEBBIE04/27/2020100046957   C
 35.00  GARDEN 9901


BJELDE, RICHARD DEBBIE04/27/2020100046958   C
 70.00  GARDEN 9901


ST.MARIE, CHERYLHOLLY04/27/2020100046959   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DARGEL, DONDEBBIE04/27/2020100046960   C
 55.00  GARDEN9901


TALBERT, WILLIAM DEBBIE04/27/2020100046961   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


JOHNSON, HOLLIS HOLLY04/27/2020100046962   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAGMANN, KENNETHHOLLY04/27/2020100046963   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ACTIVE NETWORK DEBBIE04/27/2020100046964   C
 50.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (4.16) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


45.84 


SALZER, DIANEHOLLY04/27/2020100046965   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


NELSON, JACKHOLLY04/27/2020100046966   C
 75.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BRENNY, TERRENCEHOLLY04/27/2020100046967   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SCHULER, LARRYHOLLY04/27/2020100046968   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAWKINSON, CAROLHOLLY04/27/2020100046969   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BROWN, JWHOLLY04/27/2020100046970   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ARMSTRONG, HERBERT / RUTH TRUST ACCTHOLLY04/27/2020100046971   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LEWIS, SYLVIAHOLLY04/27/2020100046972   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KLECKNER, JEAN & DARYLHOLLY04/27/2020100046973   C
 10.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KELLOGG, JANICEHOLLY04/27/2020100046974   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


TUTTLE, PAMELAHOLLY04/27/2020100046975   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS, ST ANNESHOLLY04/27/2020100046976   C
 6,740.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WALKER, BRYCELORI04/27/2020100046977   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES301
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3 RIVERSLISA04/28/2020100046978   C
 1,666.65  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


KOEHLER-WOODS, LAURIELISA04/28/2020100046979   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES302


KOEHLER-WOODS, LAURIELISA04/28/2020100046980   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES302


KOEHLER-WOODS, LAURIELISA04/28/2020100046981   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


KANIA, ZUZANNALISA04/28/2020100046982   C
 735.00  BAILS/FINES301


KANIA, ZUZANNALISA04/28/2020100046983   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


STATE OF WILISA04/28/2020100046984   C
 109.00  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


SCHAEFER LAND DESIGNDESIRE04/28/2020100046985   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONIG405


200.00 


JENNINGS & WOLDT REMODELINGDESIRE04/28/2020100046986   C
 613.86  STORMWATER AND EROSION406


WHITMAN, JULIEDESIRE04/28/2020100046987   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONINGDESIRE04/28/2020100046988   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


LEADING EDGE FENCINGDESIRE04/28/2020100046989   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


GORE, JOHNDESIRE04/28/2020100046990   C
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


ROSSIS PIZZADESIRE04/28/2020100046991   C
 85.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 85.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


410.00 


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/28/2020100046992   C
 19,116.74  APRIL RETIREMENT9901


VICKIE ERDAHLVICKIE04/28/2020100046993   C
 15.00  DEED TRSF 2-133-16-11203


J ERDMAN BUILDERSVICKIE04/28/2020100046994   C
 50.00  SO PER #7 -1301 HOEL AVE1201


H J PERTZBORN PLUMBINGVICKIE04/28/2020100046995   C
 50.00  S O PER#17 409/411 FIFTH ST S1201


TDS METROCOM LLCVICKIE04/28/2020100046996   C
 9,126.72  S O PER # 16 - NW SEC OF CITY1201
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  Distribution   Description


OPERA HOUSE DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/28/2020100046997   C
 333.00  TICKET SALES601
 (120.00) TICKET SALES601
 (4,900.00) TICKET SALES601
 (2,175.00) TICKET SALES601
 (10,901.00) TICKET SALES601
 225.00  GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATES 9901
 (120.00) TICKET SALES601
 75.00  TICKET SALES601
 105.00  TICKET SALES601
 875.00  TICKET SALES601
 (275.00) TICKET SALES601
 200.00  TICKET SALES601
 90.00  TICKET SALES601
 (1,423.81) SALES TAX 9901
 (3,311.10) CONV FEE/SHIP/CC FEE9901
 800.00  MEMBERSHIP9901
 512.26  DONATIONS 9901
 (634.96) GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATES 9901
 3,370.09  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901
 (962.50) TICKET SALES601
 (2,058.75) TICKET SALES601
 (337.50) TICKET SALES601
 (455.00) TICKET SALES601
 (1,000.00) TICKET SALES601
 (910.00) TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 (300.00) TICKET SALES601
 27.00  TICKET SALES601
 (585.00) TICKET SALES601
 (104.15) TICKET SALES601
 (810.00) TICKET SALES601
 44.00  TICKET SALES601
 (1,161.00) TICKET SALES601
 (200.00) TICKET SALES601
 (180.00) TICKET SALES601
 157.50  TICKET SALES601


(26,180.92)


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/29/2020100046998   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


MARTINEZ, TRACIDEBBIE04/29/2020100046999   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


ROATCH, SARAH DEBBIE04/29/2020100047000   C
 35.00  GARDEN9901


FRIEDE & ASSOCIATES DEBBIE04/29/2020100047001   C
 21,739.00  PLANS/STORM/EC REPORT SUBMITT9901


WIENKE, AUSTINDESIRE04/29/2020100047002   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


HOLVERSON, CURTISDESIRE04/29/2020100047003   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


GAMOKE, JAMES & KATHLEENHOLLY04/29/2020100047004   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JOHNSEN, STEVENHOLLY04/29/2020100047005   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501
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NOYCE, VIRGINIAHOLLY04/29/2020100047006   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


TIEDJE, CHRISTINEHOLLY04/29/2020100047007   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MARTIN, PHILLIP & NANCYHOLLY04/29/2020100047008   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GARGANO, JOSEPH & CATHERINEHOLLY04/29/2020100047009   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BEARDMORE, GREG & MARYHOLLY04/29/2020100047010   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


NEL-CAR CORPORATIONHOLLY04/29/2020100047011   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKE906


730.00 


YARD WASTE SITEVICKIE04/29/2020100047012   C
 2,180.00  PERMITS SOLD 4-25-201202


ALBRIGHT, CHLOESUSAN04/30/2020100047013   C
 88.80  PAYMENT PLAN FOR COURT301


YARD WASTE SITEVICKIE04/30/2020100047014   C
 730.00  PERMITS SOLD 4/28/201202


MADISON COLLEGELISA04/30/2020100047015   C
 74.07  2018 P.P. CHARGEBACKS9901


MERSHONIAN CIDERY, LLCHOLLY04/30/2020100047016   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901


BEYER, ROBERTLORI04/30/2020100047017   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


HANSON, PAULINEHOLLY04/30/2020100047018   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WATKINS, MELISSAHOLLY04/30/2020100047019   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WEBER, RON & MONICAHOLLY04/30/2020100047020   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


TAYLOR, KIM & MICHAELHOLLY04/30/2020100047021   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WALLING, JOSEPHHOLLY04/30/2020100047022   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FELIX, MARKHOLLY04/30/2020100047023   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PICKNEY, STEPHEN & ERICSON, DEBORAHHOLLY04/30/2020100047024   C
 40.00  FOOD PANTRY501


VFWHOLLY04/30/2020100047025   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
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 150.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSEMENT906
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKE906


780.00 


KREBS, DAVIDLYDIA04/30/2020100047026   C
 21.00  15310DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69919914


56.00 


DONOHUE, JESSICALYDIA04/30/2020100047027   C
 17.00  15311DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69929914


52.00 


NEISEN CAMPBELLLYDIA04/30/2020100047028   C
 17.00  15313DOG


KRIESER, STEVELYDIA04/30/2020100047029   C
 22.00  15312DOG


EHRETS, SARA\BENLYDIA04/30/2020100047030   C
 17.00  15314DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69939914


52.00 


REIN, GABRIELDESIRE04/30/2020100047031   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


150.00 


VIKING DAY CAMP LLCDESIRE04/30/2020100047032   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DOC FEE405
 415.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


455.00 


SHOEMAKER, EILEENDESIRE04/30/2020100047033   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


ROBERTSON, LYNNDESIRE04/30/2020100047034   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


JOE HANSON CONSTRUCTIONDESIRE04/30/2020100047035   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


150.00 


SCANU, WILLIAMDESIRE04/30/2020100047036   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


METZLER ROOFING INCDESIRE04/30/2020100047037   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BIRCH, GARYDESIRE04/30/2020100047038   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


KING ELECTRICDESIRE04/30/2020100047039   C
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


BRAUND, MATT &  LAURALYDIA04/30/2020100047040   C
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 22.00  15315DOG
 22.00  15316DOG


44.00 


SCHNEIDER, ARIELLYDIA04/30/2020100047041   C
 17.00  15317DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69949914


52.00 


LEITERMANN, JAYMELYDIA04/30/2020100047042   C
 17.00  15318DOG
 17.00  15319DOG


34.00 


GALBERTH, HARVEYLYDIA04/30/2020100047043   C
 17.00  15320DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69959914


52.00 


ADAMS, CASSANDRALYDIA04/30/2020100047044   C
 17.00  15321DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-69969914


52.00 


TEUBERT, JAIDYNALEX04/30/2020100047045   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES301


21,739.00 100-00000-28110 CONTRACTOR DEPOSITS
220,000.00 100-00000-25900 DUE TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND


7,032.53 100-00000-25800 DUE TO ELEC UTILITY
431,034.00 100-00000-25600 DUE TO WATER UTILITY
172,000.00 100-00000-25450 DUE TO LIBRARY
53,907.47 100-00000-25412 DUE TO SAFETY BLDG-FUND
13,542.51 100-00000-22210 COURT FINES


332.00 100-00000-22111 DANE COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE
551.00 100-00000-22110 DOG LICENSE


37,627.16 100-00000-21515 RETIREMENT PAYABLE
3,756.60 100-00000-21113 MEAL SITE REVENUES
7,438.32 100-00000-13010 UFDSAL
1,046.43 100-00000-13010 UFDBEN
1,274.98 100-00000-13010 STRTMN
1,360.00 100-00000-13010 ST OPE
2,373.92 100-00000-13010 RET HE


24,247.99 100-00000-13010 QUARTZ
1,808.71 100-00000-13010 QUART1
2,132.93 100-00000-13010 PW CHA


170.00 100-00000-13010 MOW
87.99 100-00000-13010 MISCP
548.61 100-00000-13010 LIFE I
28.90 100-00000-13010 LGSHLD


1,598.34 100-00000-13010 CO YOU
78.91 100-00000-13010 AFLAC
74.07 100-00000-12330 DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES
892.19 100-00000-12330 DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES


*** TOTAL BY GL DISTRIBUTION ***


1,549,918.83 Total of 496 Receipts 
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333.00 245-00000-46742-50220006 TICKET SALES
(120.00)245-00000-46742-50220005 TICKET SALES
(180.00)245-00000-46742-50219521 TICKET SALES
(200.00)245-00000-46742-50219518 TICKET SALES


2,960.13 245-00000-21108 GIFT CERTIFICATES - OPERA HOUSE
(1,423.81)245-00000-21104 SALES TAX PAYABLE - O.H.


162.01 243-00000-48114 DIVIDENDS
45.00 242-00000-46110 MISC. REVENUE


41,040.36 234-00000-48550 DONATIONS
20.00 232-00000-48513 DONATIONS - LOAN CLOSET
100.00 231-00000-48561 DONATIONS - SENIORS IN NEED


6,614.78 224-00000-46325 STORMWATER REVIEW FEES
118.63 224-00000-13010 SW FEE
405.20 223-00000-13010 911
10.00 217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED
80.54 215-00000-46710-51000000 FINES
51.11 215-00000-46710-50900000 FINES
23.23 215-00000-46710-20400000 FINES


84,489.50 208-00000-43690 OTHER STATE GRANTS
(84.01)100-55300-50344-32400000 OPERATING EXPENSES-ACTIVE NET


1,992.00 100-52100-50190-30600000 TRAINING
50.00 100-51550-50190-40900000 TRAINING


3,162.39 100-00000-48505-50400000 DONATIONS - CENTER
5.00 100-00000-48505-30500000 DONATIONS - CENTER
5.00 100-00000-48505-30400000 DONATIONS - CENTER
5.00 100-00000-48505-30300000 DONATIONS - CENTER


7,000.00 100-00000-48504-50400000 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS
1,000.00 100-00000-48220-41900000 RENTAL INCOME


(25.00)100-00000-46752-32457400 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
47.00 100-00000-46752-32456600 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
60.00 100-00000-46752-32456500 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
340.00 100-00000-46752-32455900 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
80.00 100-00000-46752-32455400 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
389.00 100-00000-46752-32455000 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
265.00 100-00000-46752-32453500 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


2,200.00 100-00000-46750-32453600 RECREATION
390.00 100-00000-46750-32453500 RECREATION
250.00 100-00000-46750-32400000 RECREATION
120.00 100-00000-46720-51300000 PARK RESERVATIONS
30.00 100-00000-46540-42100000 CEMETERY FEES


2,930.00 100-00000-46435-54000000 YARD WASTE SITE FEES
9,326.72 100-00000-46430-31200000 STREET OPENING INCUMBERANCE


330.00 100-00000-46309-40600000 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES
1,465.96 100-00000-46290-31000000 MVD FEES


366.98 100-00000-46210-31100000 POLICE DEPT FEES
15.00 100-00000-46210-30800000 POLICE DEPT FEES
700.00 100-00000-46150-41500000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES


1,890.00 100-00000-45130-31100000 PARKING FINES
3,182.00 100-00000-44900-32200000 MISC


470.00 100-00000-44330-32200000 HEATING
620.00 100-00000-44320-32200000 PLUMBING


1,070.00 100-00000-44310-32200000 ELECTRICAL
2,751.20 100-00000-44300-32200000 BUILDING
1,735.00 100-00000-44150-31600000 MISC. LICENSE
1,100.00 100-00000-44120-31600000 CIGARETTE


375.00 100-00000-44111-31600000 OPERATORS
9,130.00 100-00000-44110-31600000 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE


165.39 100-00000-43790-30400000 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH
12,932.64 100-00000-43533-10100000 STATE AID - STREETS


218,561.14 100-00000-43531-10100000 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT
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1,549,918.83 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS:                 


47,299.13 603 EMS
11,113.27 411 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND
90,525.00 300 DEBT SERVICE FUND


500.00 270 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
419.02 247 TOURISM FUND


(26,180.92)245 OPERA HOUSE FUND
162.01 243 FIRE PENSION FUND
45.00 242 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND


41,040.36 234 FOOD PANTRY
20.00 232 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND
100.00 231 SENIORS IN NEED


6,733.41 224 STORM SEWER FUND
405.20 223 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
10.00 217 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND
154.88 215 LIBRARY FUND


84,489.50 208 TID #8 FUND
1,293,082.97 100 GENERAL FUND


*** TOTAL BY FUND ***


1,549,918.83 TOTAL - ALL GL NUMBERS:            


46,386.70 603-00000-13016 AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES-3 RIVERS
912.43 603-00000-13011 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - SDC


2,186.63 411-00000-13010 RENTMC
8,926.64 411-00000-13010 RENT


90,525.00 300-00000-49228 TRANSFER IN FROM UTILITIES
103.44 270-00000-48112 INTEREST ON TAXES
396.56 270-00000-42100 CURB, GUTTER, EARTHWORK
419.02 247-00000-41210 ROOM TAXES
512.26 245-00000-48500-50210210 DONATIONS
800.00 245-00000-46920-50210210 MEMBERSHIPS


(3,311.10)245-00000-46745-50210210 REVENUE-FEES
(2,175.00)245-00000-46742-50220036 TICKET SALES


875.00 245-00000-46742-50220034 TICKET SALES
44.00 245-00000-46742-50220032 TICKET SALES


(910.00)245-00000-46742-50220031 TICKET SALES
(120.00)245-00000-46742-50220028 TICKET SALES


90.00 245-00000-46742-50220027 TICKET SALES
(455.00)245-00000-46742-50220026 TICKET SALES
(914.15)245-00000-46742-50220025 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50220023 TICKET SALES


(585.00)245-00000-46742-50220022 TICKET SALES
(300.00)245-00000-46742-50220021 TICKET SALES


(1,000.00)245-00000-46742-50220020 TICKET SALES
(962.50)245-00000-46742-50220019 TICKET SALES
200.00 245-00000-46742-50220018 TICKET SALES


(275.00)245-00000-46742-50220016 TICKET SALES
(2,396.25)245-00000-46742-50220014 TICKET SALES


105.00 245-00000-46742-50220013 TICKET SALES
27.00 245-00000-46742-50220012 TICKET SALES


(1,161.00)245-00000-46742-50220011 TICKET SALES
75.00 245-00000-46742-50220010 TICKET SALES


(10,901.00)245-00000-46742-50220009 TICKET SALES
(4,900.00)245-00000-46742-50220008 TICKET SALES


157.50 245-00000-46742-50220007 TICKET SALES
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CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/2Page: 05/20/2020 07:51 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


FROM 01/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020


Ending
Balance


04/30/2020
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


01/01/2020DescriptionFund


5,024,958.56 23,135,662.63 10,067,962.08 18,092,659.11 GENERAL FUND100


229,763.53 433,474.66 370,502.44 292,735.75 TID #3 FUND203


1,123,521.05 173,378.34 177,961.35 1,118,938.04 TID #4 FUND204


18,777.18 102,966.66 38,018.31 83,725.53 TID #5 FUND205


1,387,441.61 2,026,612.77 1,583,506.07 1,830,548.31 TID #6 FUND206


493,933.52 353,648.15 420,983.04 426,598.63 TID #7 FUND207


193,370.83 144,963.68 84,914.51 253,420.00 TID #8 FUND208


(6,268.53)17,107.08 8,500.00 2,338.55 SAFETY BUILDING FUND212


368,986.41 307,060.22 644,737.99 31,308.64 LIBRARY FUND215


240,662.08 14,520.44 14,080.44 241,102.08 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND217


20,845.56 0.00 62.00 20,783.56 FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND221


457,720.36 8,432.66 2,930.58 463,222.44 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND223


114,745.09 744,380.67 391,722.82 467,402.94 STORM SEWER FUND224


28,358.97 39.51 155.00 28,243.48 CEMETERY FUND225


74,892.92 0.00 304.84 74,588.08 EMS TRUCK FUND227


136,816.66 8,258.76 40,282.57 104,792.85 EMS EQUIPMENT FUND228


8,706.04 101.34 2,105.56 6,701.82 SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP229


10,105.18 2,455.72 1,776.38 10,784.52 TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND230


65,430.53 3,880.77 10,611.06 58,700.24 SENIORS IN NEED231


54,475.63 2,020.00 3,062.56 53,433.07 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND232


218,666.18 17,026.81 56,447.58 179,245.41 FOOD PANTRY234


5,452.17 2,054.33 7,506.50 0.00 LANDMARKS235


4,491.91 0.00 26.05 4,465.86 TREE COMMISSION236


3,667.45 216.00 632.07 3,251.38 STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL239


16,544.33 2,737.66 1,460.94 17,821.05 EMS TRUST FUND241


39,284.22 26,036.15 1,913.75 63,406.62 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND242


851,874.43 1,485,208.23 1,490,982.18 846,100.48 FIRE PENSION FUND243


0.00 12,905.98 6,452.99 6,452.99 CDBG FUND244


(8,094.04)613,904.89 604,787.84 1,023.01 OPERA HOUSE FUND245


6,771.16 0.00 25.99 6,745.17 OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND246


26,341.94 15,566.23 17,776.43 24,131.74 TOURISM FUND247


13,905.01 2,000.00 10,335.99 5,569.02 REVOLVING LOAN FUND248


578,419.07 198,279.81 776,698.88 0.00 REFUSE FUND249


106,131.88 102,575.20 125,000.00 83,707.08 SICK LEAVE FUND250


17,066.66 1,766.93 1,102.35 17,731.24 K9 FUND252


(15,256.30)21,227.80 5,971.50 0.00 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND260


9,996.66 7,925.34 17,922.00 0.00 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY261


470,748.59 64,791.51 217,186.14 318,353.96 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS270


701,463.17 5,141,527.93 5,317,185.19 525,805.91 DEBT SERVICE FUND300


2,523,466.27 1,334,566.17 1,087,013.15 2,771,019.29 CONSTRUCTION FUND400


519,472.90 358,000.39 208,867.13 668,606.16 CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND410


597,978.32 22,381.27 52,568.27 567,791.32 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND411
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CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/2Page: 05/20/2020 07:51 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


FROM 01/01/2020 TO 04/30/2020


Ending
Balance


04/30/2020
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


01/01/2020DescriptionFund


572,088.61 215,005.25 287,319.16 499,774.70 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND412


95,145.58 5,248.04 0.00 100,393.62 TECHNOLOGY FUND413


75,027.27 342,911.57 240,687.95 177,250.89 EMS603


17,477,896.62 37,472,827.55 24,400,049.63 30,550,674.54 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS







CHECK RECONCILIATION REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
1/2Page: 


05/20/2020 07:52 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Statement Date: 04/30/2020


AppAmountVendor NameVendor CodeCheck Num Check Date


Bank 3 - US BANK


*** OUTSTANDING CHECKS ***


AP18.99 LAURIE ROBERTSON00681665413 06/27/2019
AP50.00 LAINEE CANNADY00687465968 09/12/2019
AP100.00 CHORUS PUBLIC HOUSE00667566035 09/19/2019
AP500.00 STOUGHTON YOUTH SOFTBALL00688066118 09/26/2019
AP25.00 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK00650966530 11/14/2019
AP6.26 PICK-N-SAVE00070666774 12/12/2019
AP359.66 TOWN OF MADISON EMS00585566792 12/12/2019
AP59.00 LAURIE PORTER00233867020 01/09/2020
AP76.37 SHRED-IT00137767096 01/16/2020
AP42,972.80 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB00066267270 02/06/2020
AP3,032.75 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028467333 02/13/2020
AP2,951.25 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028467390 02/20/2020
AP10.00 BRYCE WINTERS00703267440 02/20/2020
AP70.00 MARJORIE KITTLESON00550267493 02/27/2020
AP705.00 THE SUBDUDES00584867539 02/27/2020
AP3,740.00 THE SUBDUDES00584867540 02/27/2020
AP125.00 HELENE ANDROSKI00703567557 03/05/2020
AP4,000.00 ALBERT CUMMINGS00704167565 03/05/2020
AP5.00 DANE COUNTY LIBRARY SERVICE00269367567 03/05/2020
AP400.00 FOUR SEASONS THEATRE00592567575 03/05/2020
AP2,800.00 RUTH MOODY00318767597 03/05/2020
AP90.00 STOUGHTON YOGA00545667612 03/05/2020
AP310.00 YERAM YOON00703467623 03/05/2020
AP1,381.25 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028467642 03/12/2020
AP31.84 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK00650967658 03/12/2020
AP50.00 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE00085067670 03/12/2020
AP1,192.00 AYRES ASSOCIATES INC00214467722 03/26/2020
AP50.00 R & S INSURANCE00073267756 03/26/2020
AP60.00 ELIZA GUTIERREZ00706467787 04/02/2020
AP31.65 IRENE KILCOYNE00705767792 04/02/2020
AP117.12 RUTH PUNDT00705667798 04/02/2020
AP1,722.00 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON00100167805 04/02/2020
AP100.00 WILLIAM BERRY00705567814 04/09/2020
AP9.00 BRADLEY BRAZIL00710467817 04/09/2020
AP200.00 DANE COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES00710567823 04/09/2020
AP235.00 DEPT OF REVENUE00479267826 04/09/2020
AP80.00 CRYSTAL HANSON00708767839 04/09/2020
AP40.00 ALLISON HEGGELUND00709267840 04/09/2020
AP40.00 MALLORY JOHNSON00709567843 04/09/2020
AP50.00 KWIK TRIP - KETTLE PARK00650967847 04/09/2020
AP40.00 DANIEL MOWRY00669467858 04/09/2020
AP80.00 EMILY MOYER00709467860 04/09/2020
AP134.00 CERINA PARTRIDGE00642467867 04/09/2020
AP40.00 AMY PREVOST00709767874 04/09/2020
AP48.00 LYNN  REINDERS00708167875 04/09/2020
AP4.26 CARA RINTAMAKI00710767879 04/09/2020
AP40.00 AMANDA SINCLAIR00709167889 04/09/2020
AP40.00 BEN THOMPSON00708467897 04/09/2020
AP24.00 LINDSAY VILLAVICENCIO00707667902 04/09/2020
AP3,079.69 3 RIVERS BILLING INC00254167916 04/16/2020
AP55.00 B&H LAWNCARE00506667922 04/16/2020
AP360.50 CONNEY SAFETY PRODUCTS00025667928 04/16/2020
AP5,212.00 DANE COUNTY TREASURER -MAMSWAP00175767932 04/16/2020
AP26.38 DAVID GOEDEN00711467944 04/16/2020
AP78.08 KATHLEEN HOWARD00705967946 04/16/2020
AP52.76 CRAIG JOHNSON00711667950 04/16/2020
AP52.76 ROBERT KLUGE00711767951 04/16/2020
AP100.00 LEAGUE OF WISC MUNICIPALITIES00054967954 04/16/2020
AP117.12 RUTH PUNDT00705667965 04/16/2020
AP150.00 WPRA00176867986 04/16/2020
PR976.45 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS102067913 04/17/2020
AP1,543.90 ALDI INC00712367988 04/23/2020
AP223.00 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSN00012367990 04/23/2020
AP1,729.41 KAYSER AUTOMOTIVE GROUP00050868005 04/23/2020
AP52.61 KING ELECTRIC00711268006 04/23/2020
AP20.00 KAYLA LIBBY00671568009 04/23/2020
AP21,347.00 MOYER'S INC00295868015 04/23/2020
AP4,157.00 NIESLON COMMUNICATIONS INC00706168016 04/23/2020
AP8.95 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC00093168025 04/23/2020
AP539.07 AIRGAS USA LLC00011168032 04/30/2020
AP58.92 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC00255468033 04/30/2020
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Bank 3 - US BANK


AP17.27 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011568034 04/30/2020
AP80.00 LUANN ALME00011668035 04/30/2020
AP19.99 ASLESON'S HARDWARE00014068036 04/30/2020
AP2,384.00 AYRES ASSOCIATES INC00214468037 04/30/2020
AP80.00 JENNY BAESEMAN00700868038 04/30/2020
AP70.00 MARY BARNETT00112668039 04/30/2020
AP195.00 ROBERT BARNETT00112768040 04/30/2020
AP80.00 JEFF BRIKOWSKI00550168041 04/30/2020
AP70.00 LAURA CARPENTER00570668042 04/30/2020
AP42.00 NAJWA CHADLI00639268043 04/30/2020
AP441.25 CHEM-DRY OF MADISON00177168044 04/30/2020
AP199.60 CHOICE1 HEALTH CARE SERVICES LLC00427268045 04/30/2020
AP480.00 CITY OF MADISON TREASURER00141868046 04/30/2020
AP70.00 JEFF CUNNINGHAM00544268047 04/30/2020
AP344.82 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC00031668048 04/30/2020
AP838.35 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C00028668049 04/30/2020
AP58.20 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC00029868050 04/30/2020
AP70.00 HENRI DUTILLY00032668051 04/30/2020
AP70.00 KATHY DUTILLY00656968052 04/30/2020
AP375.00 EMPATHIA INC00500768053 04/30/2020
AP508.50 EWALD'S HARTFORD FORD LINCOLN00034568054 04/30/2020
AP375.29 FITCH RONA EMS DISTRICT00691568055 04/30/2020
AP80.00 SHARON FOLBRECHT00495868056 04/30/2020
AP801.90 FOREVER SANDFILL & LIMESTONE00036268057 04/30/2020
AP335.61 GALL'S INC00038668058 04/30/2020
AP1,271.00 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.00039268059 04/30/2020
AP70.00 JASON GERMAIN00713968060 04/30/2020
AP2,017.71 GRABER MANUFACTURING INC00713868061 04/30/2020
AP70.00 MICHAEL GRIGGS00114968062 04/30/2020
AP70.00 PAM GRIGGS00041768063 04/30/2020
AP124.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 2 INC00700168064 04/30/2020
AP70.00 RUSS HORTON00115768065 04/30/2020
AP80.00 JOYCE KAPING00646768066 04/30/2020
AP180.00 AMY KETTERER00561568067 04/30/2020
AP240.00 TONY KETTERER00124468068 04/30/2020
AP80.00 STEPHEN KRCMA00713668069 04/30/2020
AP443.87 KROGER00572068070 04/30/2020
AP70.00 MARTIN LAMERS00517868071 04/30/2020
AP125.00 LINDA LANE00561768072 04/30/2020
AP115.00 DREW LATSCH00713468073 04/30/2020
AP136.55 LEGALSHIELD00523568074 04/30/2020
AP22.00 LOGO PROMOTIONS, LLC00507968075 04/30/2020
AP86.59 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT00688668076 04/30/2020
AP70.00 TIM MARKLE00713268077 04/30/2020
AP70.00 TRACY MARKLE00713368078 04/30/2020
AP129.00 BOB MCGEEVER00118168079 04/30/2020
AP80.00 CORINNE MC GEEVER00491468080 04/30/2020
AP80.00 NICK MCGLYNN00712968081 04/30/2020
AP208.00 METAL CULVERTS INC00647868082 04/30/2020
AP258.69 MICHELS MATERIALS00612368083 04/30/2020
AP206.00 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL00061468084 04/30/2020
AP400.61 MIDWEST EQUIPMENT SPECIALISTS INC.00413168085 04/30/2020
AP80.00 MORGAN NEUENFELD00713168086 04/30/2020
AP80.00 SCOTT NEUENFELD00713068087 04/30/2020
AP70.00 DONNA OLSON00067268088 04/30/2020
AP375.00 ORGANIC SEDIMENT REMOVAL SYSTEMS00712568089 04/30/2020
AP80.00 DEBORA PIPER00713768090 04/30/2020
AP17.37 RICOH USA INC00121568091 04/30/2020
AP80.00 CATHY RIGDON00076068092 04/30/2020
AP2,450.00 SPORTS ENHANCEMENT ACADEMY00712668093 04/30/2020
AP232.00 SEAN STAKE00158568094 04/30/2020
AP93.96 STOUGHTON UTILITIES00086668095 04/30/2020
AP163.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE00119768096 04/30/2020
AP125.00 KRISTY THALACKER00125068097 04/30/2020
AP2,970.00 TKK ELECTRONICS LLC00334668098 04/30/2020
AP70.00 TIM TOROSIAN00713568099 04/30/2020
AP2,255.00 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE00032868100 04/30/2020
AP70.00 DIANE WALL-DONELAN00647068101 04/30/2020
AP164.51 WINDSTREAM00671668102 04/30/2020
AP70.00 ERIC WOLF00712868103 04/30/2020
AP70.00 MARIAH WOOSTER LEHMAN00544168104 04/30/2020


132,564.44 Totals: 142
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Ref Num1: '6378'   CRJE04/16/2020
GL Trx #: 121803


255,312.51PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD LOTTERY CREDIT SETTLEMENT
255,312.51TAXES RECEIVABLE100-00000-13070TO RECORD LOTTERY CREDIT SETTLEMENT


255,312.51255,312.51


Ref Num1: '6380'   CRJE04/17/2020
GL Trx #: 122004


16,438.37PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD STIMULUS WIRE RECEIVED
16,438.37FEMA ASSISTANCE100-00000-43692TO RECORD STIMULUS WIRE RECEIVED


16,438.3716,438.37


Ref Num1: '6383'   CRJE04/28/2020
GL Trx #: 122312


6,503.04PRIMARY CHECKING248-00000-11100TO RECORD WWBIC Q1 RLF PAYMENT
881.65INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108TO RECORD WWBIC Q1 RLF PAYMENT


5,621.39REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501TO RECORD WWBIC Q1 RLF PAYMENT


6,503.046,503.04


Ref Num1: '6390'   CRJE04/30/2020
GL Trx #: 122655


13,462.55PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD 3 RIVERS BILLING DEPOSITS
13,462.55AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES-3 RIVERS603-00000-13016TO RECORD 3 RIVERS BILLING DEPOSITS


13,462.5513,462.55


Ref Num1: '6391'   CDJE04/30/2020
GL Trx #: 122656


313.50MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-51510-50200RECORD EBC FEE
313.50PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD EBC FEE


313.50313.50


Ref Num1: '6392'   CRJE04/30/2020
GL Trx #: 122657


419.32PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT
419.32UNITED WAY DONATIONS100-00000-48524-32500000TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT


419.32419.32


Ref Num1: '6394'   CDJE04/30/2020
GL Trx #: 122660


104.66OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES100-51510-50216-41600000TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC
104.66PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC


104.66104.66
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292,135.79292,135.79GRAND TOTAL:


13,462.55603-00000-13016AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES-3 RIVERS
13,462.55603-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


881.65248-00000-48108INTEREST - RLF 
5,621.39248-00000-13501REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE


6,503.04248-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
104.66100-51510-50216-41600000OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES
313.50100-51510-50200MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES


419.32100-00000-48524-32500000UNITED WAY DONATIONS
16,438.37100-00000-43692FEMA ASSISTANCE


255,312.51100-00000-13070TAXES RECEIVABLE
271,752.04100-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


TOTALS:
292,553.95292,553.95








Dept Project Description Project # Per CIP Spent to Date Remaining
Streets 2020 STREETS CONTRACT 1 RECONSTRUCTION 400-57330-50820-20401000 735,072$             
Streets 2020 STREETS CONTRACT 3 PULVERIZATION 400-57330-50820-20401000 578,371$             
Streets DOT PROJECT HWY 51 CONSTRUCTION (PAGE TO HOEL) 400-57330-50820-20001000 246,400$             
Streets DOT PROJECT HWY 51 ENGINEERING  (PAGE TO HOEL) 400-57330-50820-20001000 65,000$               
Streets 2020 STREET ENGINEERING 400-57330-50840-20404000 38,146$               
Streets 2020 STREET ENGINEERING 400-57330-50840-19404000 100,000$             
Streets JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK ENGINEERING 400-57330-50840-20405000 29,820$               2,987$               26,833$             
Streets 2020 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 400-57330-50820-20402000 -$                     -$                   -$                   
Streets 2020 SIDEWALK PROGRAM 400-57330-50820-20403000 -$                     -$                   -$                   
Streets ENGINEERING TECH POSITION 400-57330-50840-20406000 50,000$               -$                   50,000$             


Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Whitewater Park Engineering 400-57620-50840-20065000 66,283$               4,981$               61,302$             
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Dam Removal - Engineering 400-57620-50840-20075000 26,648$               -$                   26,648$             
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Trail, Underpass, Plazas Design (RDA Property to Water St) 400-57620-50840-20076000 58,937$               -$                   58,937$             


N/A ALTERNATIVE FUNDING SOURCES N/A -$                     -$                   -$                   
Stormwater 2020 STREETS CONTRACT 1 RECONSTRUCTION 224-57345-50820-20401000 125,160$             
Stormwater 2020 STREETS CONTRACT 3 PULVERIZATION 224-57345-50820-20401000 54,795$               
Stormwater DOT PROJECT HWY 51 CONTSRUCTION AND ENGINEERING  (PAGE TO HOEL) 224-57345-50820-20401000 22,000$               
Stormwater BREWER CT/HYLAND STORM SEWER 224-57345-50820-20401000 -$                     
Stormwater 2020 STREET ENGINEERING 224-57345-50840-20404000 11,250$               
Stormwater 2020 STREET ENGINEERING 224-57345-50840-20404000 18,904$               
Stormwater #3 Street Sweeper (Elgin)    224-57345-50820-20407000 265,000$             -$                   265,000$           
Stormwater Eastwood Stormwater Pond Evaluation 224-57345-50820-20408000 10,000$               -$                   10,000$             
Stormwater Eastwood Stormwater Pond Dredging 224-57345-50820-20409000 50,000$               375$                   49,625$             


Administration Financial Management Plan 410-57190-50820-20022000 15,000$               -$                   15,000$             
Administration Landmarks - Local Downtown Historic District 410-57190-50820-20039000 13,000$               -$                   13,000$             


Fire Plyovent System      410-57220-50820-20040000 77,000$               -$                   77,000$             
IT/Media Services      Computer Replacement      410-57190-50820-20041000 40,000$               10,632$             29,368$             
IT/Media Services      Upgrade Control Room and Council Chambers 410-57190-50820-20042000 40,000$               38,033$             1,967$               


Parks ADA Drinking/Bottle Filling Bjoin, VL, Lowell, RT 410-57620-50820-20044000 15,000$               -$                   15,000$             
Parks Lowell Park Playground Replacement    410-57620-50820-20045000 85,000$               19$                     84,981$             
Parks Norse Tennis/Basketball Court Resurface     410-57620-50820-20046000 100,000$             -$                   100,000$           
Parks Park Bench Replacement     410-57620-50820-20047000 6,000$                 -$                   6,000$               
Parks Park Sign Replacement     410-57620-50820-20048000 3,500$                 3,131$               369$                   
Parks Rip Rap Senior Center 410-57620-50820-20049000 12,000$               -$                   12,000$             
Parks Trash Receptacles      410-57620-50820-20050000 5,000$                 4,747$               253$                   Complete
Parks Virgin Lake Restroom Upgrade    410-57620-50820-20051000 15,000$               -$                   15,000$             
Parks Whirl-a-Round Bjoin Park 410-57620-50820-20052000 6,000$                 -$                   6,000$               


Planning Opera House - Seal Parking Lot   410-57190-50820-20053000 25,000$               -$                   25,000$             
Police Body Camera Replacement     410-57210-50820-20054000 16,000$               -$                   16,000$             
Police Portable Radios      410-57210-50820-20055000 20,000$               17,309$             2,691$               
Police Cellebrite Annual Subscription     410-57210-50820-20056000 3,200$                 3,700$               (500)$                 


97,183$             40,963$             


8,458$               21,696$             


-$                   1,313,443$        


71,287$             240,113$           


102$                   201,853$           







Dept Project Description Project # Per CIP Spent to Date Remaining


                           Police Electric Police Bikes 410-57210-50820-20057000 6,000$                 -$                   6,000$               
Police Radio Programming      410-57210-50820-20058000 2,000$                 -$                   2,000$               
Police Radio System Base Unit Replacement   410-57210-50820-20059000 12,000$               -$                   12,000$             
Police Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace    410-57210-50820-20060000 6,000$                 -$                   6,000$               
Police Taser Replacement      410-57210-50820-20061000 4,500$                 -$                   4,500$               


Recreation ADA Transition Plan 410-57620-50820-20062000 26,000$               1,190$               24,810$             
Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 410-57620-50820-20063000 4,500$                 1,569$               2,931$               
Recreation High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal 410-57620-50820-20064000 18,000$               -$                   18,000$             
Recreation Rotary Park - Restroom and Accessible Pathways 410-57620-50820-20066000 150,000$             5,500$               144,500$           
Recreation Troll Beach Dock 410-57620-50820-20067000 6,700$                 4,987$               1,713$               
Recreation Troll Beach Entrance Fence 410-57620-50820-20068000 2,500$                 1,386$               1,114$               


Streets #29 Patrol Truck (Chevy)    410-57331-50820-20069000 190,000$             105,321$           84,679$             
N/A ALTERNATIVE FUNDING SOURCES N/A -$                     


IT/Media Services      Network Upgrades 413-55500-50289-20043000 25,000$               5,248$               19,752$             


TIF TIF 4 Main St Downtown Improvements
204-57310-50820-20070000 / 
204-57310-50820-20003000


950,000$             29,711$             920,289$           


TIF Pedestrian Bridge Design 208-57310-50820-20071000 71,265$               -$                   71,265$             
TIF Riverbank Restoration 208-57310-50820-20072000 -$                     -$                   -$                   
TIF Riverbank Restoration Design 208-57310-50820-20073000 31,740$               -$                   31,740$             
TIF Riverfront Trail and Amenities Design 208-57310-50820-20074000 36,360$               -$                   36,360$             







Carryover From Fund Dept Project Description Amount Spent to Date Remaining Project #
N/A 411 EMS EMS - Rooftop Unit #1 25,000$          25,000$               411-53200-50820-20005000
N/A 411 Library Parking Lot Sealing  5,000$            5,000$                  411-53200-50820-20006000
N/A 411 Library Library  - Elevator Electronic Door Sensor 3,000$            3,000$                  411-53200-50820-20007000
N/A 411 Library Library - Elevator Electronic Soft Start 3,000$            3,000$                  411-53200-50820-20008000
N/A 411 Planning City Hall - Replace 4 condensing units 30,000$          30,000$               411-53200-50820-20009000
N/A 411 Planning City Hall - Door Access Control 15,000$          15,000$               411-53200-50820-20010000
N/A 411 Planning City Hall - HVAC Control System 15,000$          15,000$               411-53200-50820-20011000
N/A 411 Planning City Hall - Landscaping 20,000$          333$                           19,667$               411-53200-50820-20012000
N/A 411 Police PSB - RTU#1-Carrier      25,000$          25,000$               411-53200-50820-20013000
N/A 411 Police Generator Re-wire PSB      10,000$          10,000$               411-53200-50820-20014000
N/A 411 Police PSB - Exterior Lighting Replacement    3,600$            3,600$                  411-53200-50820-20015000
N/A 411 Police PSB - Landscaping 20,000$          333$                           19,667$               411-53200-50820-20016000
N/A 411 Senior Center      Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Large #6 40,000$          40,000$               411-53200-50820-20017000
N/A 411 Senior Center      Sr Ctr - Landscaping Restoration 20,000$          333$                           19,667$               411-53200-50820-20018000
N/A 411 Youth Center Youth Center - HVAC Control System 20,000$          20,000$               411-53200-50820-20019000


Building Maintenance Fund - Fund 411







Carryover From Fund Dept Project Description Amount Spent to Date Remaining Project #
N/A 412 Administration Express Vote (ADA Accessible Voting Machines) 14,000$          13,780$                     220$                     412-57190-50820-20020000
N/A 412 Fire Bay security lights add and reel replacement 4,700$             7,400$                        (2,700)$                412-57190-50820-20021000
N/A 412 Fire Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks  50,000$          50,000$               412-57190-50820-20023000 A
N/A 412 Fire Car 1 Command Car    42,000$          1,714$                        40,286$               412-57190-50820-20024000 B
N/A 412 Fire Hose Washer      15,500$          15,500$               412-57190-50820-20025000 C
N/A 412 Fire ParaTech Air Bag System    20,500$          20,500$               412-57190-50820-20026000
N/A 412 Fire Brush Rig      79,500$          79,500$               412-57190-50820-20027000
N/A 412 Planning 2004 Ford Van      30,000$          29,407$                     594$                     412-57190-50820-20028000
N/A 412 Planning Planning Dept 2005 43467 ton pickup   30,000$          28,773$                     1,228$                  412-57190-50820-20029000
N/A 412 Police Squad #271      42,000$          42,000$               412-57190-50820-20030000
N/A 412 Police Dodge Caravan - #275    30,000$          30,000$               412-57190-50820-20031000
N/A 412 Police Community Camera Interface 7,000$             7,000$                  412-57190-50820-20032000
N/A 412 Police Motor Patrol Unit     20,000$          20,000$               412-57190-50820-20033000
N/A 412 Police Squad #281      42,000$          42,000$               412-57190-50820-20034000
N/A 412 Streets #1 Pickup Truck (Ford F-250) 36,800$          28,957$                     7,844$                  412-57190-50820-20035000
N/A 412 Streets #2 Pickup Truck (Sierra 1500) 31,000$          28,577$                     2,424$                  412-57190-50820-20036000
N/A 412 Streets #99 Pool Van 25,000$          25,000$               412-57190-50820-20037000
N/A 412 Streets #28 Tractor (John Deere)  48,000$          55,769$                     (7,769)$                412-57190-50820-20038000 Awaiting trade-in amount - Anticipated to be $10,000
N/A 412 Fire Mobile Data Terminals and Docking Stations 25,700$          32,996$                     (7,296)$                412-57190-50820-20004000
N/A 412 Administration Rear Accessible Ban 8,000$             8,000$                  412-57190-50820


A - Will be using $10,000 to complete Command Car and push back Breathing Air Compressor and Storage Tanks to another year
B - Adjust to $75,000 using $10,000 from Breathing Air Compressor and Storage Tanks
C - Using this $15,500 to complete the Command Car
D - Car 2 scheduled for 2021 will be pushed to 2022 and amount will be revised


Equipment Replacement Fund - Fund 412
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2020 2019
2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED USED
Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
REVENUES 13,936,134 10,408,690 3,527,444 74.69                                 77.81                                 
EXPENDITURES 13,927,314 7,323,264 6,604,050 52.58 50.38


2020 2019
2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED USED
Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND


Revenues


TAXES 10,141,534 9,407,512 734,022 92.76                                 94.72                                 
Decrease in % used is mainly due to the fact the DCHA PILOT has not 
been received by the City yet


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 65,000 2,700 62,300 4.15                                    15.91                                 
Decrease in % used is mainly due to $45,000 of the 2020 budget will be 
paid at year-end


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,280,126 491,989 1,788,137 21.58                                 20.22                                 
LICENSES & PERMITS 199,075 57,987 141,088 29.13                                 27.51                                 


FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 155,000 47,972 107,028 30.95                                 60.90                                 
Decrease in % used is mainly attributed to COVID-19
 - Court Penalties down $18,000
 - Parking Fines down $12,000


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 588,894 140,917 447,977 23.93                                 67.39                                 
Decrease in % used is mainly attributed to COVID-19
 - Recreation and Recreation Fees down $19,000


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES 64,000 32,000 32,000 50.00                                 46.34                                 


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 442,505 227,614 214,891 51.44                                 61.81                                 
 - Overall decrease in % used is reasonable and further explanations 
can be found in the 48000 accounts below


TOTAL REVENUES 13,936,134 10,408,690 3,527,444 74.69                                 77.81                                 


Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 4/30/2019 4/30/2020 Change
100 41110 PROPERTY TAXES 9,032,362 9,383,714 351,352
100 41320 SHA PILOT 23,873 23,797 (75)
100 41321 DCHA PILOT 11,181 0 (11,181)
100 42321 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER 7,500 2,700 (4,800)
100 43531 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT 380,106 437,122 57,016
100 43533 STATE AID - STREETS 25,930 25,865 (65)
100 43790 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH 11,390 12,563 1,174
100 44110 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 13,274 9,666 (3,608)


REVENUE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020                                                  


Notes
Based on 2019 levy amount - Increase is due to net new construction and debt service


Calculated by the State - Represents 1st quarter payment


This has not been received yet - We will be following up with the County


INCOME STATEMENT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020                                                  







Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 4/30/2019 4/30/2020 Change Notes
100 44111 OPERATORS 2,525 1,345 (1,180)
100 44120 CIGARETTE 1,500 1,200 (300)
100 44150 MISC. LICENSE 4,180 1,980 (2,201)
100 44210 DOG 1,578 609 (969)
100 44300 BUILDING 14,096 11,390 (2,706)
100 44310 ELECTRICAL 4,570 5,499 929
100 44320 PLUMBING 4,315 2,904 (1,411)
100 44330 HEATING 3,086 5,710 2,624
100 44340 FIRE PROTECTION FEES 4,121 1,983 (2,138)
100 44900 MISC 7,790 15,702 7,912
100 45100 COURT PENALTIES/COSTS 49,835 32,155 (17,679)
100 45130 PARKING FINES 27,818 15,816 (12,001)
100 46110 MISC. REVENUE 50 20 (30)
100 46150 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES 3,255 2,485 (770)
100 46210 POLICE DEPT FEES 495 993 498
100 46220 FIRE DEPT FEES 83,555 86,892 3,337
100 46290 MVD FEES 6,232 2,877 (3,356)
100 46309 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES 1,740 1,030 (710)
100 46310 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MISC 2,234 0 (2,234)
100 46312 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES 1,530 1,870 340


100 43692 FEMA ASSISTANCE 16,438 16,438


100 46430 STREET OPENING 2,000 9,602 7,602
100 46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 7,775 2,930 (4,845)
100 46540 CEMETERY FEES 2,770 965 (1,805)
100 46590 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES 725 60 (665)
100 46595 MISC TAXABLE SALES 20 (131) (151)
100 46610 NEWSLETTER 183 156 (27)
100 46720 PARK RESERVATIONS 2,048 1,245 (803)
100 46750 RECREATION 23,546 13,151 (10,395)
100 46752 REC INSTRUCTION FEES 25,121 16,590 (8,531)
100 46756 UNDERWRITING 225 0 (225)
100 46757 CABLE - TAXABLE SALES 272 33 (239)
100 46759 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES 300 150 (150)
100 47410 SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 7,700 7,700 0
100 47420 ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATIO 17,700 17,700 0
100 47430 WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 6,600 6,600 0
100 47440 EMS ADMINISTRATION 6,000 0 (6,000)
100 48110 INTEREST 91,499 62,902 (28,597)
100 48111 INTEREST: LONG TERM INVESTMENT 9,902 9,902
100 48112 INTEREST ON TAXES 141 327 187
100 48113 REBATE 5,277 4,540 (737)


Lower interest rates - This was anticipated during the budgeting process
Not budgeted in 2020 - Reduced transfer in to EMS from General Fund


Can be attributed to COVID-19


Can be attributed to COVID-19
Can be attributed to COVID-19
Majority of increase relates to KPW Phase II Final Plat Review Fees


Recorded to General Fund as a placeholder - Further investigation found this is EMS money and 
has since been adjusted


Can be attributed to COVID-19


New account used in 2020 for longer term investments







Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 4/30/2019 4/30/2020 Change Notes
100 48114 DIVIDENDS (2,514) 0 2,514
100 48130 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS 160 37 (124)
100 48220 RENTAL INCOME 4,000 4,000 0
100 48400 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY 4,122 0 (4,122)
100 48420 INSURANCE- REBATE 0 14,616 14,616
100 48500 DONATIONS 4 3,000 2,996
100 48501 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT 2,449 8,599 6,150
100 48503 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND 10,797 6,243 (4,554)
100 48504 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS 18,000 14,750 (3,250)
100 48505 DONATIONS - CENTER 11,463 12,752 1,289


100 48509 DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUN 38,000 38,000 0


100 48519 FSAYC CONTRIBUTION 30,053 9,639 (20,414)
100 48522 DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER 350 0 (350)
100 48523 DANE COUNTY DONATIONS 3,104 3,197 93
100 48524 UNITED WAY DONATIONS 359 419 60
100 48540 POLICE SAFETY CAMP 500 5,000 4,500
100 48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT. 25,000 29,690 4,690
100 48543 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL 200 0 (200)
100 49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 10,000 0 (10,000)


10,086,070 10,408,690 322,621


Changes in Accounting/Budgeting (36,414)$                            
Property Taxes 340,095$                           
State Aids 56,951$                             
COVID-19 (68,507)$                            Licenses, Permits, Fines, Rec Fees, etc. 
Remaining 30,494$                             


322,621$                           


2019 Liability Rebate paid in 2020


Not budgeted in 2020


Accounting methodology changed in 2020 - Revenues will pick up after April


Change in allocation between these two accounts - Increase is minimal







2020 2019 2019
2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED USED 4/30/19 USED 12/31/19 Notes
LEGISLATIVE 46,500                               13,212                                 33,288                                 28.41 28.17 101.96


JUDICIAL 61,770                               22,739                                 39,031                                 36.81 34.65 94.39


Although costs are up slightly in 2020, this Department 
was under it's 2019 budget and this was taken into 
consideration during the budgeting process. Overall 
budget to actual appears reasonable.


LEGAL 140,000                            30,981                                 109,019                               22.13 18.36 105.60


At this time last year we had only billed through February 
versus March of this year resulting in the increase of % of 
budget used. Overall budget to actual appears 
reasonable.


MAYOR 101,238                            33,707                                 67,531                                 33.30 33.73 97.67
CLERK 198,272                            53,338                                 144,934                               26.90 25.89 89.82


ELECTION 43,225                               14,766                                 28,459                                 34.16 46.05 65.08
Additional amounts were budgeted in 2020 due to the 
number of elections being held.


FINANCE DIRECTOR 605,464                            187,822                               417,642                               31.02 27.11 90.74
The 2020 Finance budget was left static compared to 
2019 and this increase in % used was expected. Overall 
budget to actual appears reasonable.


ASSESSOR 47,900                               37,400                                 10,500                                 78.08 74.11 100.65
At this time last year we had not been billed a third 
installment from the assessor resulting in the increase in 
% used. Overall budget to actual appears reasonable.


HR/RISK MANAGEMENT 191,288                            55,742                                 135,546                               29.14 26.02 89.03
The 2020 HR budget was left static compared to 2019 and 
this increase in % used was expected.


OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 88,000                               53,580                                 34,420                                 60.89 44.31 60.75


The 2020 budget amount was reduced by $35,000 
compared to 2019 and the majority of costs in this 
department relate to annual interfund amounts due to 
the Utilities.


INSURANCE 279,600                            220,196                               59,404                                 78.75 83.67 91.82


Majority of expenditures have been paid; however, 
workers compensation insurance receives a true up bill 
later in the year. This budget was reduced by $6,700 
compared to 2019.


LAW ENFORCEMENT 3,210,448                         882,787                               2,327,661                           27.50 28.48 98.77
FIRE PROTECTION 547,049                            124,907                               422,142                               22.83 21.50 93.67
INSPECTION 110,165                            26,593                                 83,572                                 24.14 25.94 93.17


CITY BUILDINGS 291,127                            60,567                                 230,560                               20.80 32.15 100.04


The janitorial positions were budgeted in this department 
and they have not yet been hired. Also noted Department 
Head salaries budgeted here for 2020 have not been 
coded to this department.


HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST 1,179,536                         338,474                               841,062                               28.70 32.87 109.51
2019 budget to actual ended high due to major storm 
events early in 2019. The 2020 budget to actual appears 
more in line.


EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND (EXCLUDING TRANSFERS)                     
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020
                                                     







2020 2019 2019
2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED USED 4/30/19 USED 12/31/19 Notes


EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND (EXCLUDING TRANSFERS)                     
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020
                                                     


SNOW REMOVAL 68,000                               55,866                                 12,134                                 82.16 63.40 87.54
Significantly more salt delivered early in 2020 compared 
to 2019. We are not anticipating any significant 
purchases needed throughout the remainder of 2020.


SIGNS AND MARKINGS 18,000                               4,626                                   13,374                                 25.70 2.42 80.23
Simply more work done early in 2020. Budget to actual 
appears reasonable.


STREET LIGHTING 120,000                            24,880                                 95,120                                 20.73 22.97 85.33


2020 budget was decreased by $8,000, but we are 
continuing to see decreases in costs as a result of more 
LEDs being installed. The electric utility is planning a rate 
increase effective 7/1 which will put these amounts more 
in line with the 2020 budget amount.


SENIOR CENTER 575,749                            166,829                               408,920                               28.98 32.13 108.75


The 2020 budget amount was increased by $53,000 
compared to 2019 to account for a change in accounting 
methodology for the Volunteer Program Coordinator 
position. The 4/30/20 budget to actual amount appears 
reasonable.


CEMETERY 36,000                               4,932                                   31,068                                 13.70 6.06 106.92
Nothing significant noted here. Overall budget to actual 
appears reasonable. 


COMMUNITY COMMITMENT 5,500                                 -                                       5,500                                   0.00 37.50 59.71
Only amount budgeted in 2020 is for the fireworks which 
has not occurred yet.


PARKS 244,480                            34,169                                 210,311                               13.98 14.67 85.63


RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS 342,411                            84,948                                 257,463                               24.81 31.05 100.70
Seasonal wages are down significantly compared to 2019 
due to COVID-19.


YOUTH CENTER 163,894                            44,448                                 119,446                               27.12 30.54 97.46


Wages and benefits make up the majority of this budget 
and we have not yet seen the 3 pay period months 
scheduled for May and October of this year. Overall 
wages are down as a result of COVID-19 as well.


IT/MEDIA SERVICES 375,670                            121,257                               254,413                               32.28 30.45 93.17
PLANNING 252,415                            78,136                                 174,279                               30.96 32.93 114.19
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -  FUND 100 9,343,701                         2,776,900                           6,566,801                           29.72 30.45 98.47







2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 239,786                       10,090                                229,696                              4.21 Dane County Service Fees received in June
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 25,700                         5,049                                  20,651                                19.64 Fines are down approx. $2,800 compared to 2019
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE -                               75                                        (75)                                       100.00
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 623,000                       623,000                              -                                       100.00
TOTAL REVENUES 888,486                       638,213                              250,273                              71.83


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 889,018                       285,823                              603,195                              32.15
With 33% of the fiscal year complete the budget to 
actual appears reasonable


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 889,018                       285,823                              603,195                              32.15


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES (532)                             352,391                              (352,923)                            


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - LIBRARY FUND 215                                 
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020
                                                     







2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 842,499                       301,205                              541,294                              35.75 Ticket sales down $72,000 compared to last year
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5,000                           1,121                                  3,879                                  22.42
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 182,000                       182,000                              -                                       100.00


TOTAL REVENUES 1,029,499                   484,325                              545,174                              47.04 Total revenues down $56,000 compared to last year


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,009,597                   270,854                              738,743                              26.83 Guarantees down $113,000 compared to last year


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,009,597                   270,854                              738,743                              26.83 Total expenses down $127,000 compared to last year


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES 19,902                         213,471                              (193,569)                            


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - OPERA HOUSE FUND 245                              
PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020
                                                     







2020 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 4/30/2020 BALANCE USED


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 19,525                         1,785                                  17,740                                9.14


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 684,664                       178,699                              505,965                              26.10 EMS has only invoiced through March at this point


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 25,000                         25,000                                -                                       100.00
TOTAL REVENUES 729,189                       205,484                              523,705                              28.18


AMBULANCE 537,937                       144,864                              393,073                              26.93
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 177,970                       177,970                              -                                       100.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 715,907                       322,834                              393,073                              45.09


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES 13,282                         (117,350)                            130,632                              


PERIOD ENDING 4/30/2020
                                                     
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - EMS FUND 603
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FINANCE MINUTES  
May 12, 2020 @ 6:00 PM 
GoToMeeting 


Present: 
Greg Jenson, Ozzie Doom, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher and Mayor Tim Swadley 


Absent and Excused: 
None  


Others Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel, Utilities Director Weiss, Parks & Rec Director Glynn and 
Clerk Licht  


CALL TO ORDER:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


COMMUNICATIONS:  
Schumacher said that he had received concerns about the sidewalk special assessments from 
constituents.  


REPORTS: the following reports were entered into the record.  


• Contingency Report  


NEW BUSINESS  


Approval of the April 28, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


Discussion regarding 2021 tentative budget schedule  
Finance Director Friedl presented the schedule. Tentatively, there will be 3 CIP meetings.  


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Raymond P. 
Cattel, Inc. for the 2020 Street Pulverization Project Contract 3-2020  
Planning Director Scheel stated that they received 4 competitive bids and they are recommending the 
low bid. Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to recommend that council approve the agreement. 
Motion carried 5-0. 


Resolution authorizing improvements and levying special assessments against benefited property in 
the City of Stoughton for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage 
walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects 
Part of Roby Rd and Skinner Lane would be removed from this scope of work. The property owners for 
theses parcels will be notified of any changes. Scheel stated that they could reduce the street width on 
Grant Street by 4 feet and still have enough room for parking and reduce the amount of pavement.  
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend that Council approve the resolution. Motion carried 
5-0. 


Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing Parameters for the Sale of Not to Exceed 
$2,440,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2020A 







Dave Farris presented the pre-sale report. The committee agreed that it was smarter to do the 
parameter sale. Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to recommend approval. Motion carried 5-0. 
 


Discussion and possible action regarding the potential delay of certain 2020 CIP projects 
The Committee did not take action on this item. The members will be emailing Director Friedl with their 
comments and questions for follow up.  


Discussion and possible action regarding treatment of existing and future special assessments 
The committee did not take any action on this item. It will be back before the committee at their next 
meeting.  


Authorizing Patrick Wozniak to construct raised garden beds at Lowell Park and the City to contribute 
$965 towards the project 
Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to recommend that council approve the garden beds. Motion 
carried 5-0. 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
-Senior Center Annex Lease Agreements 
-TIF Policy Revisions 
-Absentee Ballots 
-Property Tax Delay Interest & Penalties October 1, 2020 
-TIF No. 4 Options 
 
Adjournment:  
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 6:57 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Holly Licht, City Clerk  
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City of Stoughton
General fund results


Summarized income statement
Actual Final budget Variance


Revenues and other financing sources 14,718,796$                 14,296,468$          422,328$               


Expenditures and other financing uses 14,165,984                   14,258,094            92,110                   


   Net change in fund balance 552,812$                      38,374$                 514,438$               


Fund balance category definitions
Nonspendable - amounts cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because


          legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained in tact.


Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by an external source.
Committed - amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed through formal
          action of the governing body.


Assigned - spendable amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are not


          considered restricted or committed.


Unassigned - residual amounts that have not been classified within other categories above.


$1,394,058 


-


-


1,160,595 


4,248,928 


$6,803,581 


$1,159,444 


-


-


1,206,970 


3,884,355 


$6,250,769 
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Total


General fund - fund balance by category2018 2019


© 2020 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted. Page 1    







City of Stoughton
General fund - fund balance trends


Fund balance policy:
         Maintain unassigned general fund balance within a range of 20-25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures


       The unassigned general fund balance at year end was $3,903,588 or 27.91% of 2019 general fund budgeted expenditures.


       The city includes deficit fund balances for Opera House and Redevelopment Authority within this unassigned general fund


      


Other reference values
GFOA recommends a minimum of no less than 2 months (16.7%) of general fund expenditures.


Median reference value generated from 2015 - 2018 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
          from 10,000 to 17,500.


50.1%


49.9%


53.5%


53.2%


55.9%


42.8%


38.9%


42.8%
41.7%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


40%


45%


50%


55%


60%


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019


Unrestricted general fund - fund balance 
as a percentage of expenditures 


General Fund Actual Reference - Median


© 2020 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted. Page 2    







City of Stoughton
General obligation debt


Debt management policy:
          The City has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt at 4% or 
          less of equalized value. The City's outstanding general obligation debt was at 3.11%.
          Legal debt margin capacity (5% of the city's total equalized value).


Actual percentage of debt limit at 12/31/19: 62%


Total debt outstanding by type at 12/31/2019
General obligation Revenue debt Total


City 36,247,852$               -$                    36,247,852$          
Utility 2,162,092                   12,107,100         14,269,192            


     Total 38,409,944$               12,107,100$       50,517,044$          


Comparative metrics available online through the Wisconsin Policy Forum.


                 Select "Debt" -- options for custom comparisons or comparisons by county


https://wispolicyforum.org/research/municipal-datatool-examining-and-comparing-wisconsin-
cities-and-villages/
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City of Stoughton
Governmental funds - debt service 


Current and prior year data
2019 2018


Principal 3,215,601$                 2,869,119$         
Interest 1,015,259                   688,873              


     Total 4,230,860$                 3,557,992$         


Non-capital expenditures 16,433,004$               15,564,168$       


Other reference values
Median reference value generated from 2015 - 2018 Baker Tilly municipal client data for 
          population ranges from 10,000 to 17,500.
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Executive summary 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton for the year ended 


December 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 2020. This letter presents 


communications required by our professional standards. 


Your audit should provide you with confidence in your financial statements. The audit was performed 


based on information obtained from meetings with management, data from your systems, knowledge of 


your City’s operating environment and our risk assessment procedures. We strive to provide you clear, 


concise communication throughout the audit process and of the final results of our audit. 


Additionally, we have included information on key risk areas the City of Stoughton should be aware of in 


your strategic planning. We are available to discuss these risks as they relate to your organization’s 


financial stability and future planning. 


If you have questions at any point, please connect with us: 


Carla Gogin, Partner: carla.gogin@bakertilly.com or +1 (608) 240 2460 


Vasvi Joshi, Senior Manager: vasvi.joshi@bakertilly.com or +1 (608) 240 2453 


 


Sincerely, 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 


Carla A. Gogin, CPA 


 


Vasvi Joshi, CPA 


 



mailto:carla.gogin@bakertilly.com

mailto:vasvi.joshi@bakertilly.com
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Audit objectives 


Our responsibilities 


As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include: 


- Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 


statements are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 


- Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 


error.  Included in that assessment is a consideration of the City’s internal control over financial 


reporting. 


- Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment. 


- Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 


accounting estimates made by management. 


- Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements 


prepared by management, with the oversight of the City Council:  


o Are free from material misstatement 


o Present fairly, in all material respects, and in accordance with accounting principles generally 


accepted in the United States of America 


 


We are also required to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to the 


responsibilities of the City Council, including:  


- Qualitative aspects of the City’s accounting practice including policies, accounting estimates and 


financial statement disclosures 


- Significant difficulties encountered 


- Disagreements with management 


- Corrected and uncorrected misstatements 


- Internal control matters 


- Significant estimates 


- Other findings or issues arising from the audit 


 


Management's responsibilities 


Management Auditor 


 


Prepare and fairly present the 
financial statements 


Our audit does not relieve management or the city 
council of their responsibilities 


 


Establish and maintain effective 
internal control over financial 
reporting  


An audit includes consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting, but not an expression of 
an opinion on those controls 


 


Provide us with written 
representations at the conclusion of 
the audit 


See Appendix B for a copy of management's 
representations 







 


 


 


 


 


Audit status







 


City of Stoughton | 2019 Audit  5/11/2020 
© 2019 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP  Page | 7 


     


Audit status 


Significant changes to the audit plan 


There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and 


other areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.  


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


Audit approach and results 







 


City of Stoughton | 2019 Audit  5/11/2020 
© 2019 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP  Page | 9 


     


Audit approach and results 


Planned scope and timing 


Audit focus 


Based on our understanding of the City and environment in which you operate, we focused our audit on 


the following key areas: 


- Key transaction cycles 


- Areas with significant estimates 


- Implementation of new accounting standards 


- Areas of complexity and additional compliance requirement including TIF Districts. 


 


Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality 


in the context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined 


with our expectations about the City’s current year results. 


Implementation of GASB No. 84 reporting fiduciary activities 


During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. 
This standard was issued to provide a clear foundation and reduce inconsistencies in reporting of 
fiduciary activities. Implementation of this standard required the evaluation of various activities and 
application of specific criteria to determine the fiduciary activities that required reporting. As a result of this 
standard you will note the following changes in your financial statements from prior years: 
 
- Change in the activity that is reported through the tax collection custodial fund 


- Recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in each fiduciary fund only when an event has occurred 


that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources  


- Presentation of additions and deductions on the statement of changes in fiduciary net position for 


custodial fund 


 


Implementation of GASB No. 88 certain disclosures related to debt, including director 


borrowings and direct placements 


During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures 
Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This standard was issued to provide 
essential information related to debt disclosures including unused lines of credit, assets pledged as 
collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with 
finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and 
significant subjective acceleration clauses. The City’s footnotes have been updated accordingly.  
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Key areas of focus and significant findings 


Significant risks of material misstatement 


A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s 


professional judgment, requires special audit consideration. Within our audit, we focused on the following 


areas below. 


Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion 


Management override of 
controls 


Incorporate unpredictability into 
audit procedures, emphasize 
professional skepticism and 
utilize audit team with industry 
expertise 


Procedures identified provided 
sufficient evidence for our audit 
opinion 


Improper revenue recognition 
due to fraud 


Confirmation or validation of 
certain revenues supplemented 
with detailed predictive analytics 
based on non-financial data and 
substantive testing of related 
receivables 


Procedures identified provided 
sufficient evidence for our audit 
opinion 


 


Other key areas of emphasis 


We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk, but were determined 


to require specific awareness and a unique audit response.  


Other key areas of 
emphasis 


   


Cash and investments Revenues and receivables General disbursements  


Payroll Pension and OPEB 
liabilities 


Long-term debt  


Capital assets including 
infrastructure 


Net position calculations Financial reporting and 
required disclosures 
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Internal control matters 


We considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit 


procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements. We are not expressing 


an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 
 
A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a 


reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 


prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 


control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 


Other comments and recommendations 


PRIOR YEAR POINT 


 


- Collateral for Bank Deposits (Per 12/31/08 Letter)  


Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 requires disclosures about 


various risks associated with the city’s deposits and investments. These disclosures can be found in 


Note IV.A of the financial statements.  


 


One of the required disclosures is custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event 


of a financial institution failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned. To address this risk, the city 


has collateral agreements with its primary bank to cover deposits in excess of the FDIC limits. 


However, a portion of the city’s deposits and investments was exposed to custodial credit risk 


because the collateral was insufficient to cover all city deposits. In addition, the current collateral 


agreement in place with the city’s primary bank allows for the collateral to be held in the trust 


department of this bank. GASB No. 40 states that this type of custodial arrangement exposes the city 


to greater risk than if the collateral was held by an independent third party custodian. 


 


We recommend that the city evaluate its current collateral situation to determine if adjustments are 


desired. 


 


Status (12/31/19) 


A total of $4,114,009 of deposits and investments were exposed to some level of custodial credit 


risk as of December 31, 2019. 
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INFORMATIONAL POINTS 


 


- Decentralized Cash Collections 


As part of our annual audit process, we focus our efforts on the primary accounting systems, internal 


controls, and procedures used by the city. This is in keeping with our goal to provide an audit opinion 


which states that the financial statements of the city are correct in all material respects. 


 


In some cases, the primary system of accounting procedures and controls of the city are supported 


by smaller systems which are decentralized, and reside within a department or outside location. 


Specifically, for the City of Stoughton, there are departments that collect cash and periodically remit 


those collections to city hall. Examples include the recreation department and senior center, among 


others. 


 


Generally, the more centralized a function is, the easier it is to design and implement accounting 


controls that provide some level of checks and balances. That is because you are able to divide 


certain tasks over the people available to achieve some segregation of duties. For those tasks that 


are decentralized, it is usually very difficult to provide for proper segregation of duties. Therefore, with 


one person being involved in most or all aspects of a transaction, you lose the ability to rely on the 


controls to achieve the safeguarding of assets and reliability of financial records. 


 


As auditors, we are required to communicate with you on a variety of topics. We believe it is 


appropriate to make sure that you are informed about the risks that can occur with decentralized cash 


collections. 


 


- Controls Over Information Technology 


As part of our audit, we evaluated the information technology controls as they relate to financially 


significant applications. Our procedures primarily focused on documenting and evaluating general 


computer controls, including: 


 Logical access to data and applications 


 Change and incident management 


 Systems development and deployment 


 Data backup and recovery 


 


The following points contain suggestions for strengthening internal controls in these areas. 


 Passwords should be changed every 90 days, require a minimum of 6 characters, require 


strong (complex) passwords, and password history should be remembered so users can’t 


reuse recent (3-6) previous passwords. Additionally, users should lock after 3-5 failed login 


attempts. 


 Back-ups should be stored offsite or in a fire proof location. 


 


We recommend that a designated employee review the risks and these potential controls and 


determine whether additional controls should be implemented. This determination should take into 


consideration a cost / benefit analysis.  
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Required communications 


Qualitative aspect of accounting practices 


- Accounting policies: Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 


policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we have advised management about 


the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 


used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 1, the City 


changed accounting policies related to financial reporting for fiduciary activities by adopting 


Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities, in 2019. Also 


described in Note 1, the City changed accounting policies related to financial reporting for debt 


disclosures by adopting Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 88 – Certain 


Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placement, in 2019. Accordingly, 


these accounting changes have been retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if the 


policy has always been used. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for 


which accounting policies are controversial or for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 


consensus or diversity in practice. 


- Accounting estimates: Accounting estimates, including fair value estimates, are an integral part of the 


financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and 


experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 


estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements, the 


degree of subjectivity involved in their development and because of the possibility that future events 


affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The following estimates are of most 


significance to the  financial statements: 


 


Estimate Management’s process to 
determine 


Baker Tilly’s conclusions 
regarding reasonableness 


Net pension 
liability and 
related deferrals 


Evaluation of information provided 
by the Wisconsin Retirement 
System 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Allowance for 
doubtful 
accounts 


Evaluation of historical revenues 
and loss levels with the analysis on 
collectability of individual amounts 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Firemen’s net 
pension liability 
and related 
deferrals 


Key assumptions set by 
management with the assistance of 
a third party actuary 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Depreciation Evaluate estimated useful life of the 
asset and original acquisition value 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


 


There have been no significant changes made by management to either the processes used to 


develop the particularly sensitive accounting estimates, or to the significant assumptions used to 


develop the estimates, noted above.  


- Financial statement disclosures: The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, 


consistent and clear.  
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Significant unusual transactions 


There have been no significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the City or 


that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing, size or nature.  


Other information in documents containing audited financial statements 


The City’s audited financial statements are “general purpose” financial statements. General purpose 


financial statements consist of the basic financial statements that can be used by a broad group of people 


for a broad range of activities. Once we have issued our audit report, we have no further obligation to 


update our report for events occurring subsequent to the date of our report. The City can use the audited 


financial statements in other client prepare documents, such as official statements related to the issuance 


of debt, without our acknowledgement. Unless we have been engaged to perform services in connection 


with any subsequent transaction requiring the inclusion of our audit report, as well as to issue an auditor’s 


acknowledgment letter, we have neither read the document nor performed subsequent event procedures 


in order to determine whether or not our report remains appropriate. 


Difficulties encountered during the audit 


We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management and completing our audit.  


Disagreements with management 


Professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to 


our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to 


the financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 


arose during the course of our audit.  


Management’s consultations with other accountants 


In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 


matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 


accountants regarding auditing or accounting matters. 


Written communications between management and Baker Tilly 


The Appendix includes copies of other material written communications, including a copy of the 


management representation letter. 
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Uncorrected misstatements and corrected misstatements 


Professional standards require us to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit, other than 


those that are clearly trivial, and to communicate accumulated misstatements to management. The 


schedule within the Appendix summarizes the uncorrected misstatements, other than those that are 


clearly trivial, that we presented to management and the material corrected misstatements that, in our 


judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. In our judgment, neither 


the uncorrected misstatements nor the misstatements that management corrected, either individually or in 


the aggregate, indicate matters that could have had a significant effect on the city’s financial reporting 


process. 


Management has determined that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both 


individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. The uncorrected misstatements 


or the matters underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements to be materially 


misstated, even though, in our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial 


statements under audit. 


Compliance with laws and regulations 


We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations during our audit.  


Fraud 


We did not identify any known or suspected fraud during our audit.  


Going concern 


Pursuant to professional standards, we are required to communicate to you, when applicable, certain 


matters relating to our evaluation of the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 


period of time but no less than 12 months from the date the  financial statements are issued or available 


to be issued, including the effects on the financial statements and the adequacy of the related 


disclosures, and the effects on the auditor's report. No such matters or conditions have come to our 


attention during our engagement.  


Independence 


We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly and the City’s that, in our professional 


judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 


Related parties 


We did not have any significant findings or issues arise during the audit in connection with the City’s 


related parties. 


Other audit findings or issues 


We encountered no other audit findings or issues that require communication at this time. 


We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 


standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these 


discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 


condition to our retention 
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Other matters 


We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements 


the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 


methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 


responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 


audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide 


any assurance on the RSI. 


We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompanies the financial 


statements but is not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 


management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 


that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 


America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 


appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled 


the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 


statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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Nonattest services 


The following nonattest services were provided by Baker Tilly: 


- Financial statement preparation 


- Adjusting journal entries 


- Compiled TIF financial statements 


- Compiled regulatory reports 


- Maintenance of capital asset records 


- Impact fee services 


- Municipal advisory service 


 


In addition, we prepared GASB No. 34 conversion entries which are summarized in the “Reconciliation of 


the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position” and the “Reconciliation of 


the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 


Statement of Activities” in the financial statements. 


None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, 


including Government Auditing Standards. 


 







 


 


 


 


 


Accounting changes  


relevant to The City of Stoughton 
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Accounting changes relevant to the City of 


Stoughton  
Future accounting standards updates 


GASB 
Statement 
Number 


Description Potentially 
Impacts 
you 


Effective Date 


87 Leases  
 


12/31/20 


89 Accounting for Interest Incurred before the 
End of a Construction Period 


 
12/31/20 


91 Conduit Debt  
 


12/31/21 


 


Further information on upcoming GASB pronouncements 


In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, during the board meeting on May 7, 2020, GASB deliberated 
and approved Statement No. 95, which will delay the required implementation date of several standards 
by 12 months, and GASB 87 (leases) by 18 months. 


 


Preparing for the new lease standard 


GASB’s new single model for lease accounting will be effective for the upcoming year. This standard will 
require governments to identify and evaluate contracts that convey control of the right to use another 
entity’s nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-
like transaction. Contracts meeting the criteria for control, term and other items within the standard will 
result in recognizing a right to use asset and lease liability or a receivable and deferred inflow of 
resources. 


 
We recommend the City review this standard and start planning now as to how this will affect your 
financial reporting. We recommend that you begin by completing an inventory of all contracts that might 
meet the definition of a lease. The contract listing should include key terms of the contracts such as: 
 
- Description of contract 


- Underlying asset  


- Contract term  


- Options for extensions and terminations  


- Service components, if any 


- Dollar amount of lease  


 
In addition, the City should begin to establish a lease policy to address the treatment of common lease 
types, including a dollar threshold for each lease. We are available to discuss this further and help you 
develop an action plan.  
 
Learn more about GASB 87. 
 
  



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/gasb-update-for-public-sector-organizations

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/government-accounting-standards-board-gasb-new-lease
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Planning for the new conduit debt reporting 


Conduit debt includes arrangements where there are three separate parties involved including a third 


party that is obligated for payment, a debt holder or lender and an issuing party which is often a 


government.  This standard provides additional criteria for identifying and classifying conduit debt with the 


intent of providing consistency in how the debt is recorded and reported in governmental financial 


statements.  The City should identify any existing debt arrangements involving third party obligors and 


evaluate how those arrangements will be reported under the new standard in order to determine the 


potential impact of this standard on future financial reporting. 


 


 







 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Trending challenges  


for organizations  







 


City of Stoughton | 2019 Audit  5/11/2020 
© 2019 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP  Page | 22 


     


Trending challenges for organizations 
Management and the governing body of the City must keep the future in mind as they evaluate strategies 


to achieve future growth. Keeping a balance between risk and sustainability is key, and organizations 


need to think beyond their immediate needs to their long term goals. Economic uncertainty, coupled with 


key risk areas and fast paced technology change, make strategic planning complex. Begin the discussion 


with your management team to find your path to your future. 


 


COVID-19 Risks and ongoing response  


Staying nimble and resilient during unprecedented disruption 


COVID-19 has challenged all organizations and the effects continue to unfold. It is critical that 


management and governing bodies stay nimble to respond to direct and indirect effects of this disruption 


on operations, cash flow, and people. Some best practices to consider include: 


­ Establish mechanisms to track COVID-19 related expenses, lost 
revenues or delayed revenues 


­ Monitor cash flow projections and seek short term liquidity help 


­ Create a policy and forms for compliance with Family First 
Coronavirus Response Act 


­ Compare anticipated results to bond covenants and track any 
continuing disclosure items 


­ Re-evaluate TIF projections with revised development scenarios 


­ Develop a strategy for leading your community through the crisis 


 


Learn about public sector Coronavirus resources, including the latest news on business continuity and 


cash flow management, Federal stimulus and tax developments, and more.  


   


2020 strategic risks for boards 


Evaluating and mitigating the greatest risks 


Public sector organizations face a multitude of internal and external 


risks in an evolving landscape. Risks can stem from strategy, 


finances, legal situations, operations, regulatory compliance, 


information technology, economic environment, and/or fraud, waste 


and abuse. 


By employing a risk assessment, areas with the greatest needs and 


highest risks are evaluated. Then a risk mitigation plan can be 


developed and deployed. 


Learn about risk assessment types, tools and strategies.  



https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/coronavirus-and-state-and-local-governments

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/coronavirus-and-state-and-local-governments

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/risky-business-assessing-risks-in-your-organization
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Cybersecurity 


Operational reporting on cybersecurity effectiveness 


As boards engage management in cybersecurity risk 


discussions, directors should expect management to produce 


reports on the effectiveness of the organization's 


cybersecurity-risk management program. Management can 


(and should) collect and analyze relevant performance 


measures and metrics to determine if cybersecurity 


safeguards and controls are operating as intended, and 


whether any corrective action should be taken to strengthen 


management's risk-mitigation approaches. While not an 


exhaustive list, some key processes on which management 


should report include these: 


- Incident management 


- Risk management and governance 


- Independent assurance on the cybersecurity program 


 


Learn more about cybersecurity risk management.  


   


 


Data privacy 


Elevating privacy risks to the forefront of board agendas 


Organizations around the world are still scrambling to comply with the General Data Protection 


Regulation in the European Union, which went into effect in May 2018. While the data privacy regulatory 


environment changes rapidly, organizations can take proactive steps to ensure that they stay informed of 


the existing regulations and of those developing on the 


near horizon. 


Adequate oversight remains a key part of staying on top 


of data privacy developments. Some regulations specify 


oversight requirements, and can depend on the type of 


the organization, the quantity and type of personal data 


processed, and the locations where operations take place. 


In many cases, a data protection officer (DPO) must lead 


the effort. Since the DPO is responsible for overseeing 


practices related to data protection strategy and 


implementation, having one in place early on will help 


ensure that the privacy program is comprehensive and 


consistent. 


Learn more about data privacy risk management. 


 


WATCH: On demand webinar about a risk-based 


approach to oversight, compliance and 


management of privacy 


WATCH: On demand webinar about board 


governance over cybersecurity. 



https://bakertilly.com/NACD

https://blog.nacdonline.org/posts/board-evolving-expectations-privacy

https://bakertilly.com/insights/the-rise-of-privacy-a-risk-based-approach-to-privacy-oversight-compliance-a/

https://bakertilly.com/insights/the-rise-of-privacy-a-risk-based-approach-to-privacy-oversight-compliance-a/

https://bakertilly.com/insights/the-rise-of-privacy-a-risk-based-approach-to-privacy-oversight-compliance-a/

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/cybersecurity-oversight-the-board-and-c-suites-perspectives/

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/cybersecurity-oversight-the-board-and-c-suites-perspectives/

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/cybersecurity-oversight-the-board-and-c-suites-perspectives/
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The talent problem 


Establishing a lifeline for your shifting workforce 


Employee recruitment and retention challenges are an all too common struggle 


in the public sector: 


- Aging workers with institutional knowledge retire 


- High demand for small qualified candidate pool 


- Perception of geographic disadvantages  


- Wage/benefit competition with private sector 


- Lean operations exclude investments in  recruitment, on-the-job training and 


technology 


- Unclear growth and career advancement tracks 


Sustainable organizations must have a robust workforce development and 


succession planning program. Learn how to get started and incorporate a workforce/succession planning 


program with existing operational practices. 


   


Public sector executive recruitment 


Navigating recruitments and smart hiring 


Competing for top executive talent in the public sector 


space takes industry knowledge, familiarity with the 


general applicant pool and experience navigating 


recruitments. Search consultants draw upon their 


understanding of organizational management and human 


resources to serve as a successful agent for government 


entities. In turn, public sector organizations can adopt a 


foundational understanding about search firms to ensure 


optimal collaboration on hiring opportunities. 


Read the three part series to learn what your entity should 


be thinking about and how Baker Tilly can help.  


 


  


 


Download 


Three part series on public 
sector executive recruitment 
Navigate the changing workforce landscape with 
confidence, read the executive recruitment series. 
1. Five myths about search firms 


2. Recruiting for difficult positions  


3. Hiring recommendations for government 


entities 



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/public-sector-executive-recruitment-hiring-recommendations-for-government-entities

https://go.bakertilly.com/the-talent-problem

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/public-sector-executive-recruitment-hiring-recommendations-for-government-entities

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/public-sector-executive-recruitment-recruiting-for

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/public-sector-executive-recruitment-hiring-recommendations-for-government-entities

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/public-sector-executive-recruitment-hiring-recommendations-for-government-entities
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Operational and organizational sustainability 


Aligning resources with strategy 
 


As new demands confront the public sector 


industry, it’s easy to solve an immediate problem 


instead of pausing to take a holistic view. Rippling 


inefficiencies, increasing financial pressures, taxing 


staff resources and plummeting constituent 


satisfaction can pile atop organizations already 


facing pressure to improve efficiency, effectiveness, 


relevance and financial viability. 


An operational review follows a systematic, 


strategic approach to understanding an entity’s 


operations and performance. Opportunities to 


improve processes, bolster internal controls and 


reduce costs are uncovered in order to realign 


organizational resources and strategic objectives. 


Learn invaluable methods for executing an operational review while maintaining day-to-day operations.  


 


 



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/operational-reviews-the-ultimate-public-sector-health-check
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Appendix C: Uncorrected misstatements 
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Uncorrected Misstatements 
The city has one uncorrected financial statement misstatement as the result of not implementing GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. Had this standard been implemented the following would have been recorded. 
 


Financial statement effects – debit (credit) to financial statement total: 
 


Opinion unit Total  
assets/ 


deferred 
outflows 


 Total liabilities/ 
deferred inflows 


 Total 
net position/ 


fund 
balances 


 Total expenses/ 
expenditures 


 Change in  
net position/ 


fund balances 


Governmental Activities 36,774  (779,799)  743,025  (126,774)  (126,774) 


Business-type Activities 12,864  (206,673)  193,809  (54,492)  (54,492) 


Water 2,411  (37,118)  34,707  (10,325)  (10,325) 


Wastewater 2,498  (38,468)  35,970  (10,700)  (10,700) 


Electric 7,232  (111,353)  104,121  (30,974)  (30,974) 


Remaining Funds 723  (19,733)  190,010  (2,494)  (2,494) 
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As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 


audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 


the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 


As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 


year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 


next audit: 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 


our detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 


risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 


design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 


understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 


relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 


implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  


Identify types of potential misstatements. 


Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 


Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 


c. We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 


compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  


d. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 


are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 


accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 


concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 


financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 


assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


Our audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 


of America. 


e. Your financial statements contain components, as defined by auditing standards generally 


accepted in the United States of America, which we also audit. 


We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the governing board has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 


of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 


responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 


business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. We anticipate that the City will receive an unmodified opinion on its financial statements. 


e. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 


areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


f. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


g. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
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Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the governing 


body concerning: 


a. The entity’s internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 


governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 


We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 


accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 


communications with us. 


With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 


preliminary financial audit work during the months of October-December, and sometimes early January. 


Our final financial fieldwork is scheduled during the spring to best coincide with your readiness and report 


deadlines. After fieldwork, we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of 


our report for your review. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval 


by your staff. This is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of 


factors.  


Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 


it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 


plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate 


audit evidence. 


We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 


welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT


To the City Council
City of Stoughton
Stoughton, Wisconsin


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.


Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditors' Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Stoughton's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Stoughton's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.


i


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members 
of which are separate and independent legal entities. © 2018 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP







Opinions


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton,  Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2019 and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


Emphasis of Matter


As discussed in Note 1, the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective January 1, 2019. Our opinions are not modified with
respect to this matter.


Other Matters


Required Supplementary Information


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.


Supplementary Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.


Madison, Wisconsin
May 11, 2020
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CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
 


 
Management of the City of Stoughton offer readers of the City of Stoughton's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Stoughton for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with the city's financial statements. 


 


FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 


A successful city manages its limited resources to provide the best goods and services to its residents. 
Prudent management of financial assets seeks to both maximize the value of current goods and services 
while also planning for future needs, wants and opportunities. Management presents this analysis with a 
view to the current period and the future. 
 


 Net positon increased $ 2.7 million, or 3.0%, in 2019 to $91.0 million from $88.3 million in 2018. 
However, governmental activities accounted for only $0.03 million of the increase in net position 
with the remainder generated from business-type activities. 
 


 Net investment in capital assets increased by $1.3 million, or 2.0%, in 2019.    
 
 Unrestricted net position increased in 2019 by $2.4 million, or 14.9%, to $18.3 million. The 


increase is due in large part to borrowings in TID 6 and from cash and receivables generated from 
governmental activities.  


 
 The city's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $17.4 million at year-end. $3.1 


million of the fund balance was unassigned and able to fund future city expenditures. The remainder 
of the fund balance was nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned for various purposes.  


 
 Long-term bonds and notes outstanding increased by $4.3 million to $50.5 million at the end of 


2019. The additional debt was incurred to fund the city’s capital fund projects and water projects.  


 


OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the city's basic financial 
statements. These financial statements consist of two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis (this 
section) and the basic financial statements. The basic financial statements include two kinds of 
statements that present different views of the city: 
 


 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the city's overall financial status. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) 
 


 
 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of city 


government, reporting the city's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
 
These financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the city as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the 
government’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of 
the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the city’s net position and how they have changed. Net 
position – the city’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources – is one way to measure the city’s financial health, or position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the city’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. To assess the overall health of the city you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors 
such as changes in the city’s property tax base, changes in the local, state and national economies, and 
the condition of the city’s roads and other infrastructure. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and 
expenses reported in this statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The city, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the 
funds of the city can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) 
 


 
The city maintains thirty-eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, construction fund, outlay fund and TIF 
District #7 fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The city adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The city maintains five different proprietary funds, all of which are enterprise funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements present the same type of 
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
 
Internal Service Fund – The internal service fund is used to account for and report the financing of goods 
or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. 
 
Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because 
the resources of those funds are not available to support the city’s own programs. The accounting used 
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, required 
supplementary information presents a detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund to 
demonstrate compliance with the budget, followed by the city’s pension related information. The 
combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary information. 
 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 
 


 
An analysis of the city’s financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two statements report the city’s 
net position and changes therein. It should be noted that the financial position could also be affected by 
nonfinancial factors, including economic conditions, population growth and new regulations. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
A summary of the city’s Statement of Net Position is presented below. 


Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position


2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets 32,681,577$   29,870,075$      15,289,239$     14,878,017$      47,970,816$    44,748,092$    
Capital assets 52,631,928     51,209,090        60,006,260       57,361,213        112,638,188    108,570,303    


Total Assets 85,313,505     81,079,165        75,295,499       72,239,230        160,609,004    153,318,395    


Pension related amounts 3,686,053       2,079,552          1,173,998         679,881             4,860,051        2,759,433        
Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources 3,686,053       2,079,552          1,173,998         679,881             4,860,051        2,759,433        


Long-term liabilities 38,244,663     35,580,848        13,306,422       12,907,057        51,551,085      48,487,905      
Net pension liability 2,200,216       -                         443,159            -                        2,643,375        -                       
Other liabilities 2,813,030       2,668,525          2,894,341         2,698,474          5,707,371        5,366,999        


Total Liabilities 43,257,909     38,249,373        16,643,922       15,605,531        59,901,831      53,854,904      


Unearned revenue 11,569,786     10,987,696        -                        -                        11,569,786      10,987,696      
Pension related amounts 2,381,062       2,162,394          617,148            759,394             2,998,210        2,921,788        


Total Deferred Inflows
  of Resources 13,950,848     13,150,090        617,148            759,394             14,567,996      13,909,484      


Net investment in 
capital assets 19,667,802     21,358,159        46,473,103       43,606,545        65,787,595      64,491,804      


Restricted 3,833,588       4,600,716          3,072,630         3,295,342          6,906,218        7,896,058        
Unrestricted 8,289,411       5,800,379          9,662,694         9,652,299          18,305,415      15,925,578      


Total Net Position 31,790,801$   31,759,254$      59,208,427$     56,554,186$      90,999,228$    88,313,440$    


Governmental Business Type Totals
Activities Activities


 
The largest portion of the city’s net position (72.3%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire 
those assets that are still outstanding. The city uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the city’s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources as the capital assets themselves cannot generally be liquidated 
to pay these liabilities. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
An additional portion of the city’s net position (7.6%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position (20.1%) may be 
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligation to citizens, customers and creditors. However, it is 
important to note that unrestricted balances can generally only be applied to the individual funds’ 
obligations and cannot generally be transferred from one fund to another except under limited 
circumstances. 
 
A summary of the city’s Statement of Activities is presented below. 


Table 2
Condensed Statement of Revenues,


Expenses and Changes in Net Position


2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
REVENUES
Program Revenues


Charges for services 3,014,578$      3,194,280$     20,326,367$       20,500,400$     23,340,945$       23,694,680$   
Operating grants and 
   contributions 1,977,030        1,751,419       23,575                53,730              2,000,605           1,805,149       
Capital grants and


contributions 86,920             2,192,906       93,467                1,148,641         180,387              3,341,547       
General Revenues


Property taxes 10,239,339      9,603,316       -                          -                       10,239,339         9,603,316       
Other taxes 130,559           137,688          -                          -                       130,559              137,688          
Intergovernmental 932,109           1,025,797       -                          -                       932,109              1,025,797       
Other 940,077           986,150          454,244              189,176            1,394,321           1,175,326       
      Total Revenues 17,320,612      18,891,556     20,897,653         21,891,947       38,218,265         40,783,503     


EXPENSES
General government 2,230,352        2,053,284       -                          -                       2,230,352           2,053,284       
Public safety 4,756,181        4,677,585       -                          -                       4,756,181           4,677,585       
Public works 3,933,341        4,110,559       -                          -                       3,933,341           4,110,559       
Culture, education and
   recreation 4,061,644        3,527,824       -                          -                       4,061,644           3,527,824       
Conservation and development 598,312           939,747          -                          -                       598,312              939,747          
Water -                       -                      1,664,278           1,478,914         1,664,278           1,478,914       
Wastewater -                       -                      1,992,498           1,902,959         1,992,498           1,902,959       
Electric -                       -                      14,070,250         14,278,273       14,070,250         14,278,273     
EMS -                       -                      653,890              602,256            653,890              602,256          
Storm sewer -                       -                      540,212              579,275            540,212              579,275          
Interest and fiscal charges 1,031,519        907,723          -                          -                       1,031,519           907,723          


     Total Expenses 16,611,349      16,216,722     18,921,128         18,841,677       35,532,477         35,058,399     


Income Before Transfers 709,263           2,674,834       1,976,525           3,050,270         2,685,788           5,725,104       


Transfers (677,716)          319,491          677,716              (319,491)          -                          -                      


Change in Net Position 31,547             2,994,325       2,654,241           2,730,779         2,685,788           5,725,104       


 Beginning Net Position 31,759,254      28,764,929     56,554,186         53,823,407       88,313,440         82,588,336     


ENDING NET POSITION 31,790,801$    31,759,254$   59,208,427$       56,554,186$     90,999,228$       88,313,440$   


Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Totals
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
As previously noted, the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position. 
The specific nature or source of these changes then becomes more evident in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown above in Table 2.  
 
Governmental Activities – Revenues 
 
Governmental activities increased the city’s net position by $31,547 in 2019. This is down sharply from an 
increase in the city’s net position of $2,994,325 in 2018. However, most of the decrease is due to a one-
time $1.6 million donation of a building to the City of Stoughton to serve as a city hall in 2018. There was 
also $0.5 million less developer donations of infrastructure in 2019 compared to 2018. The overall 
$31,547 increase in net position indicates that city’s governmental activities neither significantly improved 
nor impaired the city’s financial position in 2019. 
 
Program revenues are those revenues that can be directly related to a particular activity, whereas general 
revenues represent revenues that are not directly related to one specific function. General revenues 
include property taxes, state aids and investment income. Charges for services are primarily made up of 
licenses, permits, public charges for services such as library, garbage, recycling, park, and recreation 
fees. Operating grants are mainly from state resources received for highway maintenance, taxi service 
and recycling programs. Capital grants fluctuate annually and are received to assist the city in capital 
asset purchases. 
 
Property taxes are the largest revenue source for the governmental activities accounting for 60% of total 
revenues. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 


 


Governmental Activities by Revenue Source 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 


 
 
Governmental Activities – Expenses 
 
Governmental activities expenses are broken down into various functions. General government includes 
administrative type costs including Council, Clerk, Human Resources, Finance, Legal and Assessment 
services. Costs associated with the city's Police Department and Fire services are shown within the public 
safety function. The public works function includes expenses for street and sidewalk maintenance, winter 
and forestry operations, and refuse and recycling efforts. Health and human services include the senior 
center, parks, recreation, cemetery and cable television. Conservation and development are the 
expenses of the planning department and TIF funds. 
 
 Governmental Activities Expenses Shown by Function 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
Business Type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the City of Stoughton's net position by $2,654,241. The electric utility 
accounted for 16.6%, the water utility accounted for 17.8%, the wastewater accounted for 14.0%, storm 
sewer accounted for 49.4% and EMS accounted for 2.2% of the net increase. Storm sewer accounted for 
an outsized portion of the net increase in 2019 due to a $1,181,861 capital contribution from the city. 
 
As shown on the following chart, the major source of revenues for the business-type activities is charges 
for services; other revenues include grants, contributions and investment income. 
 


Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
Operating Expenses and Revenues - Business-type Activities 
 


 


 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the City of Stoughton’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the city’s 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
At December 31, 2019, the city’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $17,377,128, up 
from $14,196,336 at the end of 2018. Approximately 18% of this amount, $3,124,604, constitutes the 
unassigned fund balance, which is available to meet the city’s current and future needs. An additional 
$12,775,591 is included in the restricted, committed, or assigned category, which has been designated for 
specific projects or expenditures. The remaining $1,476,933 is nonspendable for prepaid expenditures, 
noncurrent assets, delinquent items and other investments. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 


General Fund 
 
The city’s general fund is the chief operating fund of the city. Total fund balance in the general fund 
increased $552,812, or 8.8%, from the prior year. The increase is primarily due to investment income, 
miscellaneous revenues and transfers in exceeding budgeted amounts. See the following General Fund 
Budgetary Highlights section for further details. 
 
The city has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned general fund 
balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. The unassigned 
general fund balance at year-end including deficits in funds potentially funded by the General Fund was 
$3,903,588, or 27.9%, of 2019 general fund budgeted expenditures. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The city’s debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs. The fund balance at the end of 2019 was $832,401, which 
is an increase of $270,399 from the prior year. The increase is due to premium on new debt issuance. 
 
Construction Capital Projects Fund 
 
The city’s construction capital projects fund accounts for the funds accumulated for the purpose of 
obtaining capital assets or for capital projects and other expenditures that are unique and are not normal 
operating or maintenance type expenditures reportable within the general fund or other governmental 
funds. The total fund balance as of December 31, 2019 is $2,403,116, all of which is restricted or 
assigned. 
 
Outlay – Capital Projects Fund 
 
The city’s outlay fund accounts for the funds accumulated for the purpose of obtaining capital equipment 
and other capital assets. The total fund balance as of December 31, 2019 is $1,307,532. 
 
TIF District No. 7 Fund 
 
TID No. 7 was created in 2015. The entire fund balance of $438,407, which increased $247,712 in 2019, 
is restricted for future TID 7 projects. 
 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
Fund balance of all other governmental funds is $5,592,091, an increase of $1,506,716 from the prior 
year.  There are 33 different nonmajor governmental funds, each with a different purpose. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City of Stoughton’s proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of these 
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the city’s business-type activities. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
Internal Service Fund 
 
In December 2011, the city paid off its Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Liability. The city borrowed money from the Electric Utility to pay off its portion of liability. This advance 
has been recorded in the Retirement Fund, which is an Internal Service Fund that the city created for this 
purpose. The internal service fund had a deficit of $252,442 as of December 31, 2019, which represents 
the amount to be paid to the Electric Utility and funded through future years’ charges to governmental 
funds.  


 


GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 


 
The General Fund budget had total appropriations, including those for transfers out, of $14,258,094. Actual 
expenditures and transfers out were $14,165,984, resulting in a $92,110 favorable variance. Total actual 
revenues and other sources were $14,718,796, $433,328 more than the budget. Further details can be found 
in the budget to actual section of this report and the city’s year-end budget to actual report. 


 


CAPITAL ASSETS 
 


 
At the end of 2019, the city had invested a total of $112.6 million in capital assets. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. 
 


2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018


Land and other assets


   not being depreciated 11,424,738$      20,168,555$    2,112,866$         1,319,233$      13,537,604$      21,487,788$      


Buildings & improvements 25,765,325        17,708,322      1,240,308           1,240,308        27,005,633        18,948,630        


Machinery & equipment 9,809,162          11,373,741      941,588              941,588           10,750,750        12,315,329        


Infrastructure 33,684,912        32,255,881      -                          -                       33,684,912        32,255,881        


Utility plant -                         -                       93,167,739         89,698,369      93,167,739        89,698,369        


      Total Capital Assets 80,684,137        81,506,499      97,462,501         93,199,498      178,146,638      174,705,997      


Less: Accumulated depreciation (28,052,209)       (30,297,409)     (37,456,241)        (35,838,285)     (65,508,450)       (66,135,694)       


NET CAPITAL ASSETS 52,631,928$      51,209,090$    60,006,260$       57,361,213$    112,638,188$    108,570,303$    


Governmental Business Type Totals


Activities Activities
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CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.) 
 


 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
Governmental Activities 
 


 Infrastructure reconstruction projects of sidewalks throughout the city and street reconstruction.  
 Construction of a new street in TIF District #6. 
 Various equipment purchases. 


 
Business-type Activities 
 


 Business-type activities capital assets increased due to additions and replacements to utility 
infrastructure and equipment. 


 $1.5 million due to contributions of infrastructure from city to water, wastewater and stormwater as 
part of general street construction projects and TIF-related projects. 


 
 


LONG-TERM DEBT 
 


 
At December 31, 2019, the city had $50,517,044 of long-term bonds and notes outstanding, which is a 
$4,271,613 increase from 2018. $12,107,100 of this is revenue debt and the rest relates to general 
obligation issues. In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city 
may not exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The debt limit as 
of December 31, 2019 was $61,686,215. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was 
$38,409,944. Therefore, the city was at 62% of the legal debt limit. 
 
The city has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt at 4% or less of the 
equalized value. The city’s outstanding general obligation debt was at 3.1%. 
 


 


CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS/ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 
 


 
All currently known facts and economic conditions were considered in preparing the 2020 city budget, 
except for the COVID-19 pandemic beginning in March 2020. COVID-19 closures and cancellations will 
impact the Opera House fund. The Opera House fund had revenues of $867,000 in 2019. The City of 
Stoughton cannot at this time project how COVID-19 will impact the Opera House’s revenues or how 
much associated expense can be reduced to cover loss revenues. The general fund has ample reserves 
to cover loss revenues, if necessary. 


 


REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 


 
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the city’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional information, 
contact the City of Stoughton Finance Director 







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2019


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Totals


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 16,924,643 $ 9,317,759 $ 26,242,402
Receivables (net) 12,418,028 2,445,943 14,863,971
Due from other governmental units 29,600 - 29,600
Internal balances 1,137,373 (1,137,373) -
Inventories and prepaid items 788,331 255,054 1,043,385
Investment in mutual insurance company 257,805 - 257,805
Restricted cash and investments - 3,882,549 3,882,549
Other assets - 525,307 525,307
Land held for resale 1,125,797 - 1,125,797
Capital Assets


Capital assets not being depreciated 11,424,738 2,112,866 13,537,604
Capital assets net of depreciation 41,207,190 57,893,394 99,100,584


Total Assets 85,313,505 75,295,499 160,609,004


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 3,686,053 1,173,998 4,860,051


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,686,053 1,173,998 4,860,051


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,807,109 1,047,719 2,854,828
Accrued liabilities and deposits 698,007 264,729 962,736
Other liabilities 307,914 21,145 329,059
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds - 1,505,628 1,505,628
Accrued interest - 55,120 55,120


Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year 3,708,168 436,562 4,144,730
Due in more than one year 34,536,495 12,869,860 47,406,355
Net pension liability 2,200,216 443,159 2,643,375


Total Liabilities 43,257,909 16,643,922 59,901,831


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 11,569,786 - 11,569,786
Pension related amounts 2,381,062 617,148 2,998,210


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,950,848 617,148 14,567,996


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 19,667,802 46,473,103 65,787,595
Restricted for


Debt service 415,871 1,908,740 2,324,611
Firemen pension 848,192 - 848,192
Equipment replacement - 1,163,890 1,163,890
TID activities 1,849,891 - 1,849,891
Library 255,092 - 255,092
Impact fees 458,089 - 458,089
Grants and loans 6,453 - 6,453


Unrestricted 8,289,411 9,662,694 18,305,415


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 31,790,801 $ 59,208,427 $ 90,999,228


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Program Revenues


Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for


Services


Operating
Grants and


Contributions


Capital 
Grants and


Contributions


Governmental Activities
General government $ 2,230,352 $ 219,204 $ 148,285 $ -
Public safety 4,756,181 595,180 201,204 57,320
Public works 3,933,341 1,002,420 849,123 29,600
Culture, recreation and education 4,061,644 1,085,228 769,675 -
Conservation and development 598,312 112,546 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 1,031,519 - 8,743 -


Total Governmental Activities 16,611,349 3,014,578 1,977,030 86,920


Business-type Activities
Water 1,664,278 2,316,517 - -
Wastewater 1,992,498 2,128,425 - -
Electric 14,070,250 14,624,571 - 93,467
EMS 653,890 602,173 23,575 -
Storm sewer 540,212 654,681 - -


Total Business-type Activities 18,921,128 20,326,367 23,575 93,467


Total $ 35,532,477 $ 23,340,945 $ 2,000,605 $ 180,387


General Revenues
Taxes


Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for TIF districts
Other taxes


Intergovernmental revenues not restricted to specific programs
Gain on sale of assets
Investment income
Miscellaneous


Total General Revenues
Transfers


Change in net position


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Totals


$ (1,862,863) $ - $ (1,862,863)
(3,902,477) - (3,902,477)
(2,052,198) - (2,052,198)
(2,206,741) - (2,206,741)


(485,766) - (485,766)
(1,022,776) - (1,022,776)


(11,532,821) - (11,532,821)


- 652,239 652,239
- 135,927 135,927
- 647,788 647,788
- (28,142) (28,142)
- 114,469 114,469
- 1,522,281 1,522,281


(11,532,821) 1,522,281 (10,010,540)


9,037,706 - 9,037,706
1,201,633 - 1,201,633


130,559 - 130,559
932,109 - 932,109


- 60,527 60,527
492,912 322,461 815,373
447,165 71,256 518,421


12,242,084 454,244 12,696,328
(677,716) 677,716 -


31,547 2,654,241 2,685,788


31,759,254 56,554,186 88,313,440


$ 31,790,801 $ 59,208,427 $ 90,999,228


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2019


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects Outlay


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,956,245 $ 525,806 $ 2,771,020 $ 668,606
Receivables (net)


Taxes 9,405,623 - - -
Delinquent personal property taxes 6,958 - - -
Accounts 71,990 - - 270
Accrued interest 5,429 - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Delinquent special assessments 11,068 - - -
Loans - - - -


Due from other governments - - - -
Due from other funds 954,740 306,745 260,834 -
Advances to other funds 1,046,023 - - -
Other investments 257,805 - - -
Prepaid items 5,630 - - 699,826


TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,721,511 $ 832,551 $ 3,031,854 $ 1,368,702


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 426,599 $ 7,576,367 $ 16,924,643


546,395 1,661,455 11,613,473
- - 6,958


58,125 72,844 203,229
- 2,091 7,520
- 464,808 464,808
- - 11,068
- 110,972 110,972
- 29,600 29,600
- - 1,522,319
- - 1,046,023
- - 257,805
- 82,875 788,331


$ 1,031,119 $ 10,001,012 $ 32,986,749


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2019


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects Outlay


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 228,890 $ 150 $ 628,738 $ 61,170
Accrued liabilities 238,251 - - -
Deposits 16,574 - - -
Other liabilities 27,244 - - -
Due to other funds 16,998 - - -
Due to other governments 6,259 - - -
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 534,216 150 628,738 61,170


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 9,383,714 - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,383,714 - - -


Fund Balances
Nonspendable for prepaid items 5,630 - - -
Nonspendable for non-current interfunds 1,112,597 - - -
Nonspendable for delinquent items 18,026 - - -
Nonspendable for other investments 257,805 - - -
Restricted - 832,401 443,834 -
Committed - - - -
Assigned 1,160,595 - 1,959,282 1,307,532
Unassigned (deficit) 4,248,928 - - -


Total Fund Balances 6,803,581 832,401 2,403,116 1,307,532


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 16,721,511 $ 832,551 $ 3,031,854 $ 1,368,702


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 12,819 $ 875,342 $ 1,807,109
- 19,809 258,060


584 - 17,158
- 280,670 307,914
- 115,506 132,504
- - 6,259
- 1,046,023 1,046,023


13,403 2,337,350 3,575,027


579,309 1,606,763 11,569,786
- 464,808 464,808


579,309 2,071,571 12,034,594


- 82,875 88,505
- - 1,112,597
- - 18,026
- - 257,805


438,407 4,045,820 5,760,462
- 1,371,062 1,371,062
- 1,216,658 5,644,067
- (1,124,324) 3,124,604


438,407 5,592,091 17,377,128


$ 1,031,119 $ 10,001,012 $ 32,986,749


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


As of December 31, 2019


Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 17,377,128


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note II. A. 52,631,928


Land held for resale. 1,125,797


Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as unavailable
revenues in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when
earned in the government-wide statements. 464,808


The net pension liabilities do not relate to current financial resources and are not
reported in the governmental funds. (2,200,216)


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,686,053


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. (2,381,062)


Internal service funds are reported in the statement of net position as governmental
activities. (252,442)


Some liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note  II. A. (38,661,193)


NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 31,790,801


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects Outlay


REVENUES
Taxes $ 9,090,775 $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 1,919,896 8,743 - 55,323
Licenses and permits 223,924 - - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 149,398 - - -
Public charges for services 1,449,026 - - -
Intergovernmental charges for services 62,202 48,783 - -
Special assessments 12,678 - - -
Investment income 236,249 6,083 84,386 19,975
Miscellaneous revenues 475,983 - - -


Total Revenues 13,620,131 63,609 84,386 75,298


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government 1,724,843 - - -
Public safety 4,060,432 - - -
Public works 2,288,436 - - -
Culture, recreation and education 1,609,975 - - -
Conservation and development - - - -


Capital Outlay - - 2,675,844 1,049,707
Debt Service


Principal - 3,215,601 - -
Interest and fiscal charges - 1,015,259 36,098 20,389


Total Expenditures 9,683,686 4,230,860 2,711,942 1,070,096


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 3,936,445 (4,167,251) (2,627,556) (994,798)


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - - 2,431,577 1,627,555
Premium on debt - 272,604 15,500 8,755
Sales of fixed assets - - - 12,120
Transfers in 1,098,665 4,165,046 - 200,000
Transfers out (4,482,298) - (70,000) -


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,383,633) 4,437,650 2,377,077 1,848,430


Net Change in Fund Balances 552,812 270,399 (250,479) 853,632


FUND BALANCES - Beginning of Year 6,250,769 562,002 2,653,595 453,900


FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 6,803,581 $ 832,401 $ 2,403,116 $ 1,307,532


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 526,673 $ 747,106 $ 10,364,554
1,959 312,272 2,298,193


- - 223,924
- - 149,398
- 970,487 2,419,513
- - 110,985
- 178,328 191,006


4,445 141,774 492,912
48,784 556,962 1,081,729


581,861 2,906,929 17,332,214


- 154,730 1,879,573
- 40,763 4,101,195
- - 2,288,436
- 2,199,899 3,809,874


1,000 29,007 30,007
- 2,158,488 5,884,039


- - 3,215,601
- 36,572 1,108,318


1,000 4,619,459 22,317,043


580,861 (1,712,530) (4,984,829)


- 2,920,868 6,980,000
- 15,705 312,564
- 29,061 41,181
- 1,233,181 6,696,892


(333,149) (979,569) (5,865,016)
(333,149) 3,219,246 8,165,621


247,712 1,506,716 3,180,792


190,695 4,085,375 14,196,336


$ 438,407 $ 5,592,091 $ 17,377,128


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,180,792
  
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of net position
the cost of these assets is capitalized and they are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.


Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements but is capitalized
in the government-wide financial statements 5,884,039


Some items reported as capital outlay were not capitalized (593,361)
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide financial statements (2,128,449)
Net book value of assets retired (229,800)


Capital assets contributed to business-type activities are reported as capital outlay in the fund
financial statements. (1,509,591)


Receivables not currently available are reported as revenue when collected or currently available in
the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when earned in the government-wide
financial statements.


Special assessments (4,076)
Guaranteed increment revenue (33,510)
Revolving loan (50,000)


Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position.


Debt issued (6,980,000)
Principal repaid 3,215,601


Governmental funds report debt premiums and discounts as other financing sources (uses) or
expenditures. However, in the statement of net position, these are reported as additions to or
deductions from long-term debt. These are allocated over the period the debt is outstanding in the
statement of activities and are reported as interest expense.


Premium on debt issued (312,564)
Amortization 56,694


Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 


Compensated absences (35,707)
Net pension liability / (asset) (1,880,105)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,606,501
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (218,668)
Accrued interest on debt 20,105


Internal service funds are used by management to charge self insurance costs to individual funds.
The change in net position of the internal service fund reported with governmental activities. $ 43,646


CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 31,547


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2019


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


ASSETS
Current Assets


Cash and investments $ 911,764 $ 916,787 $ 5,526,863
Receivables (net)


Other receivables 241,326 231,553 1,500,690
Interest receivable 9,349 15,605 15,560
Current portion of special assessments 29,026 19,905 -


Due from other funds 30,537 21,300 14,093
Current portion of advance to other funds - - 46,007
Inventories 39,599 - 187,211
Prepaid items 7,184 6,656 14,404
Restricted Assets


Redemption account - current 266,613 289,365 523,167
Total Current Assets 1,535,398 1,501,171 7,827,995


Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 340,710 - 460,722
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Equipment replacement - 1,163,890 -
Construction account 754,799 - -


Capital Assets
Land and land rights 430,131 - 344,364
Construction in progress 30 - 123,908
Plant in service 24,204,156 31,553,338 33,374,525
Property held for future use - - 229,097
Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,731,158) (12,237,929) (16,096,771)


Other Assets
Special assessments 145,129 99,526 -
Other prepaid asset - 53,479 -
Preliminary survey and investigation 2,462 2,462 -
Plant and maintenance reserve account 279,746 - 530,449
Sick leave reserve account 85,562 97,342 145,213
Advance to other funds - - 206,435
Investment in ATC - - 445,792
Non-utility property (net of amortization) 17,798 - 3,314


Total Noncurrent Assets 18,554,365 20,765,391 19,792,048


Total Assets 20,089,763 22,266,562 27,620,043


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 220,335 239,859 648,285


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 220,335 239,859 648,285


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
12







Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 824,033 $ 8,179,447 $ -


138,274 2,111,843 -
- 40,514 -
- 48,931 -


47,202 113,132 -
- 46,007 -
- 226,810 -
- 28,244 -


- 1,079,145 -
1,009,509 11,874,073 -


- 801,432 -
- 83,283 -
- 1,163,890 -
- 754,799 -


9,986 784,481 -
975,350 1,099,288 -


6,217,616 95,349,635 -
- 229,097 -


(1,390,383) (37,456,241) -


- 244,655 -
- 53,479 -
- 4,924 -
- 810,195 -
- 328,117 -
- 206,435 -
- 445,792 -
- 21,112 -


5,812,569 64,924,373 -


6,822,078 76,798,446 -


65,519 1,173,998 -


65,519 1,173,998 -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2019


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities


Accounts payable $ 37,909 $ 42,147 $ 809,979
Accrued liabilities 14,509 14,436 81,968
Public benefits - - 21,145
Deposits - - 120,972
Due to other funds 529,946 163,710 502,546
Current portion of general obligation debt 51,000 34,000 -
Current portion of advance - - -
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 439,952 405,676 660,000
Accrued interest 12,392 16,950 25,778


Total Current Liabilities 1,085,708 676,919 2,222,388


Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt


Customer advances for construction - - 27,416
Revenue bonds payable 3,373,206 3,478,266 3,750,000
Unamortized debt premium 73,096 - 76,286
General obligation debt payable 270,000 180,000 -
Compensated absences 85,562 97,342 145,213
Net pension liability 83,659 85,837 248,334


Advances from other funds - - -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,885,523 3,841,445 4,247,249


Total Liabilities 4,971,231 4,518,364 6,469,637


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 115,727 126,301 340,290


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 115,727 126,301 340,290


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets 13,450,704 15,217,467 13,488,837
Restricted for


Debt service 619,931 305,698 983,111
Equipment replacement - 1,163,890 -


Unrestricted (deficit) 1,152,505 1,174,701 6,986,453


TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $ 15,223,140 $ 17,861,756 $ 21,458,401


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Funds


$ 157,684 $ 1,047,719 $ -
32,844 143,757 -


- 21,145 -
- 120,972 -


306,745 1,502,947 -
351,562 436,562 -


- - 46,007


- 1,505,628 -
- 55,120 -


848,835 4,833,850 46,007


- 27,416 -
- 10,601,472 -
- 149,382 -


1,275,530 1,725,530 -
37,943 366,060 -
25,329 443,159 -


- - 206,435
1,338,802 13,313,019 206,435


2,187,637 18,146,869 252,442


34,830 617,148 -


34,830 617,148 -


4,316,095 46,473,103 -


- 1,908,740 -
- 1,163,890 -


349,035 9,662,694 (252,442)


$ 4,665,130 $ 59,208,427 $ (252,442)


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


OPERATING REVENUES $ 2,316,517 $ 2,128,425 $ 14,624,571


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 1,066,072 1,025,314 12,774,906
Depreciation 484,888 856,914 1,194,203


Total Operating Expenses 1,550,960 1,882,228 13,969,109


Operating Income 765,557 246,197 655,462


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 38,171 61,695 202,391
Interest and fiscal charges (52,141) (110,270) (109,620)
Miscellaneous expenses (4,280) - (6,787)
Debt issuance costs (62,380) - -
Interest subsidy - - -
Amortization of premium 5,483 - 15,266
Miscellaneous revenue - - 71,256
Intergovernmental grants - - -
Gain on sale of asset - 60,527 -


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (75,147) 11,952 172,506


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 690,410 258,149 827,968


CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Contributions in aid of construction - - 93,467
Capital contributions - city 213,240 114,491 -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (431,034) - (480,842)


Total Contributions and Transfers (217,794) 114,491 (387,375)


Change in Net Position 472,616 372,640 440,593


NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year 14,750,524 17,489,116 21,017,808


NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 15,223,140 $ 17,861,756 $ 21,458,401


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 1,256,854 $ 20,326,367 $ 52,529


918,257 15,784,549 -
236,619 2,772,624 -


1,154,876 18,557,173 -


101,978 1,769,194 52,529


20,204 322,461 -
(39,226) (311,257) (8,883)


- (11,067) -
- (62,380) -


3,035 3,035 -
- 20,749 -
- 71,256 -


20,540 20,540 -
- 60,527 -


4,553 113,864 (8,883)


106,531 1,883,058 43,646


- 93,467 -
1,181,861 1,509,592 -


80,000 80,000 -
- (911,876) -


1,261,861 771,183 -


1,368,392 2,654,241 43,646


3,296,738 56,554,186 (296,088)


$ 4,665,130 $ 59,208,427 $ (252,442)


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers $ 2,337,794 $ 2,115,815 $ 14,591,766
Received from municipality for services - - -
Received for street lighting - - 105,839
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (622,082) (671,666) (11,936,109)
Paid to employees for services (368,527) (363,748) (732,275)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,347,185 1,080,401 2,029,221


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments sold and matured 7,773 1,688 1,391,115
Investment income 39,331 67,313 92,885
Investments purchased (8,224) (13,133) (540,126)
Dividends from ATC - - 18,292


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 38,880 55,868 962,166


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (423,351) - (432,589)
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL


advance - - 43,646
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL


advance - - 8,883
Transfers to/from other funds - - (27,902)
Paid to utilities principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Paid to utilities interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Repayment of due to other funds - - -


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (423,351) - (407,962)


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt issued 1,825,000 - -
Debt retired (365,174) (470,323) (620,000)
Interest paid (47,010) (112,429) (110,153)
Debt issuance costs (62,380) - -
Premium received 55,598 - -
Special assessments received 38,314 26,275 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (844,708) (1,231,517) (1,137,346)
Capital contributions received - - 50,478


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 599,640 (1,787,994) (1,817,021)


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,562,354 (651,725) 766,404


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 653,399 2,305,311 3,727,279


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2,215,753 $ 1,653,586 $ 4,493,683


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal Service
Fund


$ 1,307,338 $ 20,352,713 $ -
- - 52,529
- 105,839 -


(268,321) (13,498,178) -
(508,108) (1,972,658) -
530,909 4,987,716 52,529


- 1,400,576 -
20,204 219,733 -


- (561,483) -
- 18,292 -


20,204 1,077,118 -


- (855,940) -


- 43,646 -


- 8,883 -
80,000 52,098 -


- - (43,646)
- - (8,883)


(3,035) (3,035) -
76,965 (754,348) (52,529)


450,000 2,275,000 -
(312,289) (1,767,786) -


(34,243) (303,835) -
- (62,380) -
- 55,598 -
- 64,589 -


(454,000) (3,667,571) -
- 50,478 -


(350,532) (3,355,907) -


277,546 1,954,579 -


546,487 7,232,476 -


$ 824,033 $ 9,187,055 $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income $ 765,557 $ 246,197 $ 655,462
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 41 - 68,129
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Flows From


Operating Activities
Depreciation 484,888 856,914 1,194,203
Depreciation charged to other funds 29,585 - 70,200


Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows
Customer accounts receivable (1,901) (11,810) 81,733
Other accounts receivable (289) (890) (65,546)
Due from other funds 41 90 (6,819)
Due to other funds (937) (923) (14,122)
Inventories (396) - 19,089
Prepaid items 661 (3,084) (5,543)
Accounts payable 23,677 3,469 (60,790)
Accrued wages 3,709 - -
Compensated absences 9,316 6,004 12,350
Customer deposits - - (4,463)
Other current liabilities - 1,297 (15,939)
Commitment to community - - (941)
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 33,233 36,616 102,218
Other prepaid asset - (53,479) -


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,347,185 $ 1,080,401 $ 2,029,221


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS


Cash and investments $ 911,764 $ 916,787 $ 5,526,863
Restricted cash and investments
Redemption account 266,613 289,365 523,167
Reserve account 340,710 - 460,722
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Construction account 754,799 - -
Plant and maintenance reserve account 279,746 - 530,449
Sick leave reserve account 85,562 97,342 145,213
Replacement account - 1,163,890 -


Total Cash and Investments 2,664,194 2,500,667 7,211,414
Less:  Noncash equivalents (448,441) (847,081) (2,717,731)


  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2,215,753 $ 1,653,586 $ 4,493,683


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (9,262) $ (15,347) $ 47,623


Contributed capital assets $ 213,240 $ 114,491 $ 8,022


ATC earnings allocated $ - $ - $ 11,206


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal Service
Fund


$ 101,978 $ 1,769,194 $ 52,529
23,575 91,745 -


236,619 2,772,624 -
- 99,785 -


(13,782) 54,240 -
40,691 (26,034) -


- (6,688) -
- (15,982) -
- 18,693 -
- (7,966) -


125,420 91,776 -
- 3,709 -


(267) 27,403 -
- (4,463) -


6,928 (7,714) -
- (941) -


9,747 181,814 -
- (53,479) -


$ 530,909 $ 4,987,716 $ 52,529


$ 824,033 $ 8,179,447 $ -


- 1,079,145 -
- 801,432 -
- 83,283 -
- 754,799 -
- 810,195 -
- 328,117 -
- 1,163,890 -


824,033 13,200,308 -
- (4,013,253) -


$ 824,033 $ 9,187,055 $ -


$ - $ -


$ 1,181,861 $ -


$ - $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUND


As of December 31, 2019


Tax Collection
Fund


ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 14,270,944
Tax roll receivable 2,907,742


Total Assets 17,178,686


LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing units 17,178,686


Total Liabilities 17,178,686


NET POSITION


TOTAL NET POSITION $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Tax Collection
Fund


ADDITIONS
Property taxes collected for other governments $ 4,115,795


Total Additions 4,115,795


DEDUCTIONS
Property taxes distributed to other governments 4,115,795


Total Deductions 4,115,795


Change in Fiduciary Net Position -


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year -


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


The accounting policies of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the "city") conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).


A. REPORTING ENTITY


This report includes all of the funds of the city. The reporting entity for the city consists of the primary
government and its component unit. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if: (1) it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on that
organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
primary government, (3) the organization is fiscally dependent on and there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government. Certain legally separate, tax exempt organizations should also be reported as a component
unit if all of the following criteria are met: (1) the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component
units, or its constituents; (2) the primary government or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability
to access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization; and (3) the
economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the primary
government.


Component units are reported using one of three methods, discrete presentation, blended, or fiduciary.
Generally, component units should be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial
statements. A component unit should be reported as part of the primary government using the blending
method if it meets any one of the following criteria: (1) the primary government and the component unit
have substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden relationship exists, (2) the
primary government and the component unit have substantively the same governing body and
management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the component unit, (3) the
component unit serves or benefits, exclusively or almost exclusively, the primary government rather than
its citizens, or (4) the total debt of the component unit will be paid entirely or almost entirely from resources
of the primary government.


Blended Component Units


The Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (RDA) serves all the citizens of the government and is governed
by a board of seven Commissioners. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are
approved by the government's council and the government is legally obligated to provide resources in
case there are deficiencies in debt service payments and resources are not available from other remedies.
The Authority is reported as a special revenue fund. The Authority does not issue separate financial
statements.  
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


In January 2017, the GASB issued statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This standard was implemented
January 1, 2019.


In March 2018, the GASB issued statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to
financial statements and establishes additional financial statement note disclosure requirements related to
debt obligations of governments, including direct borrowings and direct placements. This standard was
implemented January 1, 2019. 


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or
services. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.


The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. The city does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of
activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.


Fund Financial Statements


Financial statements of the city are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts,
which constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net
position/fund balance, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 


Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and proprietary
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the city or meets the following criteria:


a. Total assets/deferred outflows of resources, liabilities/deferred inflows of resources, revenues,
or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10% of
the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and 
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


b. The same element of the individual governmental or enterprise fund that met the 10% test is at
least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.


c. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the city believes is particularly
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.


Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.


The city reports the following major governmental funds:


General Fund - accounts for the city's primary operating activities. It is used to account for and
report all financial resources except those accounted for and reported in another fund.


Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for the payment of general long-term debt principal,
interest, and related costs, other than TID or enterprise debt.


Construction capital project fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Outlay capital project fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the
acquisition of capital equipment and other capital assets.


Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 7 Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures outlined in the
TID project plan.


The city reports the following major enterprise funds:


Water Utility - accounts for operations of the water system
Wastewater Utility - accounts for operations of the wastewater system
Electric Utility - accounts for operations of the electric system
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


The city reports the following nonmajor governmental and enterprise funds:


Special Revenue Funds - used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes (other than debt
service or capital projects).


Library Food Pantry
Ambulance Landmarks
Opera House Fire Department Special
Opera House Repair Senior Center Wood Shop
Township Outreach Senior Center Special
Tourism Economic Development
Seniors in Need Redevelopment Authority
CDBG Special Assessments
Cemetery K9 Unit
Revolving loan fund Tree Commission
Firemen's Pension Fund Refuse fund


Capital Projects Funds - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Fire Equipment TIF District No. 3
Park Acquisition TIF District No. 4
River Trail TIF District No. 5
Building Maintenance TIF District No. 6
Equipment Replacement TIF District No. 8
Technology


Enterprise Funds - used to account for and report any activity for which a fee is charged to
external uses for goods or services, and must be used for activities which meet certain debt or
cost recovery criteria.


EMS Storm Sewer


In addition, the city reports the following fund types:


Internal Service Fund - used to account for and report the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.


Retirement fund
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


Custodial Fund - used to account for and report assets controlled by the city and the assets are
for the benefit of individuals, private organizations, and/or other governmental units.


Tax Collections Fund


C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Taxes receivable for the following year
are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as
revenue when earned. Unbilled receivables are recorded as revenues when services are provided.


As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the city's water, wastewater, and electric
utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.


Fund Financial Statements


Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the city considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt,
claims, judgments, compensated absences, and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund
liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.


Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred inflows. They are recognized
as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being provided.


Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the city is entitled the
resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the city which are not available are recorded
as receivables and unavailable revenues. Amounts received before eligibility requirements (excluding time
requirements) are met are recorded as liabilities. Amounts received in advance of meeting time
requirements are recorded as deferred inflows.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and available as current
assets. Annual installments due in future years are reflected as receivables and unavailable revenues.
Delinquent special assessments being held by the county are reported as receivables and unavailable
revenues.


Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for services,
special assessments and interest. Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees,
recreation fees, and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable
and available under the criteria described above. 


Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as described previously in this note. 


The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water, wastewater, storm sewer, electric utility funds and EMS fund are charges to customers for sales
and services. Special assessments are recorded as receivables and contribution revenue when levied.
Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.


All Financial Statements


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY


1. Deposits and Investments


For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the city considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents.


Investment of city funds is restricted by Wisconsin state statutes. Available investments are limited to:


a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


1. Deposits and Investments (cont.)


b. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, a local professional
baseball park district, a local professional football stadium district, a local cultural arts district, the
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority, or the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.


c. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


d. The local government investment pool.


e. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating
category of a nationally recognized rating agency.


f. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, subject to
various conditions and investment options.


g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


The city has adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable investments,
and does not address the risks disclosed in Note IV.A.


Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods and inputs as outlined in
Note IV.A. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments
at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.
Investment income on commingled investments of municipal accounting funds is allocated based on
average balances. The difference between the bank statement balance and carrying value is due to
outstanding checks and/or deposits in transit.


The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2019, the fair value of the city 's share of the
LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the amount as reported in these statements.


PMA Financial Network, Inc. is the administrator for the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative
(WISC). The investment manager for WISC is PMA Financial Network, Inc. The WISC is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of
the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in WISC are valued at WISC’s share price, the price
for which the investments could be sold. At December 31, 2019 the city's share of the WISC's assets was
substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.


See Note IV. A. for further information. 


31







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


2. Receivables  


Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition to
property taxes for the city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as
well as the local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental
units billed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing
units on the accompanying statement of fiduciary net position.


Property tax calendar - 2019 tax roll:


Lien date and levy date December 2019
Tax bills mailed December 2019
Payment in full, or January 31, 2020
First installment due January 31, 2020
Second installment due July 31, 2020
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2020
Tax sale - 2019 delinquent real estate taxes October 2022


Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Delinquent real
estate taxes as of July 31 are paid in full by the county, which assumes the collection thereof. No provision
for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for the water, wastewater, and electric utilities
because they have the right by law to place substantially all delinquent bills on the tax roll, and other
delinquent bills are generally not significant. 


During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as "due to and from other funds." Long-term
interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." Interfund
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the statement of
net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as internal balances.


In the governmental fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally by a
nonspendable fund balance account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation or by a restricted fund balance
account, if the funds will ultimately be restricted when the advance is repaid.


It is the city's policy to record a receivable when the initial loan is made. The net amount of the loan
receivable balance is included in restricted fund balance. Interest received from loan repayments is
recognized as revenue when received in cash. Any unspent loan repayments at year end are presented as
restricted fund balance in the fund financial statements.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


3. Inventories and Prepaid Items  


Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-end
inventory was not significant. Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and/or for
operation and maintenance work. They are not for resale.   They are valued at cost based on weighted
average, and charged to construction and/or operation and maintenance expense when used.


Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.


4. Restricted Assets  


Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so
classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities payable from restricted assets will be
used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if generated from earnings, is shown as
restricted net position.


5. Capital Assets  


Government-Wide Statements


Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than
$5,000 for general capital assets and $15,000 for infrastructure assets, and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual
amounts are unavailable. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the
date of donation. 


Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded at original cost,
which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction
when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense
incurred during construction netted against any interest revenue from temporary investment of borrowed
fund proceeds. No interest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and betterments
relating to retirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property replaced, retired or otherwise
disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


5. Capital Assets (cont.)


Government-Wide Statements (cont.)


Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of
activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is
provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The range of estimated
useful lives by type of asset is as follows:


Buildings 15-75 Years
Land Improvements 15-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-15 Years
Utility System 5-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-75 Years


Fund Financial Statements


In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements.


6.  Land Held for Resale 


Land held for resale consists of land and improvements and is valued at cost of acquisition, demolition,
and site improvement. 


7.  Other Assets  


These accounts include costs related to the utility's investment in American Transmission Company
("ATC") and non-utility property.


The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct,
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2 of
1 percent of ATC. The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which is paid in cash and some of
which is required to be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional
funds to maintain their proportionate share of ownership. The asset is valued at net asset value per share
which is equal to original cost plus additional contributions and reinvested dividends and approximates fair
value.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


7. Other Assets (cont.)


The water and electric utilities have plant and maintenance reserve accounts.  Monthly deposits are made
into this account and made available for routine capital projects and other large operating expenses.


The water, wastewater, and electric utilities have sick leave reserve accounts. Upon retirement, these
funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees.


Nonutility Property


Electric utility nonutility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2019. Water utility nonutility property consists of a
park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2019. The costs are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their useful life.


8.  Deferred Outflows of Resources 


A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that future
time.


9. Compensated Absences  


Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. 


All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide  and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, and are payable with
expendable resources. 


Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Accumulated vacation and sick leave balances at December 31, 2019 are determined on the basis of
current salary rates and include salary related payments.


The city provides post-employment health insurance benefits for all eligible employees who chose to
convert accumulated sick leave benefits to post-employment health insurance. The benefits are based on
contractual agreements with employee groups, local ordinances, or employee benefit policies.  Employees
may convert 100% of accumulated sick leave to pay for health care premiums. The cost of those
premiums is recognized as an expenditure as the premiums are paid. The entire cost is paid by the city.
Funding for those costs is provided out of the general fund. Total expenditures for premiums during the
year were $10,556. One participant was eligible during 2019 to receive benefits. There is no amount
outstanding at year end to be paid in the future. The city does not incur an implicit rate subsidy on these
benefits.
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D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


10. Long-Term Obligations   


All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations consist primarily of notes and
bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.


Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debts (plus any premiums) are reported as other financing sources and
payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting in proprietary funds is the
same as it is in the government-wide statements.


For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and discounts are
amortized over the life of the issue using the effective interest method. The balance at year end is shown
as an increase or decrease in the liability section of the statement of net position.


The city has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt of 4% or less of the
equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The city's total outstanding general
obligation debt was at 3.11%.


11. Deferred Inflows of Resources  


A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position/fund balance that applies to a
future period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time.


12.  Equity Classifications  


Government-Wide Statements


Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:


a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent
debt proceeds) of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.


b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by
1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or, 2) aw through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


c. Unrestricted net position - All other net positions that do not meet the definitions of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


12.  Equity Classifications (cont.)


Government-Wide Statements (cont.)


The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type activities
column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column. The amount is a reduction of "net
investment in capital assets", and an increase in "unrestricted" net position, shown only in the total
column. A reconciliation of this adjustment is as follows:


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Adjustment Total


Net investment in capital assets $ 19,667,802 $ 46,473,103 $ (353,310) $ 65,787,595
Unrestricted 8,289,411 9,662,694 353,310 18,305,415


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.


Fund Statements


Governmental fund balances are displayed as follows:


a.  Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are
not in spendable form or because legal or contractual requirements require them to be
maintained intact.


b.  Restricted - Consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by: 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


c.  Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision
making authority. Fund balance amounts are committed through a formal action (resolution) of
the City Council. This formal action must occur prior to the end of the reporting period, but the
amount of the commitment, which will be subject to the constraints, may be determined in the
subsequent period. Any changes to the constraints imposed require the same formal action of
the City Council that originally created the commitment.


d.  Assigned - Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. The City
Council has, by resolution, adopted a financial policy authorizing the finance director to assign
amounts for a specific purpose. Assignments may take place after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


12.  Equity Classifications (cont.)


Fund Statements (cont.)


e.  Unassigned - Includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been
classified within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also
include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned for those purposes.


Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.


The city considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is available unless there are legal documents / contracts that prohibit doing this, such as in grant
agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the city would first use committed, then
assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.


The city has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned general fund
balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. The unassigned
general fund balance at year end was $3,903,588 or 27.91% of 2019 general fund budgeted expenditures.
The unassigned balance for this calculation includes deficit fund balances for Opera House ($278,424),
and Redevelopment Authority ($66,916).


See Note IV. G. for further information.


13.  Pension  


For purposes of measuring the net pension (asset) liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS' fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.


14.  Basis for Existing Rates  


  Example Util Fund


Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective October 1, 2018.


Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on April 1, 2017.


Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective January 1, 2015.
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NOTE II - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE


SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. The details of this reconciliation include the following items.


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds.


Capital assets not being depreciated $ 11,424,738
Capital assets, net of depreciation 41,207,190


Combined Adjustment for Capital Assets $ 52,631,928


Long-term liabilities applicable to the city's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current
period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both current and
long-term-are reported in the statement of net position.


Bonds and notes payable $ 36,247,852
Compensated absences 1,250,500
Accrued interest 416,530
Unamortized debt premium 746,311


Combined Adjustment for Long-Term
Liabilities $ 38,661,193


NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  


A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION


A budget has been adopted for the all funds except revolving loan fund. Wisconsin Statute 65.90 requires
that an annual budget be adopted for all funds.
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NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (cont.)


B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES OVER APPROPRIATIONS  


Funds
Budgeted


Expenditures
Actual


Expenditures


Excess
Expenditures Over


Budget


Opera House $ 907,820 $ 1,070,409 $ 162,589
Township Outreach Fund 5,260 7,473 2,213
Library 858,808 922,158 63,350
EMS 10,650 21,745 11,095
TIF District No. 4 109,800 219,668 109,868
K9 Unit 6,125 8,344 2,219
Landmarks 14,000 16,467 2,467
Seniors in Need - 22,099 22,099
Senior Center Special - 8,948 8,948
Redevelopment Authority 7,040 7,325 285
Tree Commission 550 1,346 796
Cemetery 200 5,904 5,704
Park Acquisition - 7,303 7,303
TIF District No. 3 450,229 619,988 169,759
TIF District No. 5 119,215 130,414 11,199


The city controls expenditures at the object level. Some individual line items experienced expenditures
which exceeded appropriations. The detail of those items can be found in the city's year-end budget to
actual report.


C. DEFICIT BALANCES  


Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit balances
at year-end.


As of December 31, 2019, the following individual funds held a deficit balance:


Fund Amount Reason


Special revenue - Opera House $ 278,424 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Special revenue - Redevelopment


Authority
66,916 Expenditures in excess of revenues


Special revenue -  Landmarks 1,834 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 5 677,594 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 8 16,681 Expenditures in excess of revenues


TIF district deficits are anticipated to be funded with future incremental taxes levied over the life of the
districts, which is 27 years for the districts created before October 1, 1995, and 23 years for districts
created thereafter through September 30, 2004. Beginning October 1, 2004, the life of new districts varies
by type of district (20-27 years) and may be extended in some cases. Other fund deficits are anticipated to
be funded with future contributions, general tax revenues, or long-term borrowing.


40







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (cont.)


D. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY  


Wisconsin law limits the city's future tax levies. Generally the city is limited to its prior tax levy dollar
amount (excluding TIF Districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in the city's equalized
value due to new construction or zero percent. Changes in debt service from one year to the next are
generally exempt from this limit with certain exceptions. The city is required to reduce its allowable levy by
the estimated amount of fee revenue it collects for certain services, if those services were funded in 2013
by the property tax levy. Levies can be increased above the allowable limits if the amount is approved by
referendum.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS


The city's deposits and investments at year end were comprised of the following:


Carrying
Value


Statement
Balances Associated Risks


Deposits $ 6,630,302 $ 6,218,211 Custodial credit
U.S. agencies - explicitly guaranteed 181,806 181,806 Custodial credit, interest


rate
U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed 642,287 642,287 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


LGIP 2,137,604 2,137,604 Credit
Certificates of deposit - non-negotiable 916,653 916,653 Custodial credit
State and local bonds 1,267,552 1,294,637 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative 18,101,684 18,735,662 Credit
Mutual funds - other than bonds 48,601 48,601 N/A
Certificates of deposit - negotiable 2,965,766 2,939,630 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


Cash on hand 11,503,640 - N/A


Total Deposits and Investments $ 44,395,895 $ 33,115,091


Reconciliation to financial statements


Per statement of net position
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 26,242,402
Restricted cash and investments 3,882,549


Per statement of net position - fiduciary
fund


14,270,944


Total Deposits and Investments $ 44,395,895


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts) and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest-bearing
and noninterest-bearing). In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which the
government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the combined amount
of all deposit accounts.Deposits in the credit union are insured by the National Credit Union Administration
in the amount of $250,000 for all share draft accounts and $250,000 for all share certificate and regular
share accounts.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Bank accounts and credit unions are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of
$400,000. However, due to the nature of this fund, recovery of material principal losses may not be
significant to individual municipalities. This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial
credit risk.


The Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), created by the Securities Investor Protection Act of
1970, is an independent government-sponsored corporation (not an agency of the U.S. government).


SIPC membership provides account protection up to a maximum of $500,000 per customer, of which
$100,000 may be in cash. $500,000 of the city's investments are covered by SIPC. 


The city maintains collateral agreements with its banks. At December 31, 2019, the banks had pledged
various government securities in the amount of $5,601,383 to secure the city's deposits.


The city categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.


The valuation methods for recurring fair value measurements are as follows:


 Market approach


December 31, 2019


Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total


U.S. agencies $ - $ 824,093 $ - $ 824,093
State and local bonds - 1,294,637 - 1,294,637
Certificates of deposit - negotiable - 2,939,630 - 2,939,630


Total $ - $ 5,058,360 $ - $ 5,058,360


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the city's deposits may not
be returned to the city.


As of December 31, 2019, $562,333 of the city's total bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk
as follows:


Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 562,333


Total $ 562,333
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Custodial Credit Risk (cont.)


Investments


For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
city will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party.


U.S. Agencies


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 824,093


State and local bonds


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 1,294,637


Certificates of deposit - negotiable


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 1,432,946


Credit Risk 


Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.


As of December 31, 2019, the city's investments were rated as follows:


Investment Type
Standard &


Poors


Moody's
Investors
Services


U.S. Agencies implicitly guaranteed AAA Aaa
Certificates of deposit - negotiable AAA - A+ Aa1
State and local bonds AA Aa1
Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative AAAm


The city also held investments in the following external pool which is not rated:


Local Government Investment Pool


There are also negotiable certificates of deposit in the amount of $1,506,684 that are not rated.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of an investment.


As of December 31, 2019, the city's investments were as follows:


Maturity (In Years)


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-3 3 or more


U.S. agencies explicitly guaranteed $ 181,806 $ - $ - $ 181,806
U.S. agencies implicitly guaranteed 642,287 - 400,033 242,254
State and local bonds 1,294,637 - 1,294,637 -
Certificates of deposit - negotiable 2,939,630 2,687,386 252,244 -


Totals $ 5,058,360 $ 2,687,386 $ 1,946,914 $ 424,060


See Note I.D.1. for further information on deposit and investment policies.


B. RECEIVABLES  


All receivables, except $18,026 in general fund, $145,129 in water utility, $99,526 in wastewater utility and
$575,780 in nonmajor funds are expected to be collected within one year.


Revenues of the city are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related to
revenues of the current period are as follows:


Uncollectibles related to ambulance receivables
(nonmajor enterprise fund - EMS) $ 128,354


Total Uncollectibles of the Current Fiscal Year $ 128,354


45







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


B. RECEIVABLES (cont.)


Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Property taxes levied for
the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received,
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unavailable revenue
and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:


Unearned Unavailable


Property taxes receivable for subsequent year $ 11,569,786 $ -
Special assessments not yet due - 464,808


Total Unearned/Unavailable Revenue for
Governmental Funds $ 11,569,786 $ 464,808


C. RESTRICTED ASSETS  


The following represent the balances of the restricted assets:


Long-Term Debt Accounts


Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the
next twelve months.


Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in
the redemption account.


Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and replacement or
make up potential future deficiencies in the redemption account.


Construction - Used to report proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in
construction.


Equipment Replacement Account


The Wastewater utility established an equipment replacement account to be used for significant
mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


C. RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.)


Following is a list of restricted assets at December 31, 2019: 


Restricted
Assets


Liabilities
Payable from


Restricted
Assets


Restricted Net
Position


Bond redemption account $ 1,079,145 $ 55,120 $ 1,024,025
Bond reserve account 801,432 - 801,432
Bond depreciation account 83,283 - 83,283
Construction account 754,799 - n/a
Equipment replacement account 1,163,890 - 1,163,890


Total $ 3,882,549 $ 55,120 $ 3,072,630


D. CAPITAL ASSETS  


Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2019, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land $ 9,298,987 $ - $ - $ 9,298,987
Construction in progress 9,493,149 327,742 9,150,033 670,858
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,376,419 78,474 - 1,454,893


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 20,168,555 406,216 9,150,033 11,424,738


Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 17,708,322 8,696,598 639,595 25,765,325
Machinery and equipment 11,373,741 1,047,821 2,612,400 9,809,162
Streets 19,465,696 2,667,543 1,142,107 20,991,132
Sidewalks 5,486,557 112,942 16,178 5,583,321
Street lighting 227,551 - - 227,551
Bridges 845,989 - - 845,989
Storm sewers 5,225,117 - 193,169 5,031,948
Traffic signals 411,974 - - 411,974
Dams 592,997 - - 592,997


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 61,337,944 12,524,904 4,603,449 69,259,399


Total Capital Assets 81,506,499 12,931,120 13,753,482 80,684,137
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)
Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Governmental Activities (cont.)


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements $ (7,434,421) $ (508,152) $ 489,232 $ (7,453,341)
Machinery and equipment (7,325,446) (611,519) 2,532,963 (5,404,002)
Streets (9,447,917) (699,005) 1,142,107 (9,004,815)
Sidewalks (2,866,857) (167,564) 16,178 (3,018,243)
Street lighting (50,261) (3,034) - (53,295)
Bridges (221,886) (11,280) - (233,166)
Storm sewers (2,701,845) (111,666) 193,169 (2,620,342)
Traffic signals (189,476) (10,299) - (199,775)
Dams (59,300) (5,930) - (65,230)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (30,297,409) (2,128,449) 4,373,649 (28,052,209)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 31,040,535 10,396,455 229,800 41,207,190


Total Governmental
Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated
Depreciation $ 51,209,090 $10,802,671 $ 9,379,833 $ 52,631,928


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:


Governmental Activities
General government $ 142,411
Public safety 387,959
Public works, which includes the depreciation of infrastructure 1,336,544
Culture, recreation and education 261,535


Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 2,128,449
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance


Water
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ - $ 430,131
Construction in progress 28,458 - 28,428 30


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 458,589 - 28,428 430,161


Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 595,730 - - 595,730
Pumping 1,513,266 94,479 9,000 1,598,745
Treatment 90,763 - - 90,763
Transmission and distribution 20,240,541 1,092,239 24,226 21,308,554
General 840,190 9,051 238,877 610,364


Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 23,280,490 1,195,769 272,103 24,204,156


Total Capital Assets 23,739,079 1,195,769 300,531 24,634,317


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Source of supply (404,265) (17,276) - (421,541)
Pumping (1,305,406) (60,729) 9,000 (1,357,135)
Treatment (89,514) (437) - (89,951)
Transmission and distribution (4,715,970) (383,055) 35,225 (5,063,800)
General (984,591) (53,017) 238,877 (798,731)


Total Accumulated  Depreciation (7,499,746) (514,514) 283,102 (7,731,158)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 15,780,744 681,255 (10,999) 16,472,998


Net Water Capital Assets $ 16,239,333 $ 681,255 $ 17,429 $ 16,903,159
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance


Wastewater
Capital assets not being depreciated


Construction in progress $ 59,171 $ - $ 59,171 $ -
Total Capital Assets Not Being


Depreciated 59,171 - 59,171 -


Capital assets being depreciated
Collection system 12,545,494 1,148,496 26,597 13,667,393
Collection system pumping 751,496 4,113 1,925 753,684
Treatment and disposal 15,631,555 60,399 27,300 15,664,654
Administrative and general assets 1,409,532 428,001 369,926 1,467,607


Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 30,338,077 1,641,009 425,748 31,553,338


Total Capital Assets 30,397,248 1,641,009 484,919 31,553,338


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Wastewater (11,793,102) (856,914) 412,087 (12,237,929)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (11,793,102) (856,914) 412,087 (12,237,929)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 18,544,975 784,095 13,661 19,315,409


Net Wastewater Capital Assets $ 18,604,146 $ 784,095 $ 72,832 $ 19,315,409
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance


Electric
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land and land rights $ 344,364 $ - $ - $ 344,364
Construction in progress 208,793 - 84,885 123,908
Property held for future use 229,097 - - 229,097


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 782,254 - 84,885 697,369


Capital assets being depreciated
Transmission 15,019 - - 15,019
Distribution 28,463,179 1,169,631 262,530 29,370,280
Administrative and general assets 4,235,628 32,120 278,522 3,989,226


Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 32,713,826 1,201,751 541,052 33,374,525


Total Capital Assets 33,496,080 1,201,751 625,937 34,071,894


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Transmission (19,366) - - (19,366)
Distribution (12,890,043) (1,040,771) 284,279 (13,646,535)
Administrative and general assets (2,482,264) (223,634) 275,028 (2,430,870)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (15,391,673) (1,264,405) 559,307 (16,096,771)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 17,322,153 (62,654) (18,255) 17,277,754


Net Electric Capital Assets $ 18,104,407 $ (62,654) $ 66,630 $ 17,975,123
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Stormwater
Capital assets not being depreciated/amortized


Land $ 9,986 $ - $ - $ 9,986
Construction in progress 9,233 975,350 9,233 975,350


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated/Amortized 19,219 975,350 9,233 985,336


Capital assets being depreciated
Storm Sewer 3,365,976 669,744 - 4,035,720


Total Capital Assets Being depreciated 3,365,976 669,744 - 4,035,720


Total Capital Assets 3,385,195 1,645,094 9,233 5,021,056


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Storm Sewer (307,093) (134,524) - (441,617)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (307,093) (134,524) - (441,617)


Net Capital Assets Being
depreciated 3,058,883 535,220 - 3,594,103


Net Stormwater Capital Assets $ 3,078,102 $ 1,510,570 $ 9,233 $ 4,579,439


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


EMS
Capital assets being depreciated


Buildings and improvements $ 1,240,308 $ - $ - $ 1,240,308
Equipment 941,588 - - 941,588


Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 2,181,896 - - 2,181,896


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (330,238) (25,225) - (355,463)
Equipment (516,433) (76,870) - (593,303)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (846,671) (102,095) - (948,766)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 1,335,225 (102,095) - 1,233,130


Net Other Enterprise Capital
Assets $ 1,335,225 $ (102,095) $ - $ 1,233,130


Business-type Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation $57,361,213 $ 2,811,171 $ 166,124 $60,006,260
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:


Business-type Activities
Water $ 484,888
Wastewater 856,914
Electric 1,194,203
Storm sewer 134,524
EMS 102,095


Total Business-type Activities Depreciation Expense $ 2,772,624


Depreciation expense may be different from business-type activity capital asset additions because of joint
metering, salvage, cost of removal, internal allocations, or cost associated with the disposal of assets.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS   


Interfund Receivables/Payables


The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on pooled cash
and investment accounts:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Amount Not
Due Within One


Year


General Redevelopment authority $ 66,574 $ 66,574
General Electric Utility 452,940 -
General Water Utility 431,034 -
General Water Utility 790 -
General Wastewater Utility 998 -
General Electric Utility 2,404 -
Construction Water Utility 98,122 -
Construction Wastewater Utility 162,712 -
Debt Service EMS 306,745 -
Storm sewer Electric Utility 47,202 -
Electric Utility General 14,093 -
Water Utility General 1,511 -
Wastewater Utility General 1,394 -
Water Utility Special Assessments 29,026 -
Wastewater Utility Special Assessments 19,906 -


Total - Fund Financial Statements 1,635,451


Less: Fund eliminations (113,774)


Less: Government-wide eliminations (131,862)


Less: Interfund advances (252,442)


Total Internal Balances - Government-Wide Statement of
Net Position $ 1,137,373


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 1,455,746
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities (318,373)


Total Government-Wide Financial Statements $ 1,137,373


The principal purpose of these interfunds is to fund ongoing operations.  All remaining balances resulted
from the time lag between the dates that: (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Advances


The general fund is advancing funds to the TIF District Nos. 5, 6 and 8 capital project funds. The amount
advanced is determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources
since the district's inception. A repayment schedule has not been established.


In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the Internal Service Fund for the purpose of
full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Internal
Service Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3%. A repayment schedule
has been established.


The following is a schedule of interfund advances:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Amount Not
Due Within One


Year


General Fund TIF District No. 5 $ 761,320 $ 761,320
General Fund TIF District No. 6 140,399 140,399
Electric Utility Internal service fund 252,442 206,435
General Fund TIF District No. 8 144,304 144,304


Total - Fund Financial Statements 1,298,465


Less: Fund eliminations (1,046,023)


Total - Interfund Advances $ 252,442


Internal Service Fund Advance


Years Principal Interest


2020 $ 46,007 $ 7,573
2021 48,459 6,193
2022 51,006 4,739
2023 53,651 3,209
2024 47,388 1,600
2025 5,931 178


Totals $ 252,442 $ 23,492


For the statement of net position, interfund advances which are owed within the governmental activities or
business-type activities are netted and eliminated.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Transfers


The following is a schedule of interfund transfers:


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose


General Tourism $ 5,485 Room tax revenue
Debt service TIF District No. 5 107,661 Payments on TIF District debt
Debt service TIF District No. 6 55,162 Payments on TIF District debt


General Water utility 431,034
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend


General Electric utility 480,842
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend
Debt service General 3,104,117 Payments on non-TID debt
Debt service TIF District No. 3 437,229 Payments on TIF District debt
Debt service TIF District No. 4 104,800 Payments on TIF District debt
Debt Service TIF District No. 7 333,149 Payments on TIF District debt
Redevelopment authority General 8,150 Fund operations
Park Acquisition Construction 70,000 Fund capital projects
EMS General 80,000 Fund operations
Library General 421,813 Fund annual operations
Landmarks General 11,207 Fund operations
Opera house General 165,000 Fund operations
Outlay General 200,000 Fund capital projects
Economic Development General 11 Fund Operations
Debt service TIF District No. 8 22,928 Payments on TIF District debt
Revolving loan TIF District No. 4 65,000 Revolving loan program


General TIF District No. 3 181,304
Repayment of funds advanced


in prior years
Library General 172,000 Fund operations
Equipment replacement General 220,000 Fund capital projects
Technology General 100,000 Fund capital projects


Total - Fund Financial Statements 6,776,892


Less: Fund eliminations (5,395,016)


Less: Government-wide eliminations (550,000)


Capital assets contributions from governmental
activities to business-type activities (1,509,592)


Total Transfers - Government-Wide Statement
of Activities $ (677,716)
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Transfers (cont.)


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 911,876
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities (1,589,592)


Total Government-wide Financial Statements $ (677,716)


Generally, transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund that the
budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the
receipts to the debt service fund, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS  


Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2019, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Governmental Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable


General obligation debt $ 31,235,619 $ 6,980,000 $ 2,972,711 $ 35,242,908 $ 3,458,438
General obligation debt from


direct borrowings and direct
placements 1,247,834 - 242,890 1,004,944 249,730


(Discounts)/Premiums 490,441 312,564 56,694 746,311 -


Sub-totals 32,973,894 7,292,564 3,272,295 36,994,163 3,708,168


Other Liabilities
Compensated absences


(Note I.D.9) 1,214,793 35,707 - 1,250,500 -
Fire pension liability


(Note V. F.) 1,392,161 96,090 620,074 868,177 -


Total Other Liabilities 2,606,954 131,797 620,074 2,118,677 -


Total Governmental
Activities Long-Term
Liabilities $ 35,580,848 $ 7,424,361 $ 3,892,369 $ 39,112,840 $ 3,708,168
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F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Business-type Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable


General obligation debt $ 2,109,381 $ 450,000 $ 397,289 $ 2,162,092 $ 436,562
Revenue bonds 11,285,265 1,825,000 1,341,323 11,768,942 1,475,676
Revenue debt from direct


borrowings and direct
placements 367,332 - 29,174 338,158 29,952


Unamortized premium on
bonds 114,533 55,598 20,749 149,382 -


Sub-totals 13,876,511 2,330,598 1,788,535 14,418,574 1,942,190


Other Liabilities
Vested compensated


absences 338,657 84,389 56,986 366,060 -
Customer advances for


construction 62,383 43,915 78,882 27,416 -


Total Other Liabilities 401,040 128,304 135,868 393,476 -


Total Business-type
Activities Long-Term
Liabilities $ 14,277,551 $ 2,458,902 $ 1,924,403 $ 14,812,050 $ 1,942,190


In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not
exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of
December 31, 2019, was $61,686,215. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was
$38,409,944. 


In addition to the liabilities above, information on the net pension liability (asset) is provided in Note V.A.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


General Obligation Debt 


All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the city. Notes and
bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies or tax increments
accumulated by the debt service fund. Business-type activities debt is payable by revenues from user fees
of those funds or, if the revenues are not sufficient, by future tax levies.


Governmental Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2019


2010 General Obligation
Notes 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.25 - 4.40% $ 3,000,000 $ 425,000


2010 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.00 - 3.25 3,095,000 360,000


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00 2,759,000 737,908


2013 State Trust Fund
Loan* 6/23/13 3/15/20 2.75 1,400,000 215,000


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 2,755,000 1,245,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,545,000 1,060,000


2016 General Obligation
Notes 5/26/16 4/1/26 3.25 - 3.75 5,830,000 4,945,000


2016 State Trust Fund
Loan* 12/28/16 3/15/36 3.5 850,000 789,944


2017 General Obligation
Notes 6/8/17 4/1/27 2.00 - 3.00 7,085,000 6,420,000


2018 General Obligation
Bonds 4/26/18 4/1/38 2.00 - 4.00 12,585,000 12,295,000


2018 General Obligation
Notes 4/26/18 4/1/28 3.20 - 4.00 775,000 775,000


2019 General Obligation
Notes 4/24/19 4/1/29 2.13 - 4.00 6,980,000 6,980,000


Total Governmental Activities - General Obligation Debt $ 36,247,852
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


General Obligation Debt (cont.)


Business-type Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2019


2010 General Obligation
Notes 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.25 - 4.40% $ 1,015,000 $ 135,000


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00 661,000 232,092


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 280,000 150,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,180,000 725,000


2017 General Obligation
Notes 6/8/17 4/1/27 2.00 - 3.00 575,000 470,000


2019 General Obligation
Notes 4/24/19 4/1/29 2.13 - 4.00 450,000 450,000


Total Business-type Activities - General Obligation Debt $ 2,162,092


* Direct borrowing or direct placement.


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt


Years Principal Interest Principal Interest


2020 $ 3,458,438 $ 1,010,219 $ 436,562 $ 50,830
2021 2,974,084 846,757 310,916 36,333
2022 3,364,643 775,175 302,813 29,557
2023 3,211,596 694,456 290,948 22,604
2024 3,320,100 615,674 259,900 15,820
2025-2029 12,664,047 1,788,482 560,953 20,683
2030-2034 3,970,000 697,100 - -
2035-2038 2,280,000 154,075 - -


Totals $ 35,242,908 $ 6,581,938 $ 2,162,092 $ 175,827
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Governmental Activities
Notes from Direct Borrowings and


Direct Placements


Years Principal Interest


2020 $ 249,730 $ 33,653
2021 36,021 26,432
2022 37,282 25,172
2023 38,587 23,867
2024 39,876 22,578
2025-2029 221,600 90,670
2030-2034 263,209 49,059
2035-2036 118,639 6,268


Totals $ 1,004,944 $ 277,699


The city's outstanding debt from direct borrowings and placements related to governmental activities of
$1,004,944 contain a provision that in an event of default, any delinquent payment amount is subject to a
penalty of one percent per month.


Revenue Debt


Business-type activities revenue bonds are payable only from revenues derived from the operation of the
water, wastewater and electric utilities. 


The utilities has pledged future  revenues to repay revenue bonds issued in between 1999-2019.
Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the utility construction, improvements, and additions. The
bonds are payable solely from utility revenues and are payable through 2036. Annual principal and interest
payments on the bonds are expected to require 2%, 12%, and 14% respectively of electric, water, and
wastewater gross revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is
$13,920,355. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer gross revenues were
$1,625,356 and $19,371,770, respectively.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Revenue Debt (cont.)


Revenue debt payable at December 31, 2019, consists of the following:


Business-type Activities Revenue Debt


Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2019


Water Utility


2010 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds* 1/27/10 5/1/29 2.67% $ 575,018 $ 338,158


2016 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 5/26/16 5/1/26 1.00 - 2.75 2,520,000 1,650,000


2019 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 11/14/19 5/1/34 2.00 - 3.00 1,825,000 1,825,000


Total Water Utility 3,813,158


* Direct borrowing or direct placement.


Wastewater Utility


1999 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 12/22/99 5/1/19 3.049% 623,465 -


2000 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 7/12/00 5/1/20 3.049  1,116,259 73,435


2003 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 9/10/03 5/1/23 2.766  1,670,624 413,378


2007 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 6/27/07 5/1/27 2.475  1,539,762 764,797


2014 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 11/1/14 5/1/34 2.625  3,305,713 2,632,332


Total Wastewater Utility 3,883,942


Electric Utility


2013 Electric Utility
Revenue Bonds 4/1/13 4/1/23 2.00 - 2.25% 3,170,000 1,315,000


2016 Electric Utility
Revenue Bonds 5/26/16 4/1/36 2.00 - 3.00 4,005,000 3,095,000


Total Electric Utility 4,410,000


Total Business-type Activities - Revenue Debt $ 12,107,100
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Revenue Debt (cont.)


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Business-type Activities
Revenue Debt


Years Principal Interest


2020 $ 1,475,676 $ 264,510
2021 1,415,971 235,365
2022 1,429,930 204,413
2023 1,469,126 172,502
2024 612,975 148,932
2025-2029 2,672,014 521,432
2030-2034 2,388,250 209,808
2035-2036 305,000 9,225


Totals $ 11,768,942 $ 1,766,187


Business-type Activities
Revenue Debt  from Direct


Borrowings and Direct
Placements


Years Principal Interest


2020 $ 29,952 $ 8,623
2021 30,751 7,813
2022 31,571 6,981
2023 32,414 6,128
2024 33,278 5,251
2025-2029 180,192 12,272


Totals $ 338,158 $ 47,068


The city's outstanding debt from direct borrowings and placements related to business-type activities of
$338,158 contain a provision that in an event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due
and payable.


Other Debt Information  


Estimated payments of compensated absences, net pension liability and the fire pension liability are not
included in the debt service requirement schedules. The compensated absences liability, net pension
liability and the fire pension liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated primarily by the
general fund. 
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Other Debt Information (cont.)


A statutory mortgage lien upon the city's system and any additions, improvements and extensions thereto
is created by Section 66.0621 of the Wisconsin Statutes as provided for in the ordinances creating the
revenue bond issue. The city's system and the earnings of the system remain subject to the lien until
payment in full of the principal and interest on the bonds.


The water and electric mortgage revenue bond ordinances require segregation of the proceeds of the
bond issues and the creation and continual funding of several funds from operating revenues. The city
was in compliance with funding requirements in all material respects at December 31, 2019.


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES


Net position reported on the government wide statement of net position at December 31, 2019, includes
the following:


Governmental Activities


Net Investment in Capital Assets
Land $ 9,298,987
Construction in progress 670,858
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,454,893
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 41,207,190
Less:  Related long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital related


debt proceeds) (32,217,815)
Less:  Unamortized debt premium (746,311)


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 19,667,802
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


Governmental Funds


Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2019, include the
following:


General Fund
Debt


Service Construction Outlay


TIF
District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


Fund Balances


  Nonspendable:
Delinquent items $ 18,026 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 18,026
Prepaid items 5,630 - - - - 82,875 88,505
Noncurrent


interfunds 1,112,597 - - - - - 1,112,597
CMVIC equity 257,805 - - - - - 257,805


Sub-total 1,394,058 - - - - 82,875 1,476,933


 Restricted for:
Debt service - 832,401 - - - - 832,401
Library - - - - - 255,092 255,092
Parks - - - - - 458,089 458,089
TID activities - - - - 438,407 2,477,994 2,916,401
CDBG - - - - - 6,453 6,453
Capital projects - - 443,834 - - - 443,834
Firemen pension - - - - - 848,192 848,192


Sub-total - 832,401 443,834 - 438,407 4,045,820 5,760,462


  Committed to:
Senior center


wood shop - - - - - 6,668 6,668
Food pantry - - - - - 172,113 172,113
Fire department


special - - - - - 63,406 63,406
Ambulance - - - - - 17,821 17,821
Opera house


repair - - - - - 6,745 6,745
Township


outreach - - - - - 10,587 10,587
Tourism - - - - - 25,862 25,862
Seniors in need - - - - - 57,891 57,891
Senior center


special - - - - - 477,042 477,042
Capital projects - - - - - 362,128 362,128
K9 unit - - - - - 17,732 17,732
Tree commission - - - - - 4,466 4,466
Cemetery - - - - - 28,243 28,243
Revolving loans - - - - - 120,358 120,358


Sub-total - - - - - 1,371,062 1,371,062


65







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


General Fund
Debt


Service Construction Outlay


TIF
District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


 Assigned to:
Safety camp $ 28,336 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 28,336
Youth gift 19,421 - - - - - 19,421
Bryant grant 101,049 - - - - - 101,049
Pool sinking fund 19,659 - - - - - 19,659
Shop with a cop 6,146 - - - - - 6,146
Tree plantings


developer 24,180 - - - - - 24,180
Police federal


grants 4,299 - - - - - 4,299
Paul Kraby


memorial 652 - - - - - 652
Utility payment in


lieu of taxes 883,974 - - - - - 883,974
Liability insurance


loss 70,000 - - - - - 70,000
Virgin lake


boardwalk 409 - - - - - 409
Buddy bags 46 - - - - - 46
Arts council 1,799 - - - - - 1,799
Buddy benches 625 - - - - - 625
Fire equipment - - - - - 20,783 20,783
Equipment


replacement - - - - - 527,768 527,768
Building


replacement - - - - - 567,713 567,713
Capital Projects - - 1,959,282 - - - 1,959,282
Outlay - - - 1,307,532 - - 1,307,532
Technology - - - - - 100,394 100,394


Sub-total 1,160,595 - 1,959,282 1,307,532 - 1,216,658 5,644,067


  Unassigned
(deficit): 4,248,928 - - - - (1,124,324) 3,124,604


Total Fund
Balances
(Deficit) $ 6,803,581 $ 832,401 $ 2,403,116 $ 1,307,532 $ 438,407 $ 5,592,091 $ 17,377,128
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


Business-type Activities


Net Investment in Capital Assets
Land $ 784,480
Construction in progress 1,099,288
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 58,122,492
Less: Long-term capital related debt outstanding (14,164,192)
Plus: Unspent capital related debt proceeds 780,417
Less: Unamortized debt premium (149,382)


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 46,473,103


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION 


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM


Plan description. The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms
may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year
(880 hours teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for
at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 


ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a
retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1,
2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011,
must have five years of creditable service to be vested. 


Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees,
62 for elected officials and executive service retirement participants, if hired on or before December 31,
2016) are entitled to retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their average earnings, and creditable
service.


Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings period. Creditable
service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received earnings and made
contributions as required. Creditable service also includes creditable military service. The retirement
benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the employee's contributions plus
matching employer's contributions, with interest, if that benefit is higher than the formula benefit.
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A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Vested participants may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarially reduced
benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an annuity may either receive
employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation or leave contributions on deposit and defer
application until eligible to receive a retirement benefit. 


The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.


Post-retirement adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity
payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with
s. 40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains
(losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as
determined by the system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other
similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases. By
law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the “floor”)
set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows:


Year
Core Fund
Adjustment


Variable Fund
Adjustment


2009 (2.1)% (42.0)%


2010 (1.3) 22.0


2011 (1.2) 11.0


2012 (7.0) (7.0)


2013 (9.6) 9.0


2014 4.7 25.0


2015 2.9 2.0


2016 0.5 (5.0)


2017 2.0 4.0


2018 2.4 17.0
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with
Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially
determined contribution rate for General category employees and Executives and Elected Officials.
Starting on January 1, 2016, the Executives and Elected Officials category merged into the General
Employee category. Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general
employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution
rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing
collective bargaining agreement.


During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $529,035 in contributions from the city.


Contribution rates for the plan year reported as of December 31, 2019 are:


Employee Category Employee Employer


General (Executives & Elected Officials) 6.7% 6.7%


Protective with Social Security 6.7% 10.7%


Protective without Social Security 6.7% 14.9%


Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions


At December 31, 2019, the city reported a liability of $1,775,198 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2017 rolled forward to December 31, 2018. No material changes in assumptions or benefit
terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The city’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on the city’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2018, the city’s proportion was
0.04989755%, which was an increase of 0.00116035% from its proportion measured as of December 31,
2017.


For the year ended December 31, 2019, the city recognized pension expense of $1,185,275.
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A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


At December 31, 2019, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,382,610 $ 2,443,958


Changes in assumptions 299,233 -


Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 2,592,555 -


Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 28,190


Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 533,847 -


Totals $ 4,808,245 $ 2,472,148


$533,847 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resourcesrelated to pension will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:


Year Ended 
December 31:


Deferred Outflows
of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of


Resources (net)


2020 $ 647,623


2021 157,722


2022 286,797


2023 710,108


70







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2017


Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability (Asset): December 31, 2018


Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal


Asset Valuation Method: Fair Value


Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 7.0%


Discount Rate: 7.0%


Salary Increases:


    Inflation


    Seniority/Merit


3.0%


0.1% - 5.6%


Mortality: Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table


Post-retirement Adjustments*: 1.9%


* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return,
actuarial experience and other factors. 1.9% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return
assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.


Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that covered a three-year
period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. Based on this experience study, actuarial
assumptions used to measure the Total Pension Liability changed from prior year, including the discount
rate, long-term expected rate of return, post-retirement adjustment, wage inflation rate, mortality and
separation rates. The Total Pension Liability for December 31, 2018 is based upon a roll-forward of the
liability calculated from the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation.
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A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Long-term expected return on plan assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:


Core Fund Asset Class
Current Asset
Allocation %


Long-Term
Expected


Nominal Rate
of Return %


Long-Term
Expected


Real Rate of
Return %


Global Equities    49%    8.1%    5.5%


Fixed Income 24.5 4.0 1.5


Inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 3.8 1.3


Real Estate 9 6.5 3.9


Private Equity/Debt 8 9.4 6.7


Multi-Asset 4 6.7 4.1


Total Core Fund 110 7.3 4.7


Variable Fund Asset Class


U.S Equities 70 7.6 5.0


International Equities 30 8.5 5.9


Total Variable Fund 100 8.0 5.4


New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.5%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, target percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations


Single discount rate.  A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%
and a long term bond rate of 3.71%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.00% expected rate of
return implies that a dividend of approximately 1.9% will always be paid. For purposes of the single
discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to
determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
(including expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
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A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Sensitivity of the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.00 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate: 


1% Decrease to
Discount Rate


(6.00%)
Current Discount


Rate (7.00%)


1% Increase to
Discount Rate


(8.00%)
City’s proportionate share of the net


pension liability $7,054,824 $1,775,198 $(2,150,613)


Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


At December 31, 2019, the city reported a payable to the pension plan which represents contractually
required contributions outstanding as of the end of the year.


B. RISK MANAGEMENT  


The city is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. The city participates in a
public entity risk pool called CVMIC to provide coverage for losses from theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets and workers compensation. However, other risks, such as (torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors and omission; workers compensation; and health care of its employees) are
accounted for and financed by the city in the general fund.


Public Entity Risk Pool


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)


The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization,
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous cities and villages as members.


The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 14, 1987 under
Section 611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the cities
and villages which make up the membership of the WMIC.


The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of
municipalities. The city's share of such losses is approximately 1%.
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


B. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)


Public Entity Risk Pool (cont.)


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) (cont.)


Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of representatives
elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The city does not exercise any
control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and board.


Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC can be obtained directly from CVMIC's offices.


The initial investment in WMIC is refundable upon withdrawal from the commission and has been reported
at the original amount of $257,805 in the general fund.


The city pays an annual premium to CVMIC for its general liability insurance, which provides coverage up
to $5,000,000 per occurrence, less the city's retained liability. The city's retained liability is limited to
$25,000 per occurrence and an annual aggregate limit of $100,000. An actuarially determined estimate for
outstanding losses and incurred but not reported losses is recorded in CVMIC's balance sheet in liability
reserves. 


C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  


Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and judgments are
only reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are recorded in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities are incurred.


From time to time, the city is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome
of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the city attorney
that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the
city's financial position or results of operations. 


The city has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency for
expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any,
would be immaterial.


The city has active construction projects as of December 31, 2019. Work that has been completed on
these projects but not yet paid for (including contract retainages) is reflected as accounts payable and
expenditures.
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.)


Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy


The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the State of
Wisconsin. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced purchasing electric
service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating Members (long-term
contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and sell, and each member
is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the operation of each member's
electric utility. 


The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service. WPPI Energy's
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance
fund established for that system.


Forty-nine members, representing approximately 98% of WPPI Energy's existing load, have long-term
contracts through December 31, 2055. The remaining two members have long-term contracts through
December 31, 2037.


WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract was $324 million as of December 31,
2019.


D. EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT-PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  


The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the following:


 Statement No. 87, Leases


 Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction


Period


 Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations


When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these financial
statements.
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


E. FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN  


Plan description. The city reports a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for fire department
employees (the "Plan"). Management of the Plan is vested in the Firemen's Pension Board. No assets
have been accumulated in a trust for payment of these benefits. 


Benefits provided. The plan is administered by the Firemen's Pension Board and provides pension
benefits to fire department employees. The amount paid to retirees each year is based on the years of
service at the time of retirement and the position the retiree held while a member of the department. 


Plan membership. At December 31, 2018, the plan's membership consisted of:


Retirees and beneficiaries 26


Inactive, nonretired members -


Active members 30


Total 56


The city paid $40,282 for pension benefits as they came due during the reporting period. The city has
accumulated assets to pay for these benefits; however, the arrangement does not meet the definition of a
trust under GASB Statement No. 73. The specific criteria that are not met include:


> Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the pension plan and
earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.


> Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer 
contributing entities, the pension plan administrator and plan members


Changes in total pension liability. The city's change in total pension liability for the year ended
December 31, 2019 was as follows:


Total Pension
Liability


Beginning of Year Balance $ 1,392,181


Service cost 47,261
Interest on total pension liability 48,829
Changes of assumptions (579,792)
Benefit payments (40,282)


End of Year Balance $ 868,177
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


E. FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN (cont.)


Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Measurement Date: December 31, 2019


Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2018


Inflation: 2.3%


Salary Changes: 2.3%


Discount Rate: 4.10%


Source of Discount Rate: Bond Buyer GO 20-Year Municipal Bond Index


Source of Mortality Assumptions: Wisconsin 2018 Mortality table


Dates of Experience Studies: Experience study conducted using WRS
experience from 2015-2017


Sensitivity of the total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following is a sensitivity
analysis of the total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The table below presents the pension
liability of the District calculated using the current discount rate of 4.10% as well as what the total pension
liability would be if it were to be calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (3.10%)
or 1 percentage point higher (5.10%) that the current rate:


1% Decrease 
Current Discount


Rate 1% Increase 


Total pension liability $ 992,434 $ 868,177 $ 767,385


Pension expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the city recognized pension expense of $21,820.


At December 31, 2019, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 297,240


Changes in assumptions 51,806 228,822


Totals $ 51,806 $ 526,062
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NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


E. FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN (cont.)


Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:


Year Ended 
December 31:


Deferred
Outflows and


Deferred Inflows
of Resources


(net)


2020 $ (74,270)


2021 (74,270)


2022 (74,270)


2023 (74,270)


2024 (69,855)


Thereafter (107,321)
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Budgeted Amounts


Original Final Actual
Variance with
Final Budget


REVENUES


TAXES
Taxes $ 9,089,362 $ 9,089,362 $ 9,090,775 $ 1,413


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,971,980 1,971,980 1,919,896 (52,084)


LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and occupational licenses 37,400 37,400 59,607 22,207
Dog and cat licenses 2,500 2,500 3,440 940
Building permits 178,000 178,000 160,877 (17,123)


Total Licenses and Permits 217,900 217,900 223,924 6,024


FINES, FORFEITURES AND
PENALTIES


Fines, forfeitures and penalties 127,500 127,500 149,398 21,898


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Public charges for services 1,410,730 1,410,730 1,449,026 38,296


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
Intergovernmental charges for


services 60,000 60,000 62,202 2,202


SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
Special assessments 11,500 11,500 12,678 1,178


INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income 95,000 95,000 236,249 141,249


MISCELLANEOUS
Miscellaneous revenues 365,496 365,496 475,983 110,487


Total Revenues 13,349,468 13,349,468 13,620,131 270,663


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Original Final Actual
Variance with
Final Budget


EXPENDITURES


GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Council/Board $ 47,005 $ 47,005 $ 47,926 $ (921)
Legislative support 99,723 99,723 97,402 2,321
Judicial 58,202 58,202 54,937 3,265
Administrator 229,762 229,762 202,226 27,536
Treasury 962,498 962,498 833,176 129,322
Legal 130,000 130,000 137,278 (7,278)
Personnel 187,586 187,586 167,001 20,585
General buildings/plant/hall 65,879 65,879 55,510 10,369
Assessment of property 47,500 47,500 47,809 (309)
Other general government 53,210 53,210 81,578 (28,368)


Total General Government 1,881,365 1,881,365 1,724,843 156,522


PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 3,210,785 3,210,785 3,164,572 46,213
Fire protection 543,563 543,563 520,564 22,999
Inspection 347,258 347,258 375,296 (28,038)


Total Public Safety 4,101,606 4,101,606 4,060,432 41,174


PUBLIC WORKS
Highway and street maintenance and


construction 110,609 110,609 123,359 (12,750)
Highway and street maintenance for


local 1,179,554 1,179,554 1,253,545 (73,991)
Snow and ice control 68,000 68,000 59,527 8,473
Other sanitation 715,000 715,000 716,530 (1,530)
Buildings and grounds operations 125,329 125,329 135,475 (10,146)


Total Public Works 2,198,492 2,198,492 2,288,436 (89,944)


CULTURE, RECREATION AND
EDUCATION


Parks 230,296 230,296 197,206 33,090
Recreation facilities 522,951 522,951 568,694 (45,743)
Community center 468,352 468,352 460,711 7,641
Other culture 320,792 320,792 323,037 (2,245)
School year recreation 35,000 35,000 37,421 (2,421)
Cable television 39,810 39,810 22,906 16,904


Total Culture, Recreation and
Education 1,617,201 1,617,201 1,609,975 7,226


Total Expenditures 9,798,664 9,798,664 9,683,686 114,978


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Original Final Actual
Variance with
Final Budget


Excess of revenues over
expenditures $ 3,550,804 $ 3,550,804 3,936,445 $ 385,641


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)


Transfers in 615,000 947,000 1,098,665 151,665
Transfers out (4,185,430) (4,459,430) (4,482,298) (22,868)


Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (3,570,430) (3,512,430) (3,383,633) 128,797


Net Change in Fund Balance (19,626) 38,374 552,812 514,438


FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 6,250,769 6,250,769 6,250,769 -


FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 6,231,143 $ 6,289,143 $ 6,803,581 $ 514,438


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary


Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability (Asset) Net Position
of the Net Share of the as a Percentage as a Percentage


Fiscal Pension Net Pension Covered of Covered of the Total
Year Ending Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability


12/31/19 0.04989755% 1,775,198$          6,864,771$     25.86% 96.45%
12/31/18 0.04873732% (1,447,068)          6,542,867       22.12% 102.93%
12/31/17 0.04705035% 387,807               6,226,372       6.23% 99.12%
12/31/16 0.04597674% 747,113               6,169,077       12.11% 98.20%
12/31/15 0.04486493% (1,102,005)          5,696,627       19.34% 102.74%


Contributions in
Relation to the Contributions


Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage
Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered


Year Ending Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll


12/31/19 533,847$                       533,847$             -$                    7,034,407$                      7.59%
12/31/18 533,009                         533,009               -                      6,864,764                        7.76%
12/31/17 511,909                         511,909               -                      7,308,112                        7.00%
12/31/16 461,771                         461,771               -                      7,032,737                        6.57%
12/31/15 465,913                         465,913               -                      6,169,077                        7.55%


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) - 


SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM


CITY OF STOUGHTON


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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Difference
Interest on Between Expected


Fiscal Beginning Total Pension Changes in and Actual Changes of Benefit Ending
Year Ending Balance Service Cost Liability Benefit Terms Experience Assumptions Payments Balance


12/31/19 1,392,161$     47,261$          48,829$          -$                  -$                         (579,792)$       (40,282)$        868,177          
12/31/18 1,268,731       41,400            48,805            -                    -                           71,580            (38,355)          1,392,161       
12/31/17 1,259,717       42,477            45,829            -                    -                           (42,041)           (37,251)          1,268,731       


Total Pension
Liability as a


Percentage of
Fiscal Total Pension Covered Covered


Year Ending Liability Payroll Payroll


12/31/19 868,177$       92,307$               941%


12/31/18 1,392,161      102,773               1355%
12/31/17 1,268,731      93,830                 1352%


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY


SCHEDULE OF COVERED PAYROLL


CITY OF STOUGHTON


FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


BUDGETARY INFORMATION


Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the same basis of
accounting for each fund as described in Note I. C.


Department heads submit budget requests by mid-August. The mayor and finance director produce the executive
budget, which is reviewed with the finance committee in mid-September. The city council then reviews the budget
and holds a public hearing. Council adoption of the budget follows the public hearing, usually in November.
Department heads have the authority to make budget transfers within their own department, except for wage
accounts and capital outlay items. Council action is required for adjustments to wage and outlay accounts, and to
change a department's total budget.


Appropriations lapse at year-end unless specifically carried over. There were no carryovers to the following year.
Budgets are adopted at the department level of expenditure. 


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM


The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end and occurred within the
fiscal year.


The city is required to present the last ten years of data; however, accounting standards allow the presentation of
as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.


Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the Wisconsin
Retirement System.


Changes in assumptions. Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 using
experience from 2015 – 2017. Based on the experience study conducted in 2018, actuarial assumptions used to
develop Total Pension Liability changed, including the discount rate, long-term expected rate of return, post-
retirement adjustment, wage inflation rate, mortality and separation rates. 


FIREMEN'S PENSION PLAN


The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end and occurred within the
fiscal year.


The city is required to present the last ten years of data; however, accounting standards allow the presentation of
as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.


Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms


Changes in assumptions. Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2019 using
experience from 2015 – 2017. Based on the experience study conducted in 2018, actuarial assumptions used to
develop Total Pension Liability changed, including the discount rate, long-term expected rate of return, post-
retirement adjustment, wage inflation rate, mortality and separation rates. 


See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2019


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance Opera House
Opera House


Repair


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 272,412 $ 17,821 $ 1,023 $ 6,745
Receivables (net)


Taxes - - - -
Accounts - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - - -


Due from other governments - - - -
Prepaid items - - 82,875 -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 272,412 $ 17,821 $ 83,898 $ 6,745


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,114 $ - $ 76,247 $ -
Accrued liabilities 14,206 - 5,405 -
Other liabilities - - 280,670 -
Due to other funds - - - -
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 17,320 - 362,322 -


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - 82,875 -
Restricted 255,092 - - -
Committed - 17,821 - 6,745
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - (361,299) -


Total Fund Balances (deficit) 255,092 17,821 (278,424) 6,745


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 272,412 $ 17,821 $ 83,898 $ 6,745
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Special Revenue Funds


Township
Outreach Tourism Seniors in Need Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire Department
Special


$ 10,785 $ 24,132 $ 58,700 $ 179,245 $ - $ 63,406


- - - - - -
- 17,296 - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -


$ 10,785 $ 41,428 $ 58,700 $ 179,245 $ - $ 63,406


$ - $ 15,566 $ 809 $ 7,132 $ 1,834 $ -
198 - - - - -


- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -


198 15,566 809 7,132 1,834 -


- - - - - -
- - - - - -


- - - - - -


- - - - - -
- - - - - -


10,587 25,862 57,891 172,113 - 63,406
- - - - - -
- - - - (1,834) -


10,587 25,862 57,891 172,113 (1,834) 63,406


$ 10,785 $ 41,428 $ 58,700 $ 179,245 $ - $ 63,406


86







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2019


Special Revenue Funds


Senior Center
Wood Shop


Senior Center
Special


Economic
Development


Redevelop-
ment Authority


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,702 $ 477,147 $ - $ -
Receivables (net)


Taxes - - - -
Accounts - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - - -


Due from other governments - - - -
Prepaid items - - - -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,702 $ 477,147 $ - $ -


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 34 $ 105 $ - $ 342
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Other liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds - - - 66,574
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 34 105 - 66,916


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of
Resources - - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted - - - -
Committed 6,668 477,042 - -
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - - (66,916)


Total Fund Balances (deficit) 6,668 477,042 - (66,916)


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 6,702 $ 477,147 $ - $ -
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Special Revenue Funds


Special
Assessments CDBG K9 Unit


Tree
Commission Cemetery


Revolving
Loan Fund


Firemen's
Pension Fund


$ 318,354 $ 6,453 $ 17,731 $ 4,466 $ 28,243 $ 5,569 $ 846,101


118,784 - - - - - -
- - 1 - - 3,817 -
- - - - - - 2,091


464,808 - - - - - -
- - - - - 110,972 -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


$ 901,946 $ 6,453 $ 17,732 $ 4,466 $ 28,243 $ 120,358 $ 848,192


$ 13,700 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


48,932 - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


62,632 - - - - - -


12,378 - - - - - -
464,808 - - - - - -


477,186 - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- 6,453 - - - - 848,192


362,128 - 17,732 4,466 28,243 120,358 -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


362,128 6,453 17,732 4,466 28,243 120,358 848,192


$ 901,946 $ 6,453 $ 17,732 $ 4,466 $ 28,243 $ 120,358 $ 848,192
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2019


Special
Revenue


Fund Capital Projects Funds


Refuse Fund
Fire


Equipment
Park


Acquisition River Trail


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 20,783 $ 463,222 $ -
Receivables (net)


Taxes 791,950 - - -
Accounts - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - - -


Due from other governments - - - -
Prepaid items - - - -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 791,950 $ 20,783 $ 463,222 $ -


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 5,133 $ -
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Other liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds - - - -
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities - - 5,133 -


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 791,950 - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 791,950 - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted - - 458,089 -
Committed - - - -
Assigned - 20,783 - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - - -


Total Fund Balances (deficit) - 20,783 458,089 -


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 791,950 $ 20,783 $ 463,222 $ -
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Capital Projects Funds


TIF District No.
3


TIF District No.
4


TIF District No.
5


TIF District No.
6


TIF District No.
8


Equipment
Replacement


$ 292,736 $ 1,118,938 $ 83,726 $ 1,830,548 $ 253,420 $ 499,774


494,843 180,369 50,678 24,831 - -
- - - 51,714 - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - 29,600
- - - - - -


$ 787,579 $ 1,299,307 $ 134,404 $ 1,907,093 $ 253,420 $ 529,374


$ - $ 190 $ - $ 623,639 $ 125,797 $ 1,606
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - 761,320 140,399 144,304 -
- 190 761,320 764,038 270,101 1,606


494,843 180,369 50,678 76,545 - -
- - - - - -


494,843 180,369 50,678 76,545 - -


- - - - - -
292,736 1,118,748 - 1,066,510 - -


- - - - - -
- - - - - 527,768
- - (677,594) - (16,681) -


292,736 1,118,748 (677,594) 1,066,510 (16,681) 527,768


$ 787,579 $ 1,299,307 $ 134,404 $ 1,907,093 $ 253,420 $ 529,374
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2019


Capital Projects Funds


Building
Maintenance Technology


Total Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 567,791 $ 100,394 $ 7,576,367
Receivables (net)


Taxes - - 1,661,455
Accounts 16 - 72,844
Accrued interest - - 2,091
Special assessments - - 464,808
Loans - - 110,972


Due from other governments - - 29,600
Prepaid items - - 82,875


TOTAL ASSETS $ 567,807 $ 100,394 $ 10,001,012


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 94 $ - $ 875,342
Accrued liabilities - - 19,809
Other liabilities - - 280,670
Due to other funds - - 115,506
Advances from other funds - - 1,046,023


Total Liabilities 94 - 2,337,350


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - 1,606,763
Unavailable revenues - - 464,808


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - 2,071,571


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - 82,875
Restricted - - 4,045,820
Committed - - 1,371,062
Assigned 567,713 100,394 1,216,658
Unassigned (deficit) - - (1,124,324)


Total Fund Balances (deficit) 567,713 100,394 5,592,091


TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 567,807 $ 100,394 $ 10,001,012
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance
Opera
House


Opera
House
Repair


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 228,305 - - -
Public charges for services 26,673 - 847,869 -
Special assessments - - - -
Investment income 6,857 215 473 137
Miscellaneous revenues 70,840 22,428 19,072 -


Total Revenues 332,675 22,643 867,414 137


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - -
Public safety - 21,745 - -
Culture, recreation and education 922,158 - 1,070,409 -
Conservation and development - - - -


Capital Outlay - - - -
Debt Service


Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 922,158 21,745 1,070,409 -


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (589,483) 898 (202,995) 137


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - - - -
Premium on debt - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - -
Transfers in 593,813 - 165,000 -
Transfers out - - - -


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 593,813 - 165,000 -


Net Change in Fund Balances 4,330 898 (37,995) 137


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year 250,762 16,923 (240,429) 6,608


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - END OF
YEAR $ 255,092 $ 17,821 $ (278,424) $ 6,745
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Special Revenue Funds


Township
Outreach Tourism


Seniors in
Need Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire
Department


Special
Senior Center
Wood Shop


$ - $ 72,146 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
6,443 - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


109 309 870 2,481 104 629 76
2,500 - 25,012 72,395 - 45,089 2,334
9,052 72,455 25,882 74,876 104 45,718 2,410


- - - - - - -
- - - - - 10,674 -


7,473 64,932 22,099 73,374 16,467 - 832
- - - - - - -
- - - - - 4,339 -


- - - - - - -
7,473 64,932 22,099 73,374 16,467 15,013 832


1,579 7,523 3,783 1,502 (16,363) 30,705 1,578


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - 11,207 - -
- (5,485) - - - - -
- (5,485) - - 11,207 - -


1,579 2,038 3,783 1,502 (5,156) 30,705 1,578


9,008 23,824 54,108 170,611 3,322 32,701 5,090


$ 10,587 $ 25,862 $ 57,891 $ 172,113 $ (1,834) $ 63,406 $ 6,668
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Special Revenue Funds


Senior Center
Special


Economic
Develop-


ment


Redevelop-
ment


Authority
Special


Assessments


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Public charges for services - - - -
Special assessments - - - 178,328
Investment income 7,572 377 108 13,258
Miscellaneous revenues 20,177 7,796 - -


Total Revenues 27,749 8,173 108 191,586


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Culture, recreation and education 8,948 - - -
Conservation and development - 75 7,325 -


Capital Outlay - - - -
Debt Service


Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 8,948 75 7,325 -


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 18,801 8,098 (7,217) 191,586


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - - - -
Premium on debt - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - -
Transfers in - 11 8,150 -
Transfers out - - - -


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 11 8,150 -


Net Change in Fund Balances 18,801 8,109 933 191,586


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year 458,241 (8,109) (67,849) 170,542


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - END
OF YEAR $ 477,042 $ - $ (66,916) $ 362,128
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Special Revenue Funds


Capital
Projects


Fund


CDBG K9 Unit
Tree


Commission Cemetery
Revolving
Loan Fund


Firemen's
Pension


Fund
Refuse
Fund


Fire
Equipment


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -


79 217 42 695 9,358 19,772 - 330
- 8,537 2,975 - 50,000 19,460 - -


79 8,754 3,017 695 59,358 39,232 - 330


- - - - - - - -
- 8,344 - - - - - -
- - - 5,904 - - - -
- - 1,346 - 4,000 - - -
- - - - - - - -


- - - - - - - -
- 8,344 1,346 5,904 4,000 - - -


79 410 1,671 (5,209) 55,358 39,232 - 330


- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - 65,000 - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - 65,000 - - -


79 410 1,671 (5,209) 120,358 39,232 - 330


6,374 17,322 2,795 33,452 - 808,960 - 20,453


$ 6,453 $ 17,732 $ 4,466 $ 28,243 $ 120,358 $ 848,192 $ - $ 20,783
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Capital Projects Funds


Park
Acquisition River Trail


TIF District
No. 3


TIF District
No. 4


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ 475,729 $ 174,694
Intergovernmental - - 5,698 2,634
Public charges for services 95,945 - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Investment income 7,006 - 6,466 23,264
Miscellaneous revenues 6,396 809 - -


Total Revenues 109,347 809 487,893 200,592


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Culture, recreation and education 7,303 - - -
Conservation and development - - - -


Capital Outlay - - 1,455 49,868
Debt Service


Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 7,303 - 1,455 49,868


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 102,044 809 486,438 150,724


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - - - -
Premium on debt - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - 5,000
Transfers in 70,000 - - -
Transfers out - - (618,533) (169,800)


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 70,000 - (618,533) (164,800)


Net Change in Fund Balances 172,044 809 (132,095) (14,076)


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year 286,045 (809) 424,831 1,132,824


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - END OF
YEAR $ 458,089 $ - $ 292,736 $1,118,748
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Capital Projects Funds


TIF District
No. 5


TIF District
No. 6


TIF District
No. 8


Equipment
Replacement


Building
Maintenance Technology


Total
Nonmajor


Governmental
Funds


$ - $ 24,537 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 747,106
39,592 - - 29,600 - - 312,272


- - - - - - 970,487
- - - - - - 178,328


1,311 30,468 4,669 2,811 1,317 394 141,774
- 465 - - 180,677 - 556,962


40,903 55,470 4,669 32,411 181,994 394 2,906,929


- - - - 154,730 - 154,730
- - - - - - 40,763
- - - - - - 2,199,899


75 6,538 9,648 - - - 29,007
22,678 1,396,216 508,073 175,859 - - 2,158,488


- 32,789 3,783 - - - 36,572
22,753 1,435,543 521,504 175,859 154,730 - 4,619,459


18,150 (1,380,073) (516,835) (143,448) 27,264 394 (1,712,530)


- 2,618,709 302,159 - - - 2,920,868
- 14,080 1,625 - - - 15,705
- - - 24,061 - - 29,061
- - - 220,000 - 100,000 1,233,181


(107,661) (55,162) (22,928) - - - (979,569)
(107,661) 2,577,627 280,856 244,061 - 100,000 3,219,246


(89,511) 1,197,554 (235,979) 100,613 27,264 100,394 1,506,716


(588,083) (131,044) 219,298 427,155 540,449 - 4,085,375


$ (677,594) $ 1,066,510 $ (16,681) $ 527,768 $ 567,713 $ 100,394 $ 5,592,091
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


As of December 31, 2019


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


ASSETS
Current Assets


Cash and investments $ 467,402 $ 356,631 $ 824,033
Receivables 5,346 132,928 138,274
Due from other funds 47,202 - 47,202


Total Current Assets 519,950 489,559 1,009,509


Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets


Land 9,986 - 9,986
Construction in progress 975,350 - 975,350
Property and equipment 4,035,720 2,181,896 6,217,616
Less: Accumulated depreciation (441,617) (948,766) (1,390,383)


Total Noncurrent Assets 4,579,439 1,233,130 5,812,569


Total Assets 5,099,389 1,722,689 6,822,078


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts - 65,519 65,519


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources - 65,519 65,519


LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities


Accounts payable 148,271 9,413 157,684
Accrued liabilities 18,327 14,517 32,844
Due to other funds - 306,745 306,745
Current portion of general obligation debt 216,562 135,000 351,562


Total Current Liabilities 383,160 465,675 848,835


Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt


General obligation debt payable 1,275,530 - 1,275,530
Net pension liability - 25,329 25,329
Compensated absences - 37,943 37,943


Total Liabilities 1,658,690 528,947 2,187,637


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts - 34,830 34,830


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 34,830 34,830


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,217,965 1,098,130 4,316,095
Unrestricted 222,734 126,301 349,035


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 3,440,699 $ 1,224,431 $ 4,665,130
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 654,681 $ 602,173 $ 1,256,854


Total Operating Revenues 654,681 602,173 1,256,854


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 373,312 544,945 918,257
Depreciation expense 134,524 102,095 236,619


Total Operating Expenses 507,836 647,040 1,154,876


Operating Income (Loss) 146,845 (44,867) 101,978


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 14,993 5,211 20,204
Interest and fiscal charges (32,376) (6,850) (39,226)
Interest subsidy - 3,035 3,035
Intergovernmental grants - 20,540 20,540


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (17,383) 21,936 4,553


Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions and
Transfers 129,462 (22,931) 106,531


CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions - city 1,181,861 - 1,181,861
Transfers in - 80,000 80,000


Total Contributions and Transfers 1,181,861 80,000 1,261,861


Change in Net Position 1,311,323 57,069 1,368,392


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 2,129,376 1,167,362 3,296,738


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 3,440,699 $ 1,224,431 $ 4,665,130
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CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2019


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers $ 690,564 $ 616,774 $ 1,307,338
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (58,666) (209,655) (268,321)
Paid to employees for services (190,870) (317,238) (508,108)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 441,028 89,881 530,909


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income 14,993 5,211 20,204


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 14,993 5,211 20,204


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Transfers - 80,000 80,000
Repayment of due to other funds - (3,035) (3,035)


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities - 76,965 76,965


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Debt issued 450,000 - 450,000
Debt retired (182,289) (130,000) (312,289)
Interest paid (25,573) (8,670) (34,243)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (454,000) - (454,000)


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities (211,862) (138,670) (350,532)


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 244,159 33,387 277,546


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 223,243 323,244 546,487


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 467,402 $ 356,631 $ 824,033
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Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income (loss) $ 146,845 $ (44,867) $ 101,978
Nonoperating revenue - 23,575 23,575
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net


Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Depreciation 134,524 102,095 236,619


Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows


Customer accounts receivable (4,808) (8,974) (13,782)
Other accounts receivable 40,691 - 40,691
Compensated absences - (267) (267)
Accounts payable 122,019 3,401 125,420
Other current liabilities 1,757 5,171 6,928
Pension related deferrals and liabilities - 9,747 9,747


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ 441,028 $ 89,881 $ 530,909


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


Cash and investments $ 467,402 $ 356,631 $ 824,033


  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 467,402 $ 356,631 $ 824,033


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


City contributed assets $ 1,181,861 $ - $ 1,181,861
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City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


Authorizing the City of Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller to act on the behalf of the City 
of Stoughton to accept the 2020 Section 5310 Grant in the amount of $30,359 and move forward 
with the process of purchasing an additional accessible van for the shared-ride taxi program 
  
 
Committee Action: 


 
 
Finance Committee approved   


Fiscal Impact: $30,359 Grant Funds; $7,590 CIP 
 
File Number: 


 
R-XX-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 26, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton offers a shared-ride taxi program open to the residents of Stoughton 
through a contract with a private taxi service provider; and 
 
WHEREAS, about 30,000 rides per year are taken on the taxi system, the majority of whom are seniors or 
people with disabilities 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton currently owns two accessible minivans but is in need of another; and 
 
WHEREAS, the matching funds totaling $8,000 were approved as part of the City of Stoughton’s 2020 
Capital Improvement Plan budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on May 26, 2020 and recommends authorizing the Director of 
Finance/Comptroller to act on the behalf of the City of Stoughton to accept the 2020 Section 5310 Grant 
in the amount of $30,359 and move forward with the process of purchasing an additional accessible van 
for the shared-ride taxi program; and 
 
THE CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL HEREBY AUTHORIZES the Director of 
Finance/Comptroller to act on the behalf of the City of Stoughton to accept the 2020 Section 5310 Grant 
in the amount of $30,359 and move forward with the process of purchasing an additional accessible van 
for the shared-ride taxi program. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 







2020 SECTION 5310 SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE 


 CITY OF MADISON 
 AND  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
This Contract, made by and between City of Stoughton, hereinafter referred to as  “SUBRECIPIENT” and the City of Madison, 
hereinafter referred to as “CITY,” shall become effective upon execution by the Mayor of Madison on behalf of the City. 
 
WHEREAS, CITY is authorized by Title 49 U.S.C Chapter 53 Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 
with Disabilities Program to apply for and receive Federal grants on behalf of eligible recipients; and 
 
WHEREAS, SUBRECIPIENT has requested funds to assist in financing capital purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY agrees to pass through financial assistance with funds made available under Section 49 USC 5310 Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and individuals with Disabilities Program, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract; 
and 
 
In consideration of the reciprocal promises expressed in this Contract, CITY and SUBRECIPIENT agree as follows: 
 


Article I: City of Madison Payment 
 


A. Payment under the terms of this Contract is made pursuant to Title 49 U.S.C Chapter 53 (Section 5310) which 
specify that capital assistance grants may equal 80% of the total capital costs. 


 
CITY agrees to pay SUBRECIPIENT Thirty Thousand and Three Hundred Fifty-Nine Dollars ($30,359) or 80% 
of the purchase price, whichever is less, of the items specified in Attachment A, Project Description and Budget.  
The costs eligible for capital assistance grant payments shall be limited to those specified in Attachment A, Project 
Description and Budget. 
 


B. CITY shall make payment to SUBRECIPIENT upon receipt of invoices prepared by the manufacturer or dealer 
showing the actual costs of the purchased item, i.e., rolling stock. 


 
C. If CITY’s audit establishes that payment to SUBRECIPIENT under the terms of this Contract has exceeded the 


allowable maximum as defined in Article I.B., SUBRECIPIENT shall refund to CITY upon demand a sum 
sufficient to reduce the payment to comply with Article I.B. of this Contract.  


 
D. Consistent with Articles I.B. and notwithstanding other provision of this contract, CITY may reduce the payments 


otherwise due under paragraph B of this article. 
 


Article II: Responsibility of SUBRECIPIENT 
 


A. The purchase of all equipment financed pursuant to this Contract shall be undertaken by SUBRECIPIENT and 
shall be in accordance with applicable State and Federal laws and regulations.  The Master Agreement between 
CITY and the Federal Transit Administration contains all Federally required clauses that should be included in 
this Contract between CITY and SUBRECIPIENT and said Master Agreement is therefore include in this 
Contract by reference.   In addition, SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all procurement requirements in FTA 
Circular 4220.1F when procuring property and services to be paid for under this Contract. 


 
B. SUBRECIPIENT shall complete all purchases included in this Contract by December 31, 2020.  If 


SUBRECIPIENT fails to complete a given purchase by the date specified, CITY shall take necessary actions to 
withdraw any remaining committed funds in the Contract at that time.  The uncommitted funds may be reassigned 
or surrendered to the federal government. 


 







C. Title to project equipment shall be in the name of the SUBRECIPIENT, subject to the restrictions on use and 
disposition of the project equipment and rolling stock set forth herein.  The City of Madison-Metro Transit shall 
be registered as Lien Holder #1 and copies of title documents must be filed with City of Madison-Metro Transit 
as soon as possible.   


 
D. SUBRECIPIENT may not execute any transfer of title, lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, contract, grant 


anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation that in any way affects the Federal interest in any project  
equipment or rolling stock nor may SUBRECIPIENT obligate itself, in any other manner, to any third party with 
respect to project equipment or rolling stock, unless such transfer of title, lease, lien pledge, mortgage 
encumbrance, contract, grant anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation is expressly authorized in writing 
by CITY; nor may SUBRECIPIENT, by any act or omission, adversely affect the Federal interest or impair 
SUBRECIPIENT’s continuing control over the use of project rolling stock. 


 
E. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that the project equipment and rolling stock shall only be used for the provision of 


transportation service to the general public and rolling stock shall be clearly marked for public use.  
SUBRECIPIENT shall keep satisfactory records with regard to the use of the equipment and rolling stock and 
submit to CITY upon request such information as may be required to assure compliance with this section.  Project 
equipment and rolling stock shall be operated only within the area authorized by the FTA under applicable grant 
statutes and regulations for the duration of its useful life.  If during the useful life, the project equipment and 
rolling stock is not used in this manner or is withdrawn from transportation service, SUBRECIPIENT shall 
immediately notify CITY and request disposition instructions. 


 
F. SUBRECIPIENT shall perform preventive maintenance on the equipment and rolling stock purchased with FTA 


funds, including ADA accessibility equipment, at a level no less than the manufacturer’s recommended 
specifications.  Adequate records of preventive maintenance on each piece of equipment and rolling stock shall 
be maintained by SUBRECIPIENT.  The equipment and rolling stock shall be properly maintained at all times.  
CITY shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections and reviews, for the purpose of confirming that proper 
maintenance policies and procedures are being followed. 


 
G. SUBRECIPIENT shall make available the equipment and rolling stock to CITY upon demand for the purpose of 


an annual verification or other inspections deemed necessary by CITY. 
 


H. SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify CITY in all cases where project equipment or rolling stock is used in 
a manner substantially different from that as described in the application.  SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain prior 
written concurrence from CITY for any proposed sale of equipment and rolling stock, title transfer, or lease to 
another agency. 


 
I. SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain in amount and form satisfactory to CITY such insurance or self-insurance 


(including property, personal injury and collision coverage) as will be adequate to cover the current value of 
project equipment and rolling stock throughout the period of required use.   


 
J. CITY reserves the right to require SUBRECIPIENT to restore equipment and rolling stock or pay for damages to 


the equipment and rolling stock as a result of abuse or misuse of such capital items with SUBRECIPIENT’s 
knowledge and consent.  


 
K. CITY reserves the right, and SUBRECIPIENT shall allow CITY, to conduct periodic reviews of 


SUBRECIPIENT to ensure it is in compliance with FTA Circular 4220.1F; 49 CFR, Part 18.37; and 49 CFR 
18.42. 


 
Article III: Records and Audits 


 
A. SUBRECIPIENT shall have a single, organization-wide, financial and compliance audit performed by a qualified 


independent auditor if required to do so under Federal law and regulations.  (See Federal OMB Circular No. A-
133 and the provisions of OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement dated March 2002.) 


 







B. This audit shall be performed in accordance with Federal circular A-133 issued by the Federal Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB), its Compliance supplement, and City of Madison single audit guidelines. 


 
C. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain appropriate accounts and records relating to this transportation project.  Such 


accounts and records will be made available upon request to CITY for inspection and audit purposes. 
 
D. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide all reports requested by CITY including, but not limited to, financial 


statements and reports, reports and accounting of services rendered, and any other reports or documents requested. 
Financial and service reports shall be provided according to a schedule (when applicable) to be included in this 
Contract. Any other reports or documents shall be provided within five (5) working days after SUBRECIPIENT 
receives CITY's written requests, unless the parties agree in writing on a longer period. Payroll records and any 
other documents relating to the performance of services under the terms of this Contract shall be retained by 
SUBRECIPIENT for a period of three (3) years after completion of all work under this contract, in order to be 
available for audit by CITY or its designee.  


 
E. SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain intact and readily accessible all data, documents, reports, records, Contracts, and 


supporting materials relating to this Contract during the course of this Contract and for three (3) years after City 
makes final payments and all other pending matters are closed.  SUBRECIPIENT shall permit the authorized 
representations of CITY and/or WisDOT or its designee, as required by USDOT/FTA, and the Comptroller 
General of the United States to inspect all project work, materials, payrolls, and other data, and to audit the books, 
records, and accounts pertaining to this Contract.   


 
F. SUBRECIPIENT further agrees to include in all its contracts and subcontracts hereunder a provision to the effect 


that the contractor and subcontractor agrees to the requirements of the above paragraph.  The term "subcontractor" 
as used in this clause excludes subcontracts or purchase orders for public utility services at rates established for 
uniform applicability to the general public. 


 
G. The periods of access and examination described above, for records which relate to (1) litigation or the settlement 


of claims arising out of the performance of this Contract, and (2) costs and expenses of this Contract as to which 
exception has been taken by the Comptroller General or any of his/her duly authorized representatives, shall 
continue until such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions have been dispose of. 


 
Article I V :  Project Management 


 
A.  The Subrecipient agrees that its transit project will be that as described in Attachment A, and will be managed 


and operated in accordance with t h e  Project Management and Recipient Coordination Plan, which is made 
part of this Grant Agreement by reference. Modifications to Attachment A may be p r o p o s e d  by either the 
Subrecipient or Metro Transit. 


 
B. A request by the Subrecipient to modify the transit project from that described in Attachment A must be 


submitted in writing to Metro Transit in a manner prescribed by Metro Transit. 
 
C. If Metro Transit determines that a proposed modification  is a "substantive change" to the initial grant 


application, Metro Transit  shall  prepare  an  amendment   to  this  Grant Agreement   and  forward   it  to  the 
Subrecipient  for  execution.  The Subrecipient shall not implement a proposed "substantive change" to the 2020 
transit project until an appropriate amendment to this Grant Agreement has been executed by both the 
Subecipient and the Metro Transit. 


 
D. If Metro Transit determines that a proposed modification to the 2020 grant application is a "non-substantive 


change," Metro Transit shall authorize in writing the Subrecipient to implement the change, and a formal 
amendment to this Grant Agreement shall not be required. 


 
 
 
 
 







Article V: Assurance of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability 
 


SUBRECIPIENT, in accordance with 49 CFR Parts 27, 37, and 38, agrees that it will comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), the Rehabilitation Act and all U. S. Department of Transportation regulations relating to 
enforcement of each Act.  
 


Article VI:  City Terms and Conditions 
 


A. NON-DISCRIMINATION. 
In the performance of work under this Contract, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, marital status, age, color, sex, handicap, national origin or 
ancestry, income level or source of income, arrest record or conviction record, less than honorable discharge, physical 
appearance, sexual orientation, gender identity, political beliefs or student status. Contractor further agrees not to 
discriminate against any subcontractor or person who offers to subcontract on this Contract because of race, religion, 
color, age, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. 


 
Article VII: FTA Terms and Conditions 


 
Federal Financial Assistance and Federal Changes:  80% of the total cost of the deliverables described in the Contract will be 
financed with Federal monies from the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended. 


 
A. No Government Obligation to Third Parties.   SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply the U.S. Department 


of Transportation regulations relating to contractual liability of the Federal Government to third parties as follows: 
 


CITY and SUBRECIPIENT acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal 
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying Contract, absent the express consent by 
the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to any 
obligations or liabilities to CITY, SUBRECIPIENT, or any other party (whether or not party to the Contract) 
pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying Contract.   


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal 
assistance provide by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the 
subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 


 
B. Incorporation of FTA Terms.  The provisions in this section include, in part, certain standard terms and 


conditions required by USDOT/FTA, whether or not expressly set forth in these provisions.  All contractual 
provisions required by USDOT/FTA, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F or any subsequent amendments are 
hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all USDOT/FTA mandated 
terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract.  
SUBRECIPIENT shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with CITY requests, 
which would cause CITY to be in violation of the USDOT/FTA terms and conditions. 


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply at all times with 49 CFR Part 18; U. S. Department of Transportation 
regulations relating to applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without 
limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement Form FTA MA (26) dated October 2019,  between 
CITY and U. S. Department of Transportation/Federal Transit Administration (USDOT/FTA), as they may be 
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract.  SUBRECIPIENT’s failure to so 
comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.   
 
These grant agreements and FTA Circular 4220.1F, "Third Party Contracting," are available for examination at 
the Office of the Transit Finance Manager, 1245 East Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Madison, WI  53703-3052, 
608/267-8766 (voice), 608/267-8778 (fax) or wblock@cityofmadison.com.  
 


C. Compliance with Local, State and Federal Laws.  The services and/or equipment provided shall be in 
compliance with all requirements of the laws and regulations of CITY of Madison, the State of Wisconsin and 
the United States of America. 







 
D. Ethics:   
 


1. Prohibited Interest:  SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that no employee, officer, or agent during his or her tenure 
or one (1) year thereafter has any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof.  Such a 
conflict would also arise when any employee, officer or agent's family member or partner or organization 
that employs, or is about to employ any of the above, has a financial or other interest in this Contract or the 
proceeds thereof. 


 
2. Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress:  SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that he or she has not offered 


or given to any member of, or delegate to the Congress of the United States, any share or part of this Contract 
or to any benefit arising therefrom. 


 
3. Covenant Against Gratuities: SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that he or she has not offered or given gratuities 


(in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) to any employee, officer or agent of CITY with a view 
toward securing favorable treatment in the awarding, amending, or evaluating performance of the Contract. 


 
4. Collusive Agreements: SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that the Contract submitted is not a product of collusion 


with any other Recipient and no effort has been made to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of any 
Contract price.   


 
5. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts:    


 
a.   SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 


as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 
C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying Contract, 
SUBRECIPIENT certifies 41or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it 
makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted 
project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be 
applicable, SUBRECIPIENT further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves 
the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on SUBRECIPIENT 
to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 


 
b.   SUBRECIPIENT also understands and acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 


fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under 
a Contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally 
awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose 
the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on SUBRECIPIENT, to the extent the 
Federal Government deems appropriate. 


 
E.  Civil Rights - SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with and ensures the compliance of all contractors and 


subcontractors with the following requirements: 
 


1. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, 
section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §  6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability.  In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may 
issue. 


 
2. Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the 


underlying Contract: 
 







a.    Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 
comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor 
(U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with 
any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future 
affect activities undertaken in the course of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, or sex.  Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with any implementing 
requirements FTA may issue.  


 
b. Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 


29 U.S.C. § § 621 through 634 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 
refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue and with 
implementing regulations of the U.S. Equal Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC), 29 CFR, Part 1625. 


 
c.    Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 


U.S.C. § 12112, SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with 
disabilities. In addition, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA 
may issue. 


 
d.    Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  


In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by SUBRECIPIENT for work to 
be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each 
potential contractor, subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by SUBRECIPIENT of 
SUBRECIPIENT's obligations under this Contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on 
the grounds of race, color, creed, age, disability, sex or national origin. 


 
e.    Information and Reports:  SUBRECIPIENT shall provide all information and reports required by the 


Federal Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by CITY or the USDOT-
/FTA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions.  Where any 
information required of a Recipient is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, SUBRECIPIENT shall so certify to CITY or to the USDOT/FTA, as appro-
priate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 


 
f. Incorporation of Provisions:  SUBRECIPIENT shall include the provisions of this entire section entitled 


“Civil Rights” in every contract and subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.  SUBRECIPIENT 
shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as CITY or the USDOT/FTA may 
direct as a means of enforcing non-compliance. Provided, however, that in the event a Recipient becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation with a contractor, subcontractor or supplier as a result of such 
direction, SUBRECIPIENT may request CITY to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the 
United States. 


 
g.   Penalties:  Failure by SUBRECIPIENT to carry out these requirements is a material breach of the 


Contract, which may result in the withholding of payments to SUBRECIPIENT under the contract until 
SUBRECIPIENT complies; cancellation, termination or suspension of this Contract; ineligibility for 







future Contracts; or such other remedy as CITY or USDOT/FTA deems appropriate in order to assure 
compliance with applicable civil rights standards as required by law.  


 
F. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise:     
 


The requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 and CITY's USDOT/FTA approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(D.B.E.) Program are incorporated in this Contract by reference.  
 
The Contractor shall maintain compliance with “DBE Approval Certification” CER 8.7 throughout the period of 
Contract performance. The requirements of § 1101(b) of SAFETEA – LU, Title  23 U.S.C. § 101, note, 49 C.F.R. 
Part 26 and the City's USDOT/FTA approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (D.B.E.) Program are 
incorporated in this Contract by reference.  
 


 
1. Policy.  It is the policy of the U.S. Department of Transportation that disadvantaged business enterprises as 


defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall have the opportunity to participate in the performance of Contracts financed 
in whole or in part with Federal funds under this Agreement.  Consequently, the DBE requirements of 49 
CFR § 18.36(e) Contracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women’s Business Enterprise and Labor 
Surplus Area Firms apply to this Contract. 


 
2. Obligation.  SUBRECIPIENT and its contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of 


race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract.  SUBRECIPIENT shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 in the award and administration of any subcontracts entered 
into in its performance of this contract.  Each subcontract the Contractor signs with a Subcontractor must 
include the assurance in this paragraph and the penalty provision in Paragraph c below. 


 
3. Penalty.  Failure by SUBRECIPIENT or its contractor and subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a 


material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy 
as CITY deems appropriate. 


 
G. Labor Protection:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with applicable transit employee protective requirements, 


terms, and conditions determined by the U. S. Secretary of Labor to be fair and equitable to protect the interests 
of employees employed under this contract and to meet the employee protective requirements as of 49 U.S.C.  
A5333(b), and U. S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto.  


 
H. Government-wide Debarment & Suspension Non-procurement:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with and 


shall assure subcontractors compliance with the requirements of Executive Order 12549 and 12689, "Debarment 
and Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and U.S. DOT regulations, “Nonprocurement Suspension and 
Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. Part 1200, which adopt and supplement the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget FTA Master Agreement, which prohibits FTA Recipients and Subcontractors from knowingly contracting 
for goods and services from organizations that have been suspended or debarred from receiving Federally-assisted 
contracts.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to, and assures that its sub contractors will, review the “Excluded Parties 
Listing System” at http://www.sam.gov before entering into any third party contract or subagreement. 
SUBRECIPIENT shall submit the certification attached as Attachment B with this Contract.  


 
Furthermore, SUBRECIPIENT agrees, to provide and to require subcontractors at every tier to agree to provide, 
CITY with immediate written notice if it learns that its submitted certification, which was not erroneous when 
submitted, has become erroneous by reasons of changed circumstances.  Written notice shall be sent to Wayne 
Block, Transit Finance Manager, 1245 East Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Madison, WI  53703-3052. 


 
 
I. Environmental Requirements: 
 


1. Recycled Products:  SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply with 42 USC § 6962 et seq., and 40 CFR 
Part 247, and Executive Order 12873; U. S. Department of Transportation regulations relating to recycled 
products.  This requirement applies to all Contracts designated by the EPA, when CITY or Subrecipient 







procures $10,000 or more of such items in the fiscal year, or when the cost of such items purchased during 
the previous fiscal year were $10,000, using federal funds. 


 
Violations shall be reported to USDOT/FTA and to the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Assistant Administrator for Enforcement. 


 
      J.         Pre-award and Post Delivery Audit Requirements 


 
1.  CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 


 
SUBRECIPIENT and selected Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j) and FTA's implementing 
regulation at 49 C.F.R. Part 663 and Part 661 and shall submit all necessary certifications and documentation, 
as required, with its Offer and prior to vehicle acceptance, including but not limited to the following:  
SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that to the extent the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j), as amended 
by SAFETEA-LU conflict with FTA’s implementing regulations as currently promulgated, the provisions of 
49 U.S.C. § 5323(j), as amended, prevail. 


 
2.  FEDERAL MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY STANDARDS (FMVSS) 


 
SUBRECIPIENT shall submit 1) manufacturer's FMVSS self-certification sticker information that the 
vehicle complies with relevant FMVSS at the time of award and at the time of the post award audit, or 
2) manufacturer's certified statement that the contracted buses will not be subject to FMVSS regulations. 


 
3.  PURCHASERS REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 


 
SUBRECIPIENT and selected Contractor shall submit all documentation requested by CITY in order to 
satisfy the following Federal requirements in 49 CFR 663. 


 
a. Pre-Award Purchasers Requirements Certification 


The Pre-Award purchaser’s requirements certification is a certification that SUBRECIPIENT keeps on 
file that: 


 
(1) The rolling stock SUBRECIPIENT is contracting for is the same product described in 


SUBRECIPIENT’s solicitation specifications. 
 


(2) SUBRECIPIENT and (if selected) Contractor is the responsible manufacturer with the capability to 
produce a vehicle that meets the Procuring Agency’s specifications set forth in the Procuring 
Agency solicitation. 


 
b.  Post-Award Purchasers Requirements Certification 


 
The Post-Award purchaser’s requirements certification is a certification SUBRECIPIENT keeps on file 
that: 


 
(1) Except for procurements covered under paragraph (c), in this section, a resident inspector (other 


than an agent or employee of the manufacturer) was at the manufacturing site throughout the period 
of manufacture of the rolling stock to be purchased and monitored and completed a report on the 
manufacture of such rolling stock.  Such a report, at a minimum, shall (1) provide accurate records 
of all vehicle construction activities; and  


 
(2)  Address how the construction and operation of the vehicles fulfills the contract specifications. 


 
(3) After reviewing the report required under paragraph (a), of this section, and visually inspecting and 


road testing the delivered vehicles, the vehicles meet the contract specifications. 
 







c.  For procurements of ten or fewer buses, or any number of primary manufacturer standard production 
and unmodified vans, after visually inspecting and road testing the vehicles, the vehicles meet the 
contract   specifications.  


 
The selected contractor shall submit all Post Award Audit Documents, as listed herein, to SUBRECIPIENT 
prior to the vehicle acceptance of each annual shipment.  Failure to provide these documents, within this 
timeframe, may result in a reasonable retention amount being withheld by the Procuring Agency in 
subsequent shipments, to insure satisfactory performance with this requirement.   


  
Article VIII: Safety Requirements 


 
All materials, equipment, and supplies acquired through this Contract by SUBRECIPIENT, must comply fully with all 
safety requirements as set forth in law or rule by the State of Wisconsin and all applicable OSHA Standards. 


 
Article IX: Termination 


 
A.        In the event Subrecipient shall default in any of the covenants, agreements, commitments, or conditions 


herein contained, and any such default shall continue unremedied for a period of ten (10) days after written notice 
thereof to Subrecipient, CITY may, at its option and in addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have 
at law or in equity against Subrecipient, including expressly the specific enforcement hereof, forthwith have the 
cumulative right to immediately terminate this contract and all rights of Subrecipient under this contract. 


 
B.        Notwithstanding paragraph A., above, CITY may in its sole discretion and without any reason terminate this 


agreement at any time by furnishing SUBRECIPIENT with ten (10) days' written notice of termination. In the 
event of termination under this subsection, CITY will pay for all work completed by SUBRECIPIENT and 
accepted by CITY  


 
Article X: Privacy Act 


 
SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions 
and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, SUBRECIPIENT 
agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before SUBRECIPIENT or its employees operate a system 
of records on behalf of the Federal Government. SUBRECIPIENT understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, 
including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to 
comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract. 
 
SUBRECIPIENT also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on 
behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
 


Article XI: Attachments 
 
All attachments to this Contract are incorporated herein by annexation (Attachment A and B). 


  







 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands at Madison, Wisconsin. 
 
 


  SUBRECIPIENT 


      City of Stoughton    
  (Type or Print Name of Contracting Entity) 


  By:  
   (Signature) 


     
   (Print Name and Title of Person Signing) 


   Date:       
   
   
   
   CITY OF MADISON, WISCONSIN 


a municipal corporation 
    


   By:  
    Satya Rhodes-Conway, Mayor 


     
  Date:  
 
Approved: 


  


     


  By:  
David P. Schmiedicke, Finance Director   Maribeth Witzel-Behl, City Clerk 


     
Date:   Date:  
   


Approved as to Form: 
   


Eric T. Veum, Risk Manager  Michael P. May, City Attorney 


Date:   Date:  
   


 
  







 
 


Attachment A 
 


2020 Section 5310 Capital Assistance Grant 
 


City of Stoughton 
 


The City of Stoughton offers a shared-ride taxi program open to the residents of Stoughton through a contract 
with a private taxi service provider. The City of Stoughton is to purchase an accessible shared-ride taxi minivan 
to replace a 2008 non-accessible Crown Victoria taxi cab. Stoughton Transit operates in the City of Stoughton 
limits and within a three-mile radius of city limits. About 30,000 rides per year are taken on the taxi system, the 
majority of whom are seniors or people with disabilities. The shared‐ride taxi system is important to the 
community and is used for important trips to and from work, shopping, entertainment, medical appointments, and 
education. 


 
 
 
Quantity   Item Description    Unit Price        Total Price 
 
     1               Accessible Min-Van    $37,949.            $37,949. 
 
           Subtotal A      $37,949. 
               


Federal Share (80%)         $30,359. 
 
 
 


 
 







Attachment B 
 


DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION   
 
Instructions for Certification: 
 
1. By signing this Contract, the prospective sub-grantee or sub-recipient is providing the signed certification set out below.  
 
2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation 
in this covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the 
certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or 
agency’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the prospective primary participant to 
furnish a certification shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 
 
3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department 
or agency determined to enter into this. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to which this 
proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have 
the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may 
contact the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
 
6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for 
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by in writing by the department or agency entering into this 
transactions. 
 
7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction", provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all 
lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
 
8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant agrees to review 
the “Excluded Parties Listing System” at http://www.sam.gov, before entering into any third party contract or 
subagreement. 
 
9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
10. Except for transactions authorized under Paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 
subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or 
default. 







DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION - PRIMARY- (continued) 
 
The prospective primary participant certifies, by submission of this Proposal, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that 
neither it nor its "principals," as defined in 2. C.F.R. Part 180.995: 
 
Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 
transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a 
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property. 
 
Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charges by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) 
with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) of this certification. 
 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, 
local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
If the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
primary participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal, and indicate that it has done so, by placing an "X" in the 
following space: ____.     
          
Furthermore, the Participant certifies that it will provide immediate written notice to CITY if, at any time during the course 
of the proposed contract, it learns that this certification was erroneous when submitted or has been erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 
 
THE PARTICIPANT, CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS THE TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF EACH 
STATEMENT OF ITS CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF ANY. IN ADDITION, THE PARTICIPANT 
UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 ET SEQ. APPLY TO THIS 
CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF ANY. 
 
 
 
        ___________________________________________ 
        Signature and title of Authorized Official 
 
The undersigned chief legal counsel for City of Stoughton hereby certifies City of Stoughton has authority under state 
and local law to comply with the subject assurance and that the certification above has been legally made. 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
   Signature of Subrecipient’s Attorney 
 


_____________________________________________ 
   Date 
 


 








 


 
 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  
  


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
The City of Stoughton declared a State of Emergency due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. This 
resolution suspends interest and penalties for late real property tax payments so long as the City 
receives full property tax payment by October 1, 2020.      
Committee Action: 


 
  


Fiscal Impact:  
 
File Number: 


 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


 
 
WHEREAS, on April 15, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Wisconsin 
Legislature enacted 2019 Wisconsin Act 185 allowing municipalities to suspend interest 
and penalties for late real property tax installment payments; and  
  
WHEREAS, Emergency Order #12, Safer at Home announced on March 24, 2020, 
required individuals to remain at home with the exception of essential travel, based on the 
increasing transmission of COVID-19 within the State of Wisconsin; and   
  
WHEREAS, part of the Safer at Home Order required non-essential businesses to remain 
closed and/or operate in a limited capacity; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Safer at Home Order is no longer in effect, but Dane County has enacted 
a substantially similar order requiring non-essential businesses to remain closed and/or 
operate in a limited capacity; and 
  
WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton and Dane County as a result of 
business closures have been laid off or furloughed from their employment; and   
  
WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton have subsequently had to apply for 
unemployment insurance compensation as a result of loss of employment; and  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton finds that the taxpayers of the City of Stoughton and 
Dane County have suffered and continue to suffer a general financial hardship as a result 
of the COVID 19 pandemic; and   
  
WHEREAS, on May 7, 2020 Dane County enacted, by the authority of 2019 Wisconsin 
Act 185, Resolution 2020-20, which resolution went into effect May 11, 2020; and 
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WHEREAS, Dane County resolution 2020-20 finds that the residents and taxpayers of 
Dane County have suffered and continue to suffer a general financial hardship as a result 
of the COVID 19 pandemic, and approved the waiver of interest and penalties for late 
payments of property tax installments due after April 1, 2020 if the entire balance is paid 
by October 1, 2020; and 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton will suspend the imposition of interest and 
penalties for late real property tax installment payments due on May 31 and July 31 
provided the instalments are paid in full by October 1, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor     Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote  ? - ?   
 
 


 
 








12/31/19 Fund Balance 1,018,748$        
Less: Reserved Funding Revolving Loan (35,000)$             
Less: Reserved Funding RDA (128,981)$          
12/31/19 Unassigned Fund Balance 854,767$            


12/31/19 Fund Balance 1,018,748$        


2020 Forecasted Revenues:
2020 Property Taxes 180,369$            
2020 Exempt Computer and Personal Property Aids 6,975$                
2020 Interest Income 5,000$                
2020 Marathon Site Settlement 39,000$              
2020 Marathon Sale 65,000$              Note A


296,344$            
2020 Forecasted Expenditures:
2020 Legal, Consulting, Audit, etc. (15,000)$             
2020 Downtown Revitalization Costs (19,000)$             
2020 Marathon Site Infrastructure Rep/Aband (30,000)$             
2020 Debt Service (101,625)$          


(165,625)$          


Available Fund Balance for 2020 Projects 1,149,467$        
Less: Reserved Funding Revolving Loan (35,000)$             
Less: Reserved Funding RDA (79,981)$             


1,034,486$        


2020 Project Budget (950,000)$          
Forecasted Ending 2020 Unreserved Fund Balance 84,486$              


Available for RLF:
Forecasted Ending 2020 Unreserved Fund Balance 84,500$              
Remaining Reserved RDA Funds 80,000$              


164,500$            


Note A - TBD - Depends on the Marathon Site being sold in 2020.
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